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1. GEORGE BCHIRO, 5004 W. Admiral Doyle Dr,, New lberia, LA 70560, an expert

—

i forensic science. Should this witness testify, he will testify in the area of ¢rime scene
analysis, crime scene investigation, processing of crime scenes, cellection and preservation
of evidence, latent print comparison, footwear examination, and ONA svaluations and will give
opihions related thereto.

2, BR. JOHN HIATT, 8180 Piacid St, Las Vegasa, NV 89123, a Consulting
Toexicologist in effects of Alcohal, effects of Spironolactone, Traxcpone, Venlafaxine, and
combinations of the above in an Individual.

3. BARRY BATES, 2022 Pinion Spring Dr. Henderson, NV 88074, a
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bicmechanical engineer.

—
—

A copy of the expert witnesses' curriculum vitae is attached hereto.
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GEORGE SCHIRO, MS, F-ABC
CONSULTING FORENSIC SCIENTIST
FORENSIC SCIENCE RESOURCES™
P.0. Box 188
CADE, LA 70519 USA
CELL: (337) 322-2724
E-MAIL: Gjschiro{@es.com

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Industrial Chemistry - Forensic Science

Including five hours of eredit in Forensic DNA Analysis of Biological Materials and
accompanying lab course, three hours of credit in Quality Assurance and Bicinformatics, three
hours of credit in Biochemistry, two hours of cradit in Forensic Analysis of DNA Data, and three
howrs of credit in Experimental Statistics

University of Central Florida, Orlando, FL.

Bachelor of Science, Microbiology
Inchuding three hours of credit in Genetics
L.ouisiana State University, Baton Rouge, La.

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION

Maolecular Biology Fellow of the American Board of Criminalistics

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING ATTENDED

Octobes 2007 “Integrity, Character, and Ethics in Forensic Science™— Instructor: Dan B.
Gunnell, Louisiana Association of Forensic Scientists {LAFS) Fall 2007
Meeting, Baton Rouge, LA

Fetruary 2007 “Anaiomy of a Wrongful Conviction: A Muhidisciplinary Examination of
the Ray Krone Case™ — Co-chairmen: Gegrge Schiro and Thomas Streed,
American Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting, San Antonie, TX

February 2006 “Solving the South Louisiana Serial Killer Case ~ New Approaches
Biended With Older Trusted Techniques” Co-chairmen: George Schiro
and Ray Wickenheiser, American Academy of Forensic Sciences (AAFS)
Meeting, Seattle, WA

George Schiro's CY Page 1 of %
Updried November 19, 2007

2932



December 2004

June 2603

May 2003

April 2003
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March 200|
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MNovember 1999

Mareh 1998

November | D07

October 1997
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August 1957

February £997

George Schira's CV

“Nauonal Forensic Science Technology Center (NFSTC) Auditor
Workshop" ~ Instructors: Mark Nelson, John Wegel, Richard A, Guerren,
and Heather Subert

“COIS v5.6 Soflware Training™ - |nstructor: Carla Heron, Baten Rouge,
LA

"DNA Auditor Training" - Instructors: Richard A Guerreri and Anja
Einseln, Austin, TX

“Statistical Analysis of Forensic DNA Evidence” « Instructor: Dr. George
Carmody, Harvey, LA

“Association of Forensic DNA Analysts and Administrators (AFDAA)
Workshops™ - Instructors: 8. Cribari, Dr. T. Wang, and R. Wickenheiser,
Austin, TX

“Basic Forensic DNA Analysis” - Instructor: Dr. Pat Wojtkiewicz, Baton
Rouge, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, Reno, NV

“Advanced AmpFtSTR™ & ABI Prism™ 310 Genetic Anatyzer

Training” - Instructer: Catherine Cabailero, PE Biosystems, Baton Rouge,
LA

“DNA Typing with STRs - Silver Stain Detection Workshop” -
Instructors: Dr. Brent Spoth and Kimberly Huston, Promega Corp.,
Madison, WI

“Laboratory Auditing” - Instructors: Dr. William Tilstone, Richard Lester,
and Tony Longhetti, NFSTC Workshop, Baton Rouge, LA

“Forensic Microscopy” - [nstructor: Gary Laughlin, McCrone Research
Institute, La. State Police Training Academy, Baton Rouge, LA

*Presenting DNA Swatistics in Court™ - Instruciors: Dr. Bruce Weir and Dr.
George Carmody, Promega Symposium, Scotisdale, AZ

“Forensic DNA Analysis™ - Instructors: Pat Wojikiewicz and Michelle
Gaines, North La. Crimne Lab, Shreveport, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, Wew York, NY
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June 1988

George Schire’s CV

“Forensic DNA Testing™ - Instructors: Dr. Jim Karam and Dr. Sudhir
Sinha, Tutane Unijversity Medical Center, New Orleans, LA

“Bloodstain Pattern Analysis and Crime Scene Documentation”™
Instructors: Paulette Sutton, Steven Symes, and Lisa Elrod
North La. Crirne Lab, Shreveport, LA

“Introduction to Forensic Fiber Microscopy™ - Instructor: Skip Palenik
Acadianz Crime Lab, Mew theria, LA

DNA Workshop
AAFS Meeting, Nashville, TN

“Personality Profiling and Crime Scene Assessment” - Instructors: Roy
Hazelwood and Robert Ressler, Loyola University, New Orleans, LA

“Basic Forensic Serolopy”
FBl Academy, Quantico, VA

DNA Workshop - Instructor: Anne Montgomery, GenTest Labaratories
Southern Association of Forensic Scientists (SAFS) Spring Meeting,
Savannah, GA

Attended the Second International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of
DNA Analysis, FBI Academy, Quantico, VA

“Introduction to Human immunoglobulin Alletyping - Instructor: Dr.
Moses Schanfield, AGTC, La. State Police Crime Lak. Baton Rouge, LA

Bone Grouping Techniques Workshop - Instructor: Dr. Robert Gaenssien
and Dr. Henry Lee, University of New Haven, New Haven, CT

Atterded the International Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA
Analysis, FBl Academy, Quantico, VA

DNA Workshop
SAFS Fall Meeting, Clearwater, FL

“Noa-Isotopic Detection of DNA Potymorphisms™ - Instructor: Dale
Drykes, AGTC, North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

"Microscopy of Hairs” - Instructor: Skip Palenik
North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

Page 3 of ¢
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April 1988 “Analysis of Footwear and Tire Evidence” - Instructors: Max Courtney
and Ed Hueske, North La, Crime Lab, Shrevepont, LA
September 1987 Introduction te Forensic Genetics Workshop - Instructor; Dr. Moses
Schanficld, SAFS Fall Meeting, Atlanta, GA
March 1987 Isoelectric Focusing Workshop
SAFS/SWAFS/SAT Combined Spring Meeting, Baton Rouge, LA
June 1986 Attetkded the International Symposium on Farensic Immunology
FBI Academy, Quantico, VA
Febrary 1986 “Collection and Preservation of Physical Evidence” - Instzucior; Dale

Moreau, FBI School, Melainie, LA

August 1985 “Atomic Absorption in Determining Gunshov Residucs™
EBI Academy, Quantico, VA

April 1985 “Arson Accelerant Detection Course™ - Instructors: Rick Tantarski, Mary
Lou Fuitz, and Rick Stroebel, Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms
(BATF) Lab, Reckville, MD

July 1984 “Questioned Pocuments for the Investigator” - Instructor; Dale Moreau
FBI School, Baton Rouge, LA
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
2002 - present Acadiana Criminalistics Laboratery — New Iberia, LA

An ASCLD-LAB accredited laboratory

Employed as a Forensic Chemist - DNA Technical Leader. Duties include incorporating
the DNA Advisory Board (DAB) standards, accountability for the technical operations of
the Jab’s biology section, conducting DNA analysis using the |3 STR core loci in
caseworl, DNA research, forensic science training, and crime scene investigation.
Qualified as an expert over 138 times in 28 Louisiena parish courts, one Fiorida county
court, one Mississippi county court, one Misseuri ¢ounty cour, one Nevada county court,
federal eourt, and two Leuisiana city courts. Has qualified as an expert in the following
areas: latent fingerprint development; serology; crime scene investigation; forensic
sctence; trajectory reconstruction; shoeprint identification: crime scenc reconstruction;
bloodstain pattem analysis; DNA analysis; fracture match analysis; and kair comparison,
Has also consulied on cases in 17 states and the United Kingdom. Wotked over 2600
cases. Independently contracted DNA technical auditor with NFSTC and Forensic Quality
Services. Conlracted DNA Technical !eader to the Southwest La. Crime Lab in Lake

Charles, LA. [s also a member of the La. Foundation Apainst Sexual Assault (LAFASA)
Training Yeam.
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1938 - 2001 Lauisiana State Police Cnme Lab - Baton Rouge, LA
An ASCLD-LAB accredited Jaboratory

Empioyed as a Forensic Scientist 2. Duties includad incorporating the DNA Advisory
Board (DAR) standards and conducting DNA analysis using the 13 STR core oci in
casework. Duties have alsg included setting up and developing methods for the analysis
of blood and body fluids using biological, chemical, micrascopic, immunological,
biochemical, electrophoretic, and isoelectric focusing techniques: applying these methods
to criminal investigations; and testifying to the results in court. Additional duties jncluded
crime scene investipation/reconstruction; latent print development; fracture match
comparison; projectile trajectory determination; shoeprint comparison; hair ¢xamination;
blond spaiter interprefation; and training personnel in various aspects of forensic science.

1984 - 1988 Jefferson Parish Sheriff”s Office Crime Lab — Metairie, LA

Employed as Criminalist (I). From 11/85 10 4/88 duties included collection and anafysis
of blood, body fluids, hairs, and fibers using microscopic, immunelogical, biochemical,
and chemieal techniques. Also testified to the results of these analyses in court. Trained
under Senior Forensic Biologist Joseph Warren. From 6/84 to 10/85 duties included
marijuana analysis, arson analysis, gunshot residue detection, hit and run paint analysis,
and development of latent fingerprints, Tramed under Lab Director Ron Singer.

PROFESSIONAL PAPERS

“Criminalistics Errors, Omissions, Problems, and Ethical Issues™ presented as pan of the
“Anatemy of a Wrongful Conviction: A Multidisciplinary Examination of the Ray Krone Cage”
workshop at the 2007 AAFS Meeting in San Antonio, TX and as part of the LAES Fall 2007
Meeting in Baton Rouge, LA,

“Using the Quality Assurance Standards for Forensic DNA Testing Laboratories to Distinguish
the Unqualified Forensic DNA Experts From the Qualified Forensic DNA Experts” presented at
the 2007 AAFS Meeating in San Antonio, TX and at the AFDAA 2007 Winter Meeting in Austin,
T, -

“Investigative Uses of DNA Databases™ presentcd as part of the “Solving the South Louisiana
Serial Killer Case — New Approaches Blended With Older Trusted Techniques™ workshop at the
2006 AAFS Meeling in Seattle, WA,

“Trace DNA Analysis: Casework Experience” presented as a poster at the 2004 AAFS Meeling
in Dallas, TX and as a falk at the July 2003 AFDAA Meceting in Austin, TX. Also presented as
“Interesting Casework Using AmpRISTR® Profiter Plus® and COfler® Kits” at Applied
Biosystems’ “Future Trends in Forensic DNA Technology,” September, 2003 in New Orleans,
LA.
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“Extraction and Quantification of Human Deoxyribonucleic Acid, and the Ampiification of
Humzn Short Tandem Repeats and a Scx Identification Marker from Fly Larvae Found on
Decompasing Tissue™ a thesis to fulfill one of the Master of Science requirements. Successfully
defended on July 13, 2061 at the University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida. Presenied at the
2004 AAFS Meeting in Dallas, TX, the Spring 2002 La_ Association of Forensic Scientists
(LAF 5} Meeting, and the January 2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX.

“Adminsstrative Policies Dealing with Crime Scene Operations” published in the Spring 1999
issue of Sowhern Lawman Magazine.

“Shooting Reconstruction - When the Bullet Hits the Bone” presented at the 10th Anniversary
Convention of the La_ Private Investigators Association (LPIAYNational Association of Legal
lnvestigators (NALK) Region IV Seminar, September 13, 1997, New Orleans, LA, Licensed as
continuing education for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators
and Private Security Agencies. Published in the Fall 1998 issue of Southern Lawman Magazine,

“Using Videotape to Document Physical Evidence” presented a1 the Seventh Annual Convention
of the LPIA/NALI Region IV Seminar, August 15, 1996, New Orleans, LA, Licensed as
continuing education for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators
and Private Security Apencies. Published in April 1997 issue of The LPI4 Journal An edited
version was published in the Winter 1998 issue of Southern Lawman Magazine.

“Collection and Preservation of Blood Evidence from Crime Scenes” distributed as partof a
blowd collection workshop held a1 the Jefferson Parish Coroner’s Eighth Annual Death
Investigation Conference, November 17, 1995, Harahan, LA. Presented as continuing iegal
education by the La. Bar Association, Elecironically publishied on the World Wide Web at the
Crime Scene Investigation Web Page (hitp:/palice2.ucr.edu/csi htm), Published in the
September/October 1997 issue of the Journal of Foremsic Identification. Referenced in the 7
edition of Techniques of Crime Scene Investigation by Barry A.J. Fisher.

“Collection and Preservation of Evidence™ presented at La. Foundation Against Sexual
Assault/La. District Attorneys Association sponsored conference, “Meeting the Challenge:
Investigation and Prosecution of Sex Critnes," March 3, 1994, Lafayerte, LA. Preserted as
continuing legal education by the La. Bar Association. Published in the Farensic Medicine
Sourcebook. Electronically published on the World Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investigation
Web Page (hiip://police2.ucr edu/esi.htm}. Also published in Nanogram, the official publication
of L.LAFS. A modified version of the paper was presented at the Sixth Annual Convention of the
LPIA, August 19, 1995, New Orleans, LA; the NAL] Region IV Continuing Education Seminar,
March 9, 1596, Biloxi, MS; and the Texas Association of Licensed Investigators (TALIL Winter
Seminar, February 15, 1997, Addison, TX. Published in the July/August 1996 issue and the
September/October 1996 issuc of The Texas Investigator. Electronically pubtished on the World
Wide Web at TALIL's Web Page (http://pimall.com/talifevidence.himl), Published in the May
2001 issue of The fnformant, the official publication of the Professional Private Investipators
Association of Colorade. An updated version was presented at La. Foundation Againsi Sexual
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Assauit/La. District Attorneys Association sponsored conference, *Collaberating to $TOP
Viclenee Against Women Conference,” March 12, 2003, Lafayene, LA,

“The Effects of Fecal Contamination on Phosphoglucomutase Subtyping” presented at the 1989
AAFS Meeting held in Las Vegas, Nevada and at the Fall, 1987 SAFS Meeting held in Atlanta,
Georgia.

“A Report on Gamma Marker (Gm) Antigen Typing” presented at the Fall, 1986 SAFS Meeting
held in Aubum, Alabama znd at the Summer, 1986 LAFS Meeting.

“An Improved Method of Glyoxylase I Analysis” co-presenied with loseph Warren at the
Summer, 1986 LAFS Maeting.

ARTICLES PUBLISHED

“Forensic Science and Crime Scene Investigation: Past, Present, and Future” published in the
Winter 2000 issue of dmerican Lawman Magazine.

"New Crime Scenes — Same Old Problems™ published in the Winter 1999 issue of Southern
Lawman Magazine.

“Shacprint Evidence: Trampled Underfoot” published in the Fall 1999 issue of Southers
Lawman Magazine,

“LASCL: A Model Qrganization” published in the Summer 1999 issue of Southern Laowman
Magazine.

“Applications of Forensic Science Analysis to Privste Investigation” published in the Tuly 1999
issue of The LPIA Journal

TRAINING CONDUCTED

Have conducted training at the following seminars and have trained the following organizations
and agencies in crime scene investigation, forensic science, and/or the collection and preservation
of evidence: Fourth and Seventh International Conferences of Legal Medicine held in Panama
City, Panama; U.S. State Department’s Anti-Terrorism Assistance Program Police Executive
Seminar; AAFS: American Chemical Society; AFDAA: Forensic Science Education Conference;
SAFS; Southern Institute of Forensic Science, University of Nevada Las Vegas Biotechnology
Center; Professional Private Investigators Association of Colorado; Indiana Coroner’s Training
Board; DNA Security, [nc. Open House; Palm Bay Police Dept., Palm Bay, Florida; CGEN 5200,
Expert Tesumeny in Forensic Science, University of North Texas Health Science Ceniter, F.
Worth, TX; Tennessee Association of Envestigators; Mississippi Society for Medical
Technology; La. State Coroners’ Association; Jefferson Parish Coroner’s Office Eighth Annual
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Death Investigation Conference; Southern University Law Center: La. State University
Chemisiry Department Seminar; Chemistry 105, Southeastern Louisiana University; University
of Louisiana at Lafayerie Biology Club; Louisiana Division of the International Association for
Ideruification; U.S. Department of Justice La. Middte District Law Enforcement Coordinating
Commitiee Crime Scene Investigation Workshop; La. State University's Law Enforcement
Training Program Scientific Crime [nvestigator’s Institute; La, State University's Continuing
Law Enforcement Education School; La. State Police Training Academy’s Advanced Forensic
Investigation School: La. District Aftomeys Association; La, Southeast Chiefs of Police
Associalion; Acadiana Law Enforcement Training Academy: Caddo Parish Sheriff's Office;
Mystery Writers of America - Florida Chapter; NALI Continuing Education Seminars; TALI:
Lafayette Parish Sheriff’s Office; Iberia Parish Sheriff's Office; Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office
Training Acudemy; Kenner Police Depi.; St. Charlcs Parish Sheriff's Office; Terrebonne Parish
Sheniff's Office; East Feliciana Parish Sheriff's Office; East Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff's Office;
Vermilion Parish Sheriff's Office; West Baton Rouge Parish Sheriff's Office; Washington Parish
Rape Crisis Center Volunteers; Mississippi Professional Investigators Association: Fast Baton
Rouge Stop Rape Crisis Center Volunteer Physicians; Stuller Place Sexual Assault Response
Center Volunteers; Evangeline and St. Landry Parish Rape Crisis Volunteers; Tri-Parish Rape
Crisis Volunteer Escorts; LP1A; La. Foundation Against Sexual Assault; Louisiana Society fer
Medical Technalogy; Baton Rouge Society for Medical Technology; Baton Rouge Police Dept.
Sex Crimes Unit, Crime Scene Unil, and Traffic Homicide Unit; Violence Against Women
Conference; Family Focus Regional Conference; Qur Lady of the Lake Hospital Emergency
Room Persennel; St. Martinvitle Chamber of Commerce; New Iberia Optirmist Club; Sexual
Assault; Effective Law Enforcement Response Seminar: La, State Police Traning Academy: La.
Association of Scientific Crime Investigators (LASCI); LAFS; and the Basic Police Academy
(La. Probation and Parole, La. Dept. of Public Safety, La. Motor Vehicle Pelice, and La. Dept of
Wildlife and Fisheries).

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

International Society for Forensic Genetics

Intemational Association of Bloodstain Patiern Analysts (Full Member)

American Board of Criminalistics (Molecular Biology Fellow)

AAFS (Fellow)

Aumerican Society for Testing and Materials Committee E-30 on Forensic Sciences
AFDAA (Chairperson 2004-200%)

Association for Crime Scene Reconstruction

SAFS

LAFS ( Editor of Managram, the official publication of LAFS - July 1994 1o May 1998, President
- 1980, Vice President - 198%)

LASCI

OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Analyzed evidence and issued a report in the 1991 La. State Police investgation of the
September &, 1933 assassination of 1. . Senatar Huey P. Long.
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Contributing author to the Forensic Medicine Sowrcebook, edited by Annemarie S, Muth.

One of several technical advisors to the non-fiction books 8lood and DNA Evidence, Crime-
Selving Science Experiments by Kenneth G. Rainis, 0./, Unmasked, The Trial, The Truth, and
the Media by M.L.Rantaia and Pocket Partner by Dennis Evers, Mary Miller, and Thomas
Glover.

One of several technical advisers to the fictional books Crusader s Cross by Jarnes Lee Burke,
Company Man by Joseph Finder, Savage Arf by Danielle (tirard, and Bones in the Backyard by
Florence Clowes and Lois ). Blackburs,

Featured on the “Without a Trace™ and "Through the Camera's Eye™ episodes of The New
Detectives 1elevision show that first aired on the Discovery Channel, May 27, 1997 and June 11,
2002,

Featured on the “No Safe Place™ epistde of Forensic Files that first sired on Court TV, January
3, 2007.

Recipient of the second Young Forensic Scientist Award given by Scientific Sleuthing Review.
Formerly a columnist for Seuthern Lawman Magazine.

Authored and managed two federal grants that awarded the La. State Police Crime Lab $147.000
ard $237,660 1o set up and develop a DNA laboratory.

A member of the La. Stale Police Crime Lab's ASCLD-LAB accreditation preparstion
committee.

Featured in the books The Bore Lady: Life as a Forensic Anthropelogist by Mary Manhein, Rope
Burns by Robest Scott, Smilin Acres: The Angry Victim by Chester Pritchett, An Invisible Man by
Stephanie A. Stanley, and Saff Targets, A Woman's Guide to Survivel by Detective Michael L.
Vamado.

Featured on an episode of Split Screen that first aired on the Independent Film Channel, May 31,
1599,

Featured a5 a character on the “Kirstin Lobato Case” episode of Cruifty or fnnoceni? that first
aired on the Discovery Channel, April 1, 20085.
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CURRICULUM VITAE

JOHN E. HIATT, PHLD.

]
EDUCATION

Occidental College, Los Angeles, California
A. B. Degres with honors in chemistry.

Yale University Graduate School, New Haven , Connecticut
Ph.D. in organic chemistry.

POSTDOCTORAL Mmq

of Chemistry, Stanford University
Stanford, Californja 94304
Position: Postdoctoral Research Fellow in
Crgunic Chemistry

Clinical Laboratory, University of Califomia
Medical Center, San Francisco, California 94122
Position: Postdoctoral trainee in Clinical Chemistry

EMPLOYMENT

Quest Diaganstics, formerly known as Associated
Pathologists Laborstorics and American Medica)
Laborztories, 4230 So, Bursham Ave., Suite 250,

Las Vegae, NV 391159,

Fosition; Forensic Chemist: Responsible for Analytical
Protocols, Date Review, Clisnt Consultation snd

Expert Testimony. Solution of techoical problems in

all areas of the Inboratory.

Valley Clinical Laboratoties, 74-040 El Pages,

Palm Desert, CaA 92260,

Pesition: Clinical Chemist and Assistamt Labaratory
Direcior - Responsibie for methods, instnimentation
and quality contro!l.

OTHER

Qualified as an expert witness in the Distict Courts of
Clark, Douglaa, Elko, Lyon, Nye and Washoe Counties
of the State of Nevada on the subject of analyses of drugs
aryl zlcohol in Biological fhuids and interpretation of same.

193551963

1963-1 968

1968-1970

1971.1973

1976 - Pressnt

1973-1975
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QUEST DIAGNOSTICS INCORPORATED

Netna:tohn E Histt PhD.

FORENSIC LABORATORY
STATEMENT OF QQUALIFICATIONS

Date: 04/17/06

Title: Forsnsic Chemist

b
+

.
Ipaftution Dites Attendad Major
Oceldwrini Las Angeles, CA, 1943 Chemisiry AS
Pn.L.
— Location Dates

Poatdociorsl Resedreh Fellow in Organic | Department of Chemistry, Stantorg | 1966-1070

Chemistry u i

Posidoctoral tratnae in Cilmical Chemisiry | Clinical Laborstory, Univeraity of $871-1973

Califomia Medical Cenar

and interpeaiation of sicohol

Expert Witness lo leatify reganding the snetvslg
and gorrirofod
Subsiances in sciogical sampies
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PROFESSIONAL VITA
BARRY T. BATES
PRESIDENT PROFESSOR EMERITUS
Human Performance & Wellness, Inc, University of Oregon
3265 Chambers Street, Suite 200 Eugene, Omgon 97403- | 240
Eligene, Oregon 97405-6004 e-mail: hpwidimail.com
{541) 683-1935; (702} 450.3838 www. hpwhigmcchanics.com

EDUCATION

Princeton University; Princeton, NJ; 1960: B.S.E.

East Stroudsburg State Collage; East Stroudsburg, PA; 1970; M.Ed,

Indiana University; Bloomington, IN; 1973; Ph.D.
*Undergradyate Major Area: Engineering
*Graduate Major Area: Human Performance: Biomechanics/Kinesiology
*Graduate Minor Area: Motor Learming, Computer Science, Statistics and Design

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2000- Adjunct Professar: University of NevadaLas Vegas; Las Vegas NV
1597- Professor Emeritus: University of Cregon; Eupene, OR
1996 President: Human Performance & Weliness, Ine.: Eugene, OR

19851596 Professor: University of Oregon; Ditector: Biomechanics Laboratory; Engene, OR
195 ] - | 996 Head: Dept. of Exercise and Movemem Science; University of Ovegon; Eugene, OR

1984- President: BioDynamics Foundation; Eugene, OR

198400 Vice President: Rio-Dyramics Corporation; Eugene, OF

1982-84 Founder, President; Bic-Dynamics Corporation; Senior Scientist: Eugene, OR
1979-§5 Associate Professor: University of Oregon; Director: Biomechanics Lab; Evgene, OR
1974-79 Assistunt Professor; Liniversity of Oregen; Direcior: Biomechanics Lab; Eugene, OR
1973-714 Assistant Prafessor; University of Massachusetts; Amhersi, MA

1970-73 Graduate Student; Indiang University; Bloomington, IN

196%-70 Disecior of Athietics: Blair Academy; Blairstown, M)

1964-70 Teacher of Mathcmatics: Blair Academy, Head Caach, Footbsll; Blairstown, M)

1 363-64 Teacher of Mathematics: Randor High School, Assistart Cosch; Wayne, PA

196063 Offecer: ULS. Navy

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

American Academy of Kinesiology and Physical Education

American Alliance for Health, Physical Edugation, Recreation and Dapce
American Board of Forensic Examiners

American Collepe of Sports Medicine

American Society for Tasting and Muterials

Armenican Society of Biomechanics

Human Factors and Ergonemics Society

International Society of Biomechanics

Iniematicnal Secigty for Biomechanics in Spors

Society of Automotive Enginesrs

B.T. Bates, B.5.E, PL.C.




SELECTED HONORS AND PROFESSIONAL RECOGNITION

Visiting Professar, Swiss Federal Institute of Technolegy, Zurich, Swizertand, September, 1979,

Member, American Colloge of Sports Medicine Committes on Intemational Relatiens Delegation to the Soviet
Union, Moseow, U5.5.R,, October, 1979,

Invited Lecturer, Division of Sports Medicine, American Academy of Orthopedic Surgeons, "Biomechanics of
Running: New Concepts”, San Francisen, CA, 1979,

[avited Lecturer, American Orthopedic Fool Saciety, Inc., Tweifth Arnual Meeting, Biomechanics of the Fool
and Shoe Selection”, New Orleans, LA, 1982,

Keynote Address, Internationa! Symposium of Biomechanics Aspects of Sponts Protective Equipmenl,
"Testing and Fvaluation af Running Shoes”, Watetlog, Ontario, Canada, |983.

Regipienl, Runner's Warld "Sportsmedicine All-Star Team”, One of 25 intemations! sporls medicine experts
nzmed by peers for "coninbuticns to the physical and emotional health of elite athictes and
recneational runners, and to rapidly advancing sports medicine and knowledge”, 1584,

laviled Participant, NASA Glove Workshop, Sponsar: NASA Tach. Applications Team, Houston, TX, 1985,

Elected Member, American Academy of Kinesiology and Physical Education, 1386.

Visiting Prafessor, Bejjing Institute of Physical Education, Beijing. People’s Republic of China, July, 1983

Lifetime Member, Presiden!'s Associatrs, University of Oregon, 1992,

Keynote Speaker, International Society of Biomcchanics in Eports, "Individus! Accommodation Strategies ta
Running and Lending Impact Forces”, Amberst, MA, 1953,

Invited Lecturer, Biomechanics Academy Symposium, "Lower Extrernity Functian: Injury and Performance
Factors”, Portland, OR, 1995.

Invited Speaker, Intemnational Conferencs on Women, “Lower Extremity Function Durirg Running and
Larding™ and *Landing Models: Evalustion of Elie Volleyball Players”, Alexandria, Epypt, 1995

Invited Speaker, American College of Sports Medicine, “Biomechanics of Running™, Cincinnati, OH, 1996.

Invited Speaker, American College of Sports Medicine, “The Value of the [ndividual in the Research
Paradigm: Single Sebject Methadolopy™, Cincinnati, OM, 1996,

Invited Speaker, Eighth National Measurement and Evalugiion Symposium, “Experimental and Statistical
Design lssues in Human Movement Research™, Corvallis, OR, 1856,

Selected as member of ASICS Intemational Spont Science and Sports Medicine Forum, 1996.

Certified, Feliaw of the American Bosrd of Foransic Examiaers, 1997.

Recipicnt, Rirk B. Glassow Award, Caniributions in Applied Biomechanics, Biomechanics Academy, 1999,

Keynots Speaker, Austratasian Podiatry Conference, Methven, New Zealand. 1999,

Invited Participant, Oregon State Bar Convention, “Using Expert Witnesses 1w Win", Seaside, OR, 1999,

Scholar Lecturey, Texas Tech Univ, “The Hows and Whys of Lower Extremity Injury”, Lubbock, TX, 2001,

Scholar Lecturer, University of Nevada Las Vegas, “individua) Accommodation to Ranning Injury™, Las
Yegas, NY, 2002

Hail of Fame Inductes, Muhlenberg High School, Reading, PA, 2002,

RESEARCH, PUBLICATIONS, PRESENTATIONS

Actively invoived in research in the areas of human performance (biomechanics and human Eactors) For 25
years, resulting in more than 120 academic publications and 200 presentations.

Devetoped the Biomechanics Laboratory and co-developed the Biomechanics/Sports Medicine Labaratery,

Organized an interdisciplinary research team snd was primary administrator for laboratory granis in sxcess of
one miltlon doflars. For a comprehensive listing, please see bip:/idadkwine vorep /~bi ¥i

B.T. Band, B.S.E, PRD),

NNDGRY




ORDR

PALM LAW FIRM. LTD.

ATRICAPALL €50 "o Do
A T

1212 CASING CENTER BLVD. CLERKOF THE COUR

LAS VEGAS. NV 89104 St 20200

Phone: (702) 366-9113

Fax: (702) 386-9114
Emaif: Egl,%] ich .galm!%gmgil,mm BY chxi’ Qwuﬂw
Altorney for Brian O CARGL DONAHOO, DEFUTY
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C250630
Plaintiff, DEPT NO. X\ Oecoenmsy ~ — ———

e
" DATE: mn;&m“

BRIAN K. O’KEEFE, TIME: | ﬂ”ﬂwmmmm

Defendant.
ORDER GRANTING REGUEST FOR TRANSCRIPTS

This matter having come at the ex parte request of counsel for the Deferidant,
Pafricia Palm, Esq., of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., the matter having been fuily reviewed, and
good cause appearing therefor,

IT {5 HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's request for transcripts |
GRANTED. The Court Racorder Michelle Ramsey, shall have fifieen (15) days from th
date of this Order in which to prepare, file and serve the parties st State axpensa with
copy of the transcripts from the following hearing dates in the above-captioned matter:

Saptember 16, 2010 trial setting

January 13, 2011 motions hearing

January 18, 2011 calendar call

January 20, 2011 confinued calendar calt, motions

DATED this (7C¥ay of January, 2011.




PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.
1242 Casino Canter Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Attornay for Dafandant




: @ & /b
I FILEDZ

3 G\NALFH Y 2100y
4 OR\ ‘,%T.—._. I:r: J";E'.Jtﬂ A 1_‘-
CLERY .« :o ‘“:;{'.:‘-
5 DISTRICT COURT
) COUNTY, NEVADA ATRAN \
CLARK Rexorders Tramenip? of Hasring
? bt

T

8 || THE STATE OF NEVADR,

9 CASE NO. C250630
1 |[Praintits,

DERT, XVIT
11 s,

1z |[|BRIAN KERRY O’ KEEFE,
13 || D=fendant .

4

Tt T B s gt Bt et Bt o e

15 BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHAEL P. VILLANI, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
16 TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2011

W RECORDER ‘S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:

14 CALENDAR CALL

18 | APPERRANCES:

a8 For the State; CHRISTOPHER LALLI, ESQ.,

Chief Deputy District Attorney
ELIZABETH A. MERCER, ES0.,
Deputy District Attorney

21

22
= For the Defepndant: PATRICIA PRIM, ESQ.,
24
Ay
% | RECORDED BY: MICHELLE L. RAMSEY, COURT Em%‘{;ﬂe’ N
!
qtt
§1H&




10

11

i2

13

14

15

16

17

18

13

20

21

23
24

25

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; TUESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2011

[Proceeding commenced at B:38 a.m.]

THE COURT: Brian O’Xeefe. Mr. O'Keefe ig present in custody,
Ms. Palm. WM™r. Lalli,.

MS. PALM: Morning.

THE COURT: Morning. Time set for Calendar Czll,

MR. LALLI: We're ready, Your Honor.

M5. PALM: Your Honor, we don’t know whether we can be ready
or not because ocur readiness depends on the putcome of the motions
that are set for Thursday,

THE COURT: Okay. Well, are you anncuncing ready assuming --

MS. PALM: No. I'm saying that depending on how the Court
rules on Thursday, we may be seeking a Writ to the Nevada Supreme
Court, so I can't announce ready at this time because T don’'t know
if we're going to be able to go forward or not.

THE COURT: I don’'t know if you can get a stay in time to
stop the trial for Monday if you didn’'t -- if you attempted to get
a Writ. I know there‘s a motion for new triazl, motion to dismiss,
violation of double jecpardy. I think a motion for --

ME. LALLI: Bad acts.

THE COURT: -~ bad acts, I have -- I mean, I just glanced at
them because they‘re on for Thursday that’s why --

MR. LALLI: I can’t see the Supreme Court interposing a stay

tor any of those -- any ruling that the Court might offer so I
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don't see that as a reason as not setting this to go,

THE COURT: Well, if -- if I rule against you on the motions,
like I said Y have not reviewed them more than a cursory glance, if
I rule -- if I deny the motions are you saying you would be -- you
would not be ready to go to trial?
MS. PALM: That's correct. We’ll be seeking a stay and we
will be petitioning --

THE COURT: EBut besides the stay --

MS. PALM: -- for a Writ.

THE COURT: -- beaides the stay, would you be ready? HNo,
‘cause I'm not going -- more than likely I will not grant the stay.

OKay.

MS. PALM: Your Homeor, I'm telling you that I don’t kpow if I
can be ready because what witnesses we're going to need, what
investigation we might need to do depends on the cutcome of your
ether rulings.
THE COURT: My guestion is if I rule against you, okay, so I

deny your motions --

Mz, PALM: Yeas.

THE COURT: -- are you ready to go to trial cn Monday? I
understand you're going to file a Writ. Okay, and that's your

right and I respect that. Okay.

ME. PAILM: Okay.

THE COURT: But are you ready to go?

M5. PAIM: If you ruled against us on all the motions, we

N2
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would not be ready because we would need to do further
investigation that we at this point have had no reason to do. So
that’s why I‘m saying I can't announce ready,

THE COURT: Right. Well, then --

M5. PALM: If you rule in our faver, we will be.

THE COURT: I understand. Well, that’s going to affect cne
of your -- part of your motions saying for delay of getting him to
trial. You're telling me that if I rule against you, you will not
be ready to go and this trial will have go be bumped.

MS. PRLM: Well, Your Honor, the dalay would have been caused
by the State, so it affects it in a way that it is even further
reason te bring our motion to dismiss for speedy trial violation.

THE COURT: MWell, I don't grant motions for judicial ECOoOnomy .
Well, I'm just going to trail this calendar call and if in another
case iz -- if I have to set another case and that’s going to
prevent this case from going next week,

MR. LALLI: Well, Your Honor, because there is a speedy trial
invocation im this case -- well, I gquess it would be the defense
who's moving -- would be moving to continue, so that -- that would
kind of settle that issue.

THE COURT: 1Is that correct, Ms, Palm? So if I deny the
mOLions, you are moving to continue the trial?

MS. PALM: TIf you deny the motion, we will be -- if you deny
all of our motions, we will be requesting a stay.

THE COURT: I'm not -- I got that, but --
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MS. PALM: Right.

THE CCURT: -- you have to go up to the Supreme Court and
Lhey have to grant the stay within ‘cause your motions are on
Thursday. You have to get something out Thursday afterncon.
Assuming they rule on Friday which I can't envision that, but on
Thursday if I deny your motions just so I know you’'ll be moving to
Stay?

M3, PAIM: Yes,

THE COURT: I mean, moving te continue?

MS. PALM: @Well --

THE COURT: I understand you want the Writ. T understand you
want the motion to be granted. I'm not saying they won't be. If I
deny the motions, Thursday you’'re going to move to continue the
Erial?

M3. PALM: I would say that it‘s a State caused continuance,
but yes I would be telling the Court I would not be ready to go and
we would have to resetr it,

THE COURT: T understand. You're chocsing your words
carefully and I understand where you're coming from. I just want
to make sure.

All right, we’ll just pass this calendar call to
Thurgday and just go from there.
MS. PALM: Thank you.
THE COURT: All right.

MR. LALLI: Thank you,

R nQ2a7
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THE COURT: Thank you.
THE CLERK: January 20, 8:15.

[Proceeding concluded at 8:43 a.m.]

* ¥ % w K

ATTEST: I hereby certify that I have truly and correctly
transcribed the audic/video proceedings in the above-entitled case
to the best of my ability,

Court Recorder/Transcriber
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; THURSDAY, JANUARY 13, 2011

{Froceeding commenced at 9:07 a.m.]

THE COURT: 2506730, Brian O'Keefe. Mr. 0O'Keefe is presentc in

3 |[custedy. Ms. Palm. Mr. Lalli coming up.

M3. PALM: Good morning, Your Honor.
7 THE COURT: Defendant’'s motion to preclude the State from
8 Yintroducing at trial improper evidence and argument .,

9 M3. PALM: Your Honor, would you like us to take this one at
10 la time? There's five different arquments or how would you -- how

would you like to do it?

12 THE COURT: No. Just hit your points and --

MS. PALM:

Ckay.

THE COUORT: +«- I‘ve reviewed the motions.

15 MS. PALM: Okay. With respect to the first arqument that the

16 || State should be precluded from introducing evidence or argument to

17 |{ghow that Victoria Whitmarsh testifjed against Q‘Keefe in the pricr

t8 || felony case. It's one.thing, Your Honor, teo say that she was the
19 Jinamed victim in that case, that he was convicted of the offense
20 ||againat her. It‘s another thing when the Progecutor argues that
21 |{she testified against him for battering her previcusly; that she
22 || stood right here in the courtroom like this when she testified

23 |fagainst him which is simply not true. Tt's presenting a false

24 lllight on the evidence when her testimony was actually recanting.

And you know we're not challenging that judgment of
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conviction, but again the jury should not be given a false
impression of what her testimony actually was. And I think that,
you know, for us te say that she recanted to impeach Cheryl Morris
‘cause Cheryl Morris says that's a whole motive of -- for O'Keefe
te be mad at her. He's mad at her because she testified against
him and sc he wants to kill her: that's Cheryl Morris' testimony.

We should be able to impeach that without copening the
door to anything else and even with a limited instruction saying
you know that the fact she recanted can only be used to impeach
Cheryl Morris and not te challenge the judgment of conviction:
that‘s fine,

The State also should not be allowed to present
evidence that she teatified against him and characterized it asg --
in that manner because that’'s just false,

THE COURT: But at the -- in his first conviction, not
relating to this case.

ME. PALM: Right.

THE COURT: She recanted in trial, but did she testify
differently at a preliminary hearing or before the grand jury?

M3. PALM: That I don‘t know. I only know her trial
testimony.

THE COURT: BSo at trial she said he did nothing to me, but
bring me flowers and candy; is that --

MS. PALM: She --

MR, LALLI: Mo, that’'s not what she zaid.

- 10297
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THE COURT: Okay,
MR. LALLI: The transcripts attached. She -- she‘s the cone
who called the police. She minimized. And, you know, we can get

into this little semantics game. She did teatify. She didn’t.

The fact of the matter is the Defendant knows that she
testified against him because she tald -- he told Cheryl Morris I'm
going to kill that biteh for taking three years of my life. So
however they want to paint it today, years after the fact, he knew
the import of this woman testifying against him at the trial.

THE COURT: I remember that now.

Ckay. Next item, Ms, Palm.

MS. PALM: The next item is Cheryl Mgrris' expanded testimony
that was actually introducing bad acts. We want to preclude all
that. Cheryl Morris testified at the preliminary hearing. She
testified at the prior trial and she gave a statement.

For the first time at the last trial she testified that
O'Keefe actually killed people. 5She didn’'t previgusly state --
state that in any of her testimony. She said that he showed her
how to could kill people and Mr. Smith, when he was arguing that
the State should be able to use that evidence, argued that it was
relevant te show his gkill because he was rrained by the military.
Mot that he had killed people, Having killed people iz incrediply
prejudicial. It’s an obviocus bad act and the State should not be
allowed to go thera.

If the Court’'s geing to alleow them still to use Cheryl
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Morris’ testimony at all, T think she -- she turned out to be vary
incredible at the last trial, T don’'t know if the Court remembers
that, but she actually is the ane that testified that she had a
casual relationship with O'Keefe and that she admits on Crogs that
she bought a car with him, she shared a bank adccount with him and
she actually went to his work crying when he left her.

52, she -- she turned out to be very incredible in her
testimony, but alsc going back to her expanding her testimony at
the last trial, she alsc testified that O'Keefs was kicked cut of a
Lrailer which 1s just bad acts conduct; it’s not relevant to
anything. It tends tc show he's a bad character: that he yelled at
Cheryl Morris or that he stated he yelled at Cheryl Morris; that's
4 bad act. We didn’t have any notice of that and thatr's not
relevant.

That she -- that she slept behind a locked door when
the two of them split up. Mr. talli did point out in his
oppesition that she did testify to that at the prior trial. I
didn’t -- I did not recall that, but I still think it should be
excluded. I think it tends to show that she thought O'Keefe was
dangerous which is just not relevant to this case and it’s overly
prejudicial.

She testified at the last trial for the first time that
4 week before the incident, he was calling her asking her to meet
with him which indicates that he was going to cheat on Victoria

Whitmarsh. Again, it's speculative and incredible. She never
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menticned it before even though she's given, you know, ohe
Statement, two prior testimenies.

And then she testified that at the last trial that he
demonstrated a different way of killing pecple which is slicing
them across the neck. She never said that in her statement to
pelice. She didn‘t state it at the preliminary hearing. She
didn’'t say that at the prier trial. Yeou know, again that's
incredible. She keeps expanding her testimony every time she
testifies and the State shouldn't be allowed to keep adding to what
she's got to say given that none of it could be proved heyond clear
and -- proved by clear and convincing evidence since it‘s ever
changing.

ME. LALLT: Your Honor, the problem is with -- with retrials,
every time a witness hits the stand there are goeing to be minor
inconsistencies, Every time that a witness gives a statement to
the police, there are going to be inconsistencias. The witness
will remember things, The Court may recall the six-week trial that
we were all in on a capltal case where a particular witness ang I
know Ms. Palm might not be privy to this, but it's -- you had a
witness who had given multiple statements to the poelice. Had
testified ip multiple hearings and Mr. Sgro did a crogs-examination
that lasted most of the day; that's just the very nature of someone
giving multiple statements to the police,

There’s going to be incoensistencies; that's a matter of

croge-examination. That’s not & matter of execlugion. This ig Ehe
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third time now that the defense has tried to exclude this evidence,
the third time., And as I‘ve done in my wotion, as I've indicated
just every single time that Cheryl Morris has testified to these
things.

We've never suggested that Mr. O‘Keefe is a murderer or
that he has murdered somecne before. Every singles reference to his
killing including in the last trial was in the context of his
military service; every single ons of them. So to try to now
reattack thia as being my goodness, overly prejudicial is just
ludicrous.

The fact that somebody yelled iz not a bad act; that's
just life. The fact that -- that a door was locked incidentally
Cheryl Morris had testified to that multiple times. S0, there’'s
nothing in her -- and there is a reference to Ms. Palm says that
while she testified about a phone call that the Defendant made to
her just before Victoria was murdered, there's actually a reference
to that in ber voluntary statement. The First veluntary statement
that she gave to the police, it was never really clarified, but
through pretrial conferences with her we were able to clarify that
and then ultimately elicited at the trial, so the Court has rule on
this,

In fact, in the laszt -- in the last -- before the last
trial, there was an attempt to try to exclude this evidence which
the Court denied. So, nothing is really changed. I think that the

same ruling should apply.
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THE COURT: Mr. Lalli, let me get a better understanding on
the issue of the relevancy of the fact that Ms. Morris slept behind

She had to lock herself in a bedroom.

a4 Cclosed door.

ME. LAIILI: The relevance of that?

THE COURT:

Right.

MR, LALLI: Well, the relevance is -- is how this man treats

women. The -- it's relevant to intent. It‘s relevant to motive,
What you'll find is and we even argued how he treated Theresa
Keiger [phonetic] during the -- the interview, fTheresa Keiger
[phonetic] was the homicide detective. How he kept referring to
her as yocung lady, young lady; things of that nature.

It's -- dit’'s -- it‘s relevant for his motive, his
intent, how he perceives women in general. And she’'s testified to
this numerous times; that she slept behind a closed door. It's
also relevant because at the time of the murder, it's pretty clear
this Defendant and Victoria Whitmarsh, were although living under
the same roof, living separately,

The Court may recall that the -- there was a couch that
wag made up as a bed in the living room, so they'rs sleeping apart

at -- at the same time. And the police had to come in and allow --

well,

that might be a different case.

THE COURT: You have too many cases?

MR. LALLI: Well, possikle.

THE COURT: And the issue that he was kicked cut of the

trailer; can you address that again?y
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MR. LALLI: It’s -- it’s not a point of consequence in
explaining something Cheryl Morris mentioned that. Tt’s - it's
not a point -- ic's simply not a point of -- of contentions.

THE COURT: Well, Me. Palm was gaying that this just puts him
in a bad light and that‘s her objection, I think -- I think that'g
her obhjection.

MR. LALLI: That he was kicked cut of the trailer and he was
charged with a murder case, I don't see how those --

THE COURT: Well --

MR. LALLI: -- things are -- T don't see how something like
that enters the guilt eguation quite henestly. 1It‘s not something
that we intend to elicit. If the Court doesn’t want us to elicit
it, we'll do cur kest not tooa, but -- but T just don't s=e it am --
48 a matter of conmequence in the case.

THE COURT: Well, you know, on relevant Eestimony is that the
testimony tends to prove the truth of the charges and the fact that
he was kicked out for whatever reason T don’t -- Beparate trailers,
relevance -- I'm reconsidering my previous ruling. The issue of
Kicked ocut of the trailer, T'm going to direct the State to
admonish Ms. Morris that she's not to provide that testimony.

And also, Mr. Lalli, for further consideration the
issue that she slept behind closed doors. If it was Ms, Whitmire
[phonetic] who slept behind closed doors on a reqular basiz because
she had a fear could be a different gstory. 5o those two items

slept behind closed doors and that he was kicked out of the traiier
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will be excluded at the -- at the third trial. The State is
directed to admonish Ms, Morris not to discuas those items and
perhaps we’ll do it before she testifies, so it's outside of the
presence of the jury panel.

M5. PAIM: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ©On all of the other isgues, Ms. Palm, if she's
given numercus statements and expanded on the statements, those are
aregs of impeachment on your part.

MS. PALM: Okay. Did the Court want to address the first --
go back and address the first issue or do You want to wait until
the e=nd?

THE COURT: Well, on that issue there regarding the prior
testimony, I‘m going to deny your motion on that issue.

And the issue of that the State referred to your
expert, he was paid thousands and thousands of dollars, I think
that's permissible argument, &And I know there's a Nevada Supreme
Court case where you can't -- I mean, it was a doctor from
California and an attorney referred to him as someone from the hot
tub capital in Supreme Court.

MR. LALLI: Hired gun frem hot tub country.

THE COURT: Something like that and the Supreme Court found
that inappropriate, but to merely state he was paid ten thousand
dollars for his testimony is proper impeachment and so --

MS. PAIM: And that’'e not my only argument with -- with

respect to that though, Your Honor, He did argue last time that

10
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Schiro was the Defendant‘s highest paid expert from Louisiana and
that Dr. Grey'came all the way from Utzh to tell us that he could
not rule cut suicide. Those are appealing to regionalism. They're
appealing to biases against outsiders. They're inappropriate.
They're like the hot tub county argument. And he's talking about
the high paid expert again; that's inappropriate argument and I‘'m
seeking to preclude them from doing that.

And also part of the argument was that it's not fair
for them to refer to the cumulative cost here because last time --

THE COURT: I'm sorry, the cumulative --

M5. PALM: -- the cumulative cost --

THE COURT: I juat didn’t hear you that’s all. Ckay.

M3. PALM: -- for these experts because last time he arqued,
you know, Schirc was paid over ten thousand dellars to come in herse
and say this to you, but that’s the fault of having three trials
now. It's going to probably be fifteen, sixteen thousand deollars.
And that's nmot fair to Mr. O‘'Keefe because with the amount of money
going up, it sounds like we’'re Paying this guy an awful lot of
money and then Mr. Lalli wants to argue that he‘s saying what he's
saying because he‘s getting paid so much money., It's not Mr,
C'Keefe’'s fault that were on the third trial right now.

So it's not fair for the cost to keep raising and him
to be able to make that argument based on the cumulative cost of
retaining his expert. He should be able to ask about the coat for

this trial periecd.
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M. LALLI: Well, it -- all ¢f that could be cured on cross-
examination; all of it, How much money -- it's interesting because
it -- it almost weighs in my favor the fact that here we go yet
ancther trial, we‘re using the szame expert, It creates even more -
- my argument was it’'s a business venture for this expert because
all of his businesses through the Special Public Defender-s Office
which is5 true,

This case criginated in the Special Public Defender --
Defender's Office. Ms, Palm worked in the Special Public
Defender’'s Office at the time, s¢ all of that could be cured with
through cross-examination, wWell, you testified previcusly and your
testimony was the same then, It‘s the same now. It centinues tao
be the same. ‘They can fix that.

This argument with respect to regicnalism, that's z new
ona. l've never heard that. And, in fact, if that were true we
call Dr. Benjamin to testify, He was dactually a resident of
California, 8o, gosh, you know, that really doesn't work either.

We're allowed to impeach the credibility of witnesses.
If they’'re some suggestion that Mr. Schirc who comes in with, in my
opinion, ridiculous theories that maybe there might be some
financial motivation for him not to perjure himself. and I've
never called him & perjurer or a liar in Court. I‘ve never imputed
him personally, but I'm certainly allowed to arque the bias
agsociated with his testimony. And there’s absolutely nothing

wrong in the manner in which those arguments were made.
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THE COURT: How’'s the State going to argue or present to the
doctors that you have now been paid let's say thirty thousand
dollars ‘cause basically ten thousand per trip here, without the
trip -- they might guestion why are you testifying three separate

cimes.

MR, LALLT: Previcus hearings associated with the case; that

happens all the time.

THE COURT: Ms. Palm, anything further?

MS. PRLM: Well, he -- he did argue last time that it
impugned his credibility. Like he said he was paid ten thousand
dollars to walk in this courtroom and say what he did. His total

bill was over ten thousand dollars and when someone is getting that
kind of money, do you think they might extend themselves a litele

bit? That’s his argqument and that's why we’re hiased by them being
able to refer to the cumulative cost when it’s not Mr. O'Keefe's
fault.
And we're not telling the jury that there’s been prigox
trials, so they’re going to think he's been paid that much money

for this one case.

ME. LALLI: There's prior hearings. I'm sure like I did with
the last trial, I‘m sure I will attack his credibility based upon
inconsistencies in his testimony like I did last time, so they’'re
going to know there’'s prior hearings,
THE COURT:

i'm going to allow the testimony. Just make sure

he refers to his prior hearings and as a total of prior hearings
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you've been paid twenty thousand dollars or whatever the amount. I
think its appropriate impeachment.

Nexk issue, Ms. Palm.

MS. PALM: The next issue --

THE COURT: And I don't see any regionalism that someone came
from Leulsiana or Utah. Mr. Lalli is not attacking somecne well we
have this expert from the Bayou or something like that; that would
be inappropriate the same aa hot tub capital.

M3. PALM: The next issue was to preclude them from arguing
and introducing evidence relating to domestic violence eyndromes,
effects or the dynamics of domestic viclence in general or trying
Eo kind of get the jury in finding the cause of domestic viclence.
They did some of that quegstioning about domestic violence during
Jury selection last time and the Court ruled that they couldn't
talk about syndromes or defining that term. They couldn’t talk
about, vou know, the whole community problem and because thak's
improper.

And then in closing argument, they made several
references to domestic violence. Xind of thecries and what
domestic violence is about. And theres not evidence admissible
here for the -- to show that Mr. O'Keefe had the character trait of
an abuger. The prior felony was only admitted and it’s suppased to
be with limiting instruction to show that there was intent in this
case or malice in this case because this is now a second degree.

And 50 Lo argue about domestic violence in general iz improper.

T4
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And we also, I‘m sure the Court's probably aware, we
have motions set for next -- for the 20" which is two days after
calendar call on the whole domestic violence issue.,

THE COURT: I'm net --

MS. PAIM: Okay.
THE COURT: =-- I'm not aware of it until a couple of days --

M5. PAIM: Well, they noticed --

THE

COURT: -- right.
M5. PAIM; -- a domestic viclence expert who is allegedly
going to come in and teatify about syndromes or battered weman
syndrome. I filed a motion to preclude their expert and then I
filed a motion based to dismiss this case based on double jeopardy.

They filed a motion to admit other bad acts and those

are all going to be heard on the 20°®, so I'm not sure if the Court

wants to deal with this now.
THE CQURT: ©n the issue of domestic violence, I’'11 defer
that until we have the hearing on the other motion.
I would like the -- the ability, Ma. Palm, to review
motions four weeks in advanced. Some of our caseload ef two

thousand cases deesn't allow me to do that.

MS. PALM: So we'll move that one to the 20°" and then

Ckay.
number -- pumber 5 was the prior convictions for non - SUpport and
State and I are in agreement those are inadmissible.

THE COURT: State's not going to seek?

ME.

LALLI: That's correct. I mean, they -- it doesn't

12098
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appear that even though they're felonies in Ohio, they probably
don’'t need the statute here.
THE OOURT: Ckay, so that’'s excluded.
AY) right, we'll see you back next week.
MRE. LALLI: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

[Proceeding concluded at 9:26 a.m. ]
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{Proceeding commenced at 6:31 a.m. ]

MR. LALLT: Good morning, Your Honor, Christopher Lall:.

THE COORT: C250630, Brian O'Heegfe. Mr. O'Keefe's present
with Ms, Palm. Mr. Lalli for the State. This is a status check on
Dr. Benjamin’s availability; is that what -- that's what it says on
the calendar,

MR. LAILLI: No. It's just on for resetting.

THE COURT: That's what I thought. I don't know why this is
ocn here.

MR. LALLI: Just with respect to that issue, Your Honor, we
had previocusly noticed Dr. Dutra [phonestic] and the defense said --
had oppesed that. The Court ultimately ruled we could call him,

We didn't call him, but I want to put the defense on notice and I
have previously that we certainly reserve the right to call him in
the future,

THE COURT: All right. They can file a motion to exclude in
the future ag well. OCkay,

All right, just for a new trial setting; is that where
we're at?

MS. PALM: Yes. We need to set the trial, Judge,

THE CTOURT: All right.

MS. PALM: And Mr, O'Keefe has always invoked his sixty-day

trial right. TIf it’s going to be a minute, Your Honor, can I
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approach?

THE CQQURT: Sure.

M3. PALM: And just for the Court’s information, we do want -
- we do want to set a speedy trial, but we are reserving our right
to pursue an extraordinary writ to the Revada Supreme Court; and if
we do that, we understand that it would chathge whatever date we
gec.

THE COURT; Okay. Unfortumately, through the rest of the
year it looks like I have all firm settings and numercus death
penalty cases.

{Collogquy between the Court and Clerk]

THE COURT: March date.

M3. PALM: And we would object to a March date because he
does have a sixty-day.

THE COURT: January -- I could put you in Januvary, but I have
older -- I have cases that are numercus weeks with firm settings,
the death penalty cases --

MR, LALLI: I have a death --

THE COURT: -- and they've been set for six months.

MR. LALLY: -- I have a death penalty case get on December
10", Your Honor, that‘s been continued before. I'm not sure what
the Court’s calendar is, but I'm certainly free beginning of
December.

THE COURT: ‘Cause I've got -- I‘1ll he out of the office for

a4 period of time. And, Ms. Palm, February is my civil cycle, e=o

? 329
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that’s why we can’t put you in February. I mean, I can have you
trail the case in January, but -- but if it doesn't -- if we put
you there and we have these other firm settings, then we're going

to push you back into May cor June.

M5. PALM;

Is the January case another in-custody?

THE COURT:

I’ve got the Lacy Thomas case which iz as far as

The 24" jis 3

I know will never negotiate and its three weeks.
death penalty case, a week and a half.

I‘m not sure it’'s

MS. NYIROQS: I think that‘s mine.

Judge,

going.

M3. PALM: Well, we would ask for as soon ag you can set us,

Judge .

THE COURT:

We can give you the 24™, but I mean there's
g

already a death penalty case szet.

MR. LALILTI: on what month?

on what day?

THE COURT:

January 24" is the start time.

Ms. NYIROS:

Ch, no. I'm sorry. I thought you were talking

Cotaber |

THE COURT: HNo. Schneider. It's a different case.

Mg.

Palm,

it's up to you.

MS. PAIM: We'll take the smoonest available.

COURT: Well --
PALM: Even 1f that means we trail.
COURT: Okay, we'll trail with the understanding it’s --

Is that the -- the 24" that’s trailing?

LALLI:
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THE CQURT: 1It's a Schneider case. It’'s a death penalty
case. I don't know who has that with your cffice.

MR. LALLI: I‘m not -- I'm not sure. I know I‘ve got a firm
setting on a case that's been continued multiple times on February
7", so I mean I would have to be -- Judge Mosley's continued this
Cage pumerous times and he’'s gquite adamant at the fact that it is
going on February 7™, so as long as the Court understands that I'm
not available beginning on that day.

THE COHIRT: That would --

MR. LALLI: If we --

THE CQURT: -- that’'ll give --

MR. LALLY: -

if we begin --

THE COURT: -- us two weeks.

MR. LALLI: Yeah, that should be more than encugh time.

THE COURT: &1l right.

THE CLERK: Calendar Call will be January 18™ at B8:15. Jury
Trial January 24 at 10 a.m,

THE COURT: COkay, Ma. Palm, you understand that you're
trailing a death penalty case,

MS. PALM: T do understand that, Your Honor. Do vou want to
give us & second date in case or should we just wait?

THE COURT: No. Just wait, You can -- I think Mr. Figler's
the attorney on that casa.

ME. LALLI: Ig the --

THE COURT: It's been continued three times.

n)2994




MR. LALLI: -- is the 24™ -- is the death penalty case, is

that set for the 24%° ag well?
THE COURT: Yes,
MR. LALLI: Okay. Very good.
MS5. PALM: Thank you, Your Honor.
All right.
Thank you.
You're welcoms.

[Proceeding concluded at 8:18 a.m.]

ATTEST: T hereby certify that I have truly and correctly

transcribed the audio/video Froceedings in the above-entitled case
Lo the best of my ability.
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LAS VEGARS, NEVADA; THURSDAY, JANUARY 20, 2011

[Proceeding commenced at 9:47 a.m.)

THE COURT: All right. Which -- Mr., Lalli, you said you're

handling -- we have the trial issue of double jecpardy, the State’s

notice of expert witness and speedy trial. Now you gaid Ms.

Mercer’s going to handle one of those or two of those issues?

MR. LAILTY: Well, the -- our bad acts motion and the

expertise she is going to handle.

THE COURT: Okay. Sc we can handle the other matters --

ME. LALLT; Yes.

THE COURT: -- while we'‘re waiting for her?

MR, LALLI:

Yes.

MS. PAIM: And, Your Honor, I want tc be forthright with the
Court before we get stavted because I realize it may affect your
decisions in some of this, but at this point just the way this case
hag progressed, Mr. Keefe -- 0'Keefe continues -- we‘re asking for
a continuance for the purpose of preparing a Writ.

And the reason for that is the whole double jeopardy
issue, you know, if that goes against us, but alsc some of the
other issues that came up in trial last time with jury instructions
and then the most recent ruling by thie Court on January 13,
I think that Mr. O'Keefe's been tried twice. He
doesn't feel like he’'s had a fair trial either time. And versus

risking going through ancther one whére he might come back for a

N029]
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fourth, he would like me to pursue a Writ to the Supreme Court and
get same of these things settled by the Court.

We 5till would like a rulings on the other things and T
realize that that might affect some of our argquments with respect
to the late timing of discovery and all that before this Court,; but
I wanted the Court to know that we are asking for that a short a
continuance for purposes of doing a Writ.

THE COURT; ©Okay. You had requested that last Court
appearance and I had denied that regquest.

M5, PALM: I didn’'t actually request it.

MR. LALLI: I think the reguest was for a Btay technically sg
that she could file a Writ --

THE COURT: Right.

MRE. LALLI: ~-- Your Heonor.

With respect to the continuance, I can jusc --

THE COURT: No. I'm not going to grant a continuance for the
seole purpose of filing a Writ wicth the Supreme Court,

MR. LALLI: Right. That would be our position as well. T
understand that if -- if the Court is inclined to grant some of the
bad act or all of the bad acts we’re recuesting, I think that is a
different situation with respect to the discovery issue that
apparently has evolved, so I think that’'s --

M5. PALM: And --

MR. LALLI: -- that's a different -- different esituatiomn.
MS. PRIM: -- and I would just like to make a little bit
3
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better record on that, I wasn't technically asking for a stay the

other day. I wasn't sure, you know, how it was going to go, but
the reason that I was not able toc do a Writ earlier was because we
didn’t even have the transcripts in this case until late November.
And just because of my trial schedule and calendar, it
tock me, you knew, December to get through reading the transcripts
and then I didn’'t really see a very strong basis that we should
proceed with the Writ with the Supreme Court versus get ready for
trial and Y can‘t do both. And then T didn't know until the 37¢
that they were geing to be asgking for their new expert. Ang I
didn’t know until the 7 that they were geing to be asking for
these other bad acts. And I didn't know until the 13** that they
were going to be able to introduce some of the bad act evidence
that they introduced last time., Seo, I just did not have time to
prepare a Writ earlier and that's why I'm asking for a guntinuance.
THE COURT: Rll right. And I had the motions here and I have
to tell you the -- the issues I have reviewed -- researched on this
matter dealt with the retrial, double jeopardy, expert and speedy
trial right vicolation. And for whatever confusion on my part, I
did not for whatever reason review the motions to admit evidence of
cther bad acts., I can review that and we can further argue thak at

perhaps 1:30 this afternoon.

All right, 8o let’s deal with the -- we’ll start --

first issue, Ms. Palm, was retrial as it violates double jeopardy.

M5, PAIM:

Court’s indulgence.




conviction where an acquittal was likely. Id. at 10-11. A hearing as to the
prosecutor’s intent is necessary if there exists a genuine issue in the mind of the
{rial court concerning the prosecutor'a intent. Id, at 12.

Improper advocacy that places prejudicial and inadmissible evidence befurj
the jury can create an unacceptsble riek of hiased jury deliberations and require
mistrial. Glover, 125 Nev, at __, 220 P.3d at 692. A defendant need not show
prejudice in order to properly invoke the double jeopardy bar. Washington, 434 U.8.
at 604 0.15, 98 8. Ct. at 829 n.15. The strictest scrutiny must be applied wherd
there is reascn to believe that the progecutor is using the superior resources of the
State to harass or achieve a tactical advantage over an accused. Id, at 507, 98 S. Gt
at 831-32.

To be brief, the instances of prosecutorial misconduct are more thoroughly
discussed in the Defense Motion to Dismiss. However, it is apparent from thel
prosecution’s conduct during the moat recent trial, that the prosecution was willing
to risk a mistrial so that it could improve its strategy in this case. For instance, tha
prosecutor alao made reference to Whitmarsh's bruising in varicus stages of healing
and argued thet thig indicated that she “had been roughly handled in an ongoi
bashing.” B/31/10 TT 155. The defense objected to this argument, the objection w
sustained, and the defense made a motion for mistrial based in part on thi
improper argument; however thia court denied the motion, Id. at 164, 169, This i

clearly & reference to inadmissible character evidence and ia especially prejudici
in light of the fact that the defenee had been limited from introducing evidence fro
ita witnesses to show that O'Keefe and Whitmarsh had a loving relationship in th
daya and weeks before the incident at issue. As with the notice problems during th
ariginal trial, the State gave no notice of its intent to rely on an ongoing domestid
abuge theory, There was likewise no evidence to support any claim of domestid
violence in the days and weeks before the incident. Indeed, the neighbors claimed
that there had never been any noise, and at the original trial, Hatheox testified that




they appeared to be a loving couple. Additionally, the evidence at trial cleariy
showed an innccent explanation might eéxiat for Whitmarsh's bruising, i.e. hen
physical condition combined with aleohol use and accidental bumping during the
TERCHE O ArTest proceas,

Prior to the first trial, the State indicated that it would not introd
evidence of domestic viclence, except for the prior conviction for felony battery, an
even that evidence was to be limited. 3/16/08 TT 2-3, 12. Despite the prior
of this Court, and the understandings of the parties, during the 2010 retrial, th
State repeatedly introduced the issue of domestic violemce as a paychologi

syndrome, a community problem and cause. For example, during voir dire,

State inquired of jurors whether they felt domestic violence was 1 “communit
problem.” The defense objected, and the Court ruled that the State could not talk
about domestic viclenice syndromes or define that term. 82310 TT {pa:tinﬂ

trangcript), p. 16.

In closing argument, the prosecutor stated, “dn aronvmous domestic violence
survivor once made this observation. If you can't be thankful for whot you have, be
thankful for what you have escaped.” 8/31/10 TT 32, In rebuttal closing argument,
the proeecutor argued, ‘7t was Ralph Waldo Emerson who seid all vislence, all ¢
12 dreary, oll that repels is not power. It is the absence of power. In batteri

Victoria in the hours leading up or the minutes leading up to her ultimate death,
defendant didn't show us what kind of power he has. He showed us how weak he is)
Men who beat women.” $31/10 TT 132, The prosecutor further argued ‘M
(hanovos who 13 the director of Voices against violence once said. . . eueryﬁhingc:.j
know. . . " A defense objection to this argument was sustained. The prosecutor
continued, “Everything we know about domestic violence is that it is about power
and controlling people.” 8731710 TT 161. The defense made a motion for mistri
based on this improper argument, id. at TT 165, but that motion was denied. I1d. s
168,

002901
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Counsel should not intentionally refer to or argue on the basis of facts outsida

the record, as deing eo can involve the risk of serious prejudice, with a migtrial as
poeaible remedy. Glover, 125 Nev. at __, 220 P.3d at 696. Here, it was misconduc
for the State to rely on psychological ayndromes, effects or dynamics of abuse o
domestic violence because there is no evidence which was admissible for th
purpese of showing that O'Keefe had the character traita of an abuser or tha
Whitmarsh had the character traits of a victim. Reliance on the dynamics o
abusive relationships to prove this case was improper. Additionally, it w
miscanduct for a prosecutor 10 appeal ta the conacience of the cornmunity or socie
concerns because the jurors’ only proper focus should be on whether the Stats ha
proved its charge., See Atkins v, State, 112 Nev, 1122, 1138-39, 923 P.2d 111
(1996) (Rose, J., concurring), overruled on other grounds by Berigno v. State, 12
Nev. 1068, 1078, 146 P.3¢ 265 (2006).

The prosecutor's conduct, whether misconduct or inexeusable nagligence,
preceding a mistrial must be subjected to the strictest scrutiny because "the Doubld
Jeopardy Clause . , , protect(s] a defendant agsinat gpovernmental actions intended
to provoke mistrial requests , , , [or] bad faith conduct . . . fthat] threatens the
(hjarasement of an aceuwsed.™ Glover 126 Nev. at __, 220 P.3d at 684 {quoting
Washipeton, 434 U.S. at 608). Such misconduct tends to frustrate the public
intereat in having a just judgment reached by an impartial tribunal and creates the
risk that the panel will be tainted. Washington, 434 U.S. at 512-12 98 S. Ct. af
834,

It is now abundantly clear from the newly methoda of the prosecution, that

the prosecutors introduced the above challenged evidence and argument with th
purpose of goading the defense into seeking a mistrial or tainting the jurors
coneideration of the legal evidence. The prosecution’s bad motive is demonatrate
in part by the fact that it now seeks to remedy one of its problems in the prior trial,
1.e., that it had not noticed any of the new bad acts avidence pursuant to Petrocelli,

28
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nor an expert in domestic viclence, though it wished to present evidence p&rtmnm4
to domestic violence and rapeatedly introduced such improper character evidence

However, "[t]he prohibition againet double jeopardy unquestionably "forhida th
progecutor to use the first proceeding as a trial run of his case." Washipgton, 43
U.S, at 508, 88 8. Ct. at 831-32 (citing Note, Twice in Jeopardy, 75 Yale L.J. 262,
287-288 (1965)).

Even if this Court rules that Double Jeopardy does not prevent the retrial,
the very basis for such 2 ruling liea in the fact that the retrial from a hung jury may
be deemed a continuation of the initial jeopardy that attached when the last jury
was empaneled on August 23, 2010. Yeager, 129 8. Ct. at 2365-66 {“the inability tq
reach a decision “ie the kind of ‘manifest necessity’ that permits the declaration of |
mistrial and the continuation of the initial jeopardy thal commenced when the jury
was first impaneled”). Thus, if O’Keefe is not entitled to bar the entire prosecution
based on double jeopardy, he must be entitled to preclude the State from starting
anew with its witness and evidence notice periods. The retrial is merely &
continuation of the former trial, and the ability of the State to seek to admit new
other bad acts evidence ended with the motion deadline prior to the last trisl,

It would be unfair and ineonsistent with the Due Process Clauses of the
United States and Nevada Constitutions to allow the State the opportunity to
correct prior strategies and bolster its case with additional evidence or witne
when ne good cause is shown for their failure to timely notice this evidenes prior to
the aborted trial. The due process interest at issue here is analogous to the
situation presented in Benpett v. District Court 121 Nev. —, 121 P.3d €05 {2005},
There, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that lower court erred in atlowing the
State to allege new aggravatora in support of a death sentence following a change in
law which invalidated aggravators found by the jury, where the State had choasen ta
forego the proposed new aggravators during the notice period proscribed by SCR
250, The Court explained that the required notice-period was designed to protect g
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capital defendant's due process rights to fair and adequate notice of aggravatin
circumstances, safeguard against any abuse of the system, and insert some
predictability and timeliness into the process, Jd. st . 131 P.3d at 610, See alsg
Browning v, State, 124 Nev. _ , 188 P.3d 60, 74 {2008) {aesuming without deciding
that the State might be prevented from presenting new penalty hearing evidence af
# second penalty trial, but concluding that minimal additional evidence was
actually introduced); of. State v. Hennesgy, 29 Nev. 320, 541, 8¢ P. 221 (1807)
{recognizing that where a judgment of conviction is reversed on appeal, without
addreaging all assignments of error, it is proper to give the defense an opportunity
to address them and the court an opportunity to correct them prior to a retrial).

The same due process typs of considerations apply here. A retrial after a
mistrial for a hung jury, to be consistent with due process and not barred by double

jeopardy, must be considered a continuation of the previous trial. What it cannot

i8 & chance for the State to start over with new witnesses and evidence not notice
or tested during prior trials. This would encourage prosecutors, who had not m
witness deadlines for whatsver reason, to engage in miaconduet to atternpt to ca

B mistrial, Here, the prosecutor certsinly did attempt to introduce inadmigsibl
evidence at the last trial. Because that conduct Likely tainted the jury
conaideration of the evidence and caused the jury to hang versus acquit, the
prosecutors cannot be permitted to take advantage of the result to correct the
perceived weaknesses in their case. See alsg McMillian v, Weeks Marine Inc.. 2008
U.S. Diet. LEXIS 76973, pp. 5-6 (D.C, Del., Sept. 30, 2008) (granting award of 2 new
civil trial on damages, but recognizing that an exception to the general rule
probibiting new evidence upon retria] is where a court perceives a manifest
injustice in limiting evidence at retrial); Yong ex rel. Yong v. The Nemours

Foundation, 432 F. Supp. 2d 439, 441 (D. Del. 2006) {"[Ale a general rule, a retrial

should not involve the addition of new issues, evidence, or witnesses."). As thj
State has failed to comply with the notice and discovery requirements, Doubl
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Jeopardy concerns should at the very least prohibit it from introducing the new1

evidence in question,

E. ru-;-_ the 5 gte to jntroduce e idence, which i had mever sought

to in AL O e fore and whi h would jave been nreciud t | b Drevious

ilings of this Court. would ause a delav in violation of O'Keefe's
netitution statuto ia] rights.

O'Keefe's has been prejudiced by the multiple trials in this case, having to
undergo the stress and anxiety attendant to multiple trials and a lengthy pretria}
detention since his arrest on November 6, 2008. His constitutional and statutory:
rights to a apeedy trial have been violated, and he is entitled to dismissal with
prejudice. U.B. Const. amend. VI; NRS 178.556(1).

NRS 178.556(1) provides in relevant part, *If a defendant whose trial hae not
been postponed upon the defendant's application is not brought to trial within &0
days after the arraignment on the indictment or information, the district court may
dismiss the indictment or information,* This statutory speedy trial right applies tg
the resetting of a trial following a mistrial, Rodrigues v, State, 91 Nev. 782, 542
P.2d 1066 (1975). Dismissal if the defendant ia not braught to trial within 60 days
is mandatory if there is not good cause shown for the delay. Anderson v, State, 8§
Nev. 828, 477 P.2d 896 {1970); Huebner v. State, 103 Nev. 28, 731 P.2d 1330 (1987).
The state has the burden of shoewing good cause for delay of the trial. Huebner, 1511
An accused is not required to show that he was prejudiced by the failure to bring
him to trial within 60 days after the finding of an indictment. State v, Craig, 87
Nev. 199, 484 P.2d 719 (1971}

O'Eeefe has at all timee asserted his right to a speedy trial, and even
agsuming the Court's calendar constitutes good cause for the January 24, 2011 triall
setting, a delay of 145 days from the date the mistrial was declared on September 1,
2010, by its conduct affecting the last trial (and possibly now O’Keefe's ability to gq
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forward with the current setting), the State has caused unexcused delay and further
prejudica to O'Keefe,

When the State last presented this case, it was not prepared to present the
evidence it now seeks to admit. It had never sought permission pursuant to the
dictates of Petrpeellj, It had not and has not provided the defense with all relevant
discovery relatad to the new bad act evidenece. It has not noticed any intent ta
present prior testimony. A “trial judge must recognize that lack of preparedness b
the Government to continue the trial directly implicates policies underpinning both
the double jeopardy provision and the speedy triol guargntee” Jornp, 400 11.8. at
486, 81 8. Ct. at 557-58.

Degpite the multiple opportunities the State had in which it could hgwe
sought to introduce this evidence, since the fall of 2008, and despite ite priog
agreement that it should be limitad to the ane prior felony conviction, now that thﬁ
State has twice failed to secure the conviction it seeks, it seeks to change eourse]
Allowing this late-noticed evidence would cause even further delay. O'Keefe woul
need to further investigate esch of the allegations upon which the State nnj
intends to rely in order to mount a defense at trial — an inveatigation that cannot

proceed without adequate discovery. The defense would need to interview any|
witnesses, seek to find impeachment evidence, seek to secure the testimony of gu::j
character witnesses, and would have likely prepared its case differently, There i
no geod cause to allow such further delay for the State to present evidence which ig
could not have presented at the laat trial, and which is inadmissible as irvelevant
and overly prejudicial. To grant the State’s motion would cause further delay in
violation of O'Keefe's speedy trial rights.
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CLUSION

For all of the foregoing reasons, Defendant Brian O'Keefs respectfulls]
requeats that this Court deny in total the State's Motion in Limine to Admit
Evidence of Other Bad

DATED this /5 day of January, 2011.

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

' B trma Palm Bar Nc- 6009
1212 Casgino Censer Blvd,
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone: (702) 386.9113

Fax: (702) 386-9114
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Clark County District Attomey CLERRAE P CanRs
WNevada Bar #002751

CHRISTOPHER ). LALLI

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005398

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

{(702) 671-2830

chriﬁggher.lalli@ccdan v.COm
Atnorney for Plamtiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaint:ff, (Case No; 08-C-250630
. Dept. No: XVTT
=Ya_
Date: Jan 20, 2011

BRIAN K. O'KEEFE Time: E:IIS1 Biym.

Defendants. )

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TQ DISMISS AND,
AL TERNATIVELY, TO PRECLUDE EXPERT AND
ARGUMENT REGARDING DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby opposes the
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss and, alternatively, to Preclude Expert and Fvidence
regarding Domestic Violence. This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and
pleadings on f{ile hergin, the attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral
argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

DATED this 18 day of January, 2011.

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

BY A/ Christopher J. Lalli

CHRISTOPHER J. LALLT
Chief DeBput% Dhstrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
On January 3, 201 1, Brian K. O’Keefe (hereinafter “the Defendant™ filed a Motion to

Preclude the State from introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument, On January
7, 2011, the Defendant filed the instant motion, almost identical to the motion filed on
January 3, 201 I, now requesting that the case be dismissed. Many of the issues raised by the
Defendant were rejected by the Court on January 13, 2011. The few, remaining issues will
be addressed herein.

ARGUMENT

A, Retrial is Not Double-Jeopardy Barred

The Defendant argues that the doctrine of double jeopardy bars a retrial of the instant
case. He makes unsupported claims against the prosecution, arguing, as examples, that the
State “committed intentional misconduct for the purpose of improving its case upon retrial”
{Def.’s Mot. at 8) and that “[i]t is apparent in this case that the prosecution introduced ...
evidence and argument with the purpese of geading the defense into seeking a mistrial or
tainting the jurors’ consideration of legal evidence.” Def’s Mot. at 17. These are,
obviously, untrue and unsupported by the record.

In truth, a mistrial in this case resulted from a hung jury. The Nevada Supreme Court
has consistently held that retrial after a bung jury does not constitute double jeopardy.
Glover v. District Court, 125 Nev. -, -, 220 P.3d 684, 692 (2009); Peck v. State, 116 Nev.
840, 847-48 (2000). overruled on vther grounds by Rosas v. State, 122 Ney, 1258 (2006);
Sheriff v. Robertson, 90 Nev. 365, 366 (1974); Adams v. State, 8 Nev. 358, 359 {1970);
Wheeler v. District Court, 82 Nev. 225, 229 (1896}; State v, Eisentrager, 76 Nev. 437, 441
(1960).

B.  The State’s Notice of Expert Witness Was Timely Filed

The State filed a Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses on January 3, 2011,
placing the Defendant on notice that Andrea Sandburg would be testifying regarding battered
women's syndrome. power and control dynamics and the cyele of abuse, generally. The trial

in this matter is presently scheduled for January 24, 2011. Therefore, the notice was filed

np29"3
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precisely 21 days before trial as is required by NRS 174.234(2). It is timely.

2 The Defendant argues that the notice is untimely because it was not filed 21 days
3 || prior to the original trial in this case. See Def.'s Mot. at 18, There certainly is no case that
4 | stands for the proposition that the State cannot endorse different or additional experts in
5 § advance of a retrial. The Defendant, himself, has done this. For example, the Defendant
6 || filed 2 Supplemental Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witnesses on July 29, 201 0. (This Notice
7 || is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.) That notice included Doctor Todd Cray as a potential
8 | expert. Doctor Gray actually testified in the retrial of this matter. However, in the Notice of
9 | Defendant’s Expert Witness filed on February 20, 2009, prior to the original trigl, Doctor
10 I Gray was not listed as an expert witnass. (This Notice is attached hereto as Exhibit 2)
11 || Follewing the Defendant’s logic, Doctor Gray should have been precluded from testifying at
12 | the second and any subsequent trial of this matter. Obviously, this is not the law,
13 The Defendant also argues that the State should be altogether precluded from calling
t4 || an expert in domestic violence based upen NRS 48.061. See Def.’s Mot. at 18-25. The
15 || Defendant misconstrues this statutory provision. NRS 48.061 and the legisiative intent
16 | belund this statute are addressed in the State’s Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other
17 § Bad Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence Pursuant to NRS
18 || 48,061 filed on January 6, 2011. The State should be permitted to call an €XpErt witness on
13 f§ this subject.
20 C. The Defendant’s Speedy Trial Rights Have Not Been Violated
21 The Defendant argues that his case should be dismissed because his speedy trial rights
22 || have been violated. See Def.’s Mol at 25-26. However, there has been no such violation,
23 | After a jury was unable to reach a verdict in the previous trial, the Court was inclined to reset
24 | the trial the very next day. See Transcript of Proceedings of September 2, 2010, at 5.
25 |t However, counsel for the Defendant instead requested that the matter be passed for a time
26 || before the trial be reset. The State joined in this request. /d Thereafter, the trial was set for
27 | January 24, 2011, due to the Court’s schedule and the schedules of the parties.
28 The Court has always sought to accommodate the Defendant’s speedy trial request.
L Couky
DESTRICT A TTishpe
Maes Yoo 3
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1 “ In fact, the Court set this case on a day knowing it had other matters with priority settings,
2 || hoping that the calendar would clear up to accommodate the Defendant's mial. As things
3 || tarned out, the Court is available to hear this trial on the date set.
4 " The mere fact that a trial is scheduled beyond 60 days from arraignment does not
5 || necessarily result in a violation of a defendant’s right to speedy trial. The Nevada Supreme
6 | Court has multiple times held that the setting of a tria) outside of the 60-day window does
7 “ not result in a speedy trial violation if the 1rial date is due to the congestion of the court’s
8 | trial calendar or the calendar of the parties. See, eg., Manley v. State, 115 Nev, 114, 126
9 | (1999) (delays caused, in part, by legitimate conflicts with the State’s and the court's
1O || schedules); Bailey v. State, 94 Nev. 323, 324 (1978) {224-day delay was not inordinate due
11 f to the congestion of the wial calendar). Moreover, the constitutional deprivation of right 1o
12 || speedy trial requires proof of prejudice attributable to delay. Anderson v, State, 86 Nev. 829,
13 | 833 (1970). The Defendant cannot demonstrate how he has been prejudiced by any minimal
14 | defay in this case.
£5 CONCLUSION
16 Based upon all of the foregoing, the Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss on Grounds of
17 | Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and, Alternatively, to Preclude State’s New
18 [ Expert Witness, Evidence and Argument Relating 10 the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic
19 | Vieclence and Abuse should be denied,
20 DATED this 18 day of January, 201 1.
21 DAVID ROGER
2 Nevada Bas J003781 O
23
BY 4/ Christopher J. Lalli
24 CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI
25 Kevada Bar Jo0ssag omey
26
27
28
Mk ViCEaToRd 4
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CERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

[ hereby cenify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 18th day of

January, 2011, by facsimile transmission to:

PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.
FAX: 386-9114

{s/Deana Daniels

Secretary for the District Afforneys
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NOTC FIL ED

PALM LAW FIRM. LTD. -

PATRICIA PALM i 29 f

STATE BAR NO. 6009 3 P8 g
1212 CASING CENTER BLVD.

LAS VEGAS, NV 89104 Q& -, .
PHOMNE: 702-3868-8113 CLegy T T,
FAX: 702-388-9114 T gy

EMAIL: pairicia. palmlaw@gmail.com

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Case No.: C250830

STATE OF NEVADA,
. No.. XVl
Plaintiff, Bept-Na
f‘m“m R
Lt nuun oi Expeni Wimivms
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, ‘
Bt IR
SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF DEFENDANT'S EXPERT WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234(2)]
DATE:
TIME:

TQ: THE STATE OF NEVADA, PLAINTIFF, and
TO: DAVID ROGER, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attomey for Plgintiff,

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant, Brian
K. O'Keefa, by and through his attomey, PATRICIA PALM of PALM LAW FiRM, LTD.|
infends to call the following experts in his case in chief, in addition to those experts whol
have been previously noticed and whose reports have praviously baen provided:

1. GEORGE SCHIRQ, 5004 W. Admiral Doyle Dr., New iberig, LA 70580, an axpeart

in forensic science. Should this witness testify, ha will testify in the area of crime
scene analysis, crime scene investigation, processing of crime scenes, collaction
and praservation of evidance, latent prinl comparison, footwear examination,

RECEIVED
JUL 29 2010 3 N2}

14

CLERK OF THE COURT
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. TODD CAMERON GREY, M.D., Medical Examiner's Office, Stata of Utah, 48 N,

. LOUIS F. MORTILLARO, PHD, 501 5. Rancho Drive, Ste. £-37, Las Vegas, :j

. TAWNI CHRISTENSEN, M.D., 540 Sumemer Mesa Dr., Las Vegas, NV 89144, anl

DNA evaluations, and defensive and accidental wounds, and wiii give hiJ
epinions related thereto.

(The scope of expected testimony listed above and the report previously given
have been supplemented; an updated CV and supplemental report arg
attached.),

Medical Drive, Sal Lake City, UT 84113, an expert in general pathology and
cause and manner of death. Should he testify he will tastify in the area of
general pathology, cause and manner of death, and specific issues related 1o thi

casa, including but not imited to the autopsy report, the extent/nature of wnunﬂj
and injuries in this case and the physical condition of the deceased's body. Dr.
Grey will elso testify regarding aspects of the case that may assist the jury in
reaching a verdict, including but not limited to physical evidence and
interpretation of the autopsy report, protocol, and photographs, including crimg
scena photographs. (CV is atiached )

89108, &n expet in clinical psychology. Should he testify, he will testify in
erea of the mental health history and condiion and diagnoses of the alleged
victim as documented in her medical records, including but not limited to her
history of suicids attempts by overdose and cutling, major recurrent depression|
anaely disorder as comorbidity, panic attacks, polysubstance abuse, self-
mutitation, anger cutbursts and anger control problems, bipolar disorder, and
borderdine personality traits, and explain how the victims memtal heaith
conditions might have affected her at the time of the incident. (CV is attached),

expert in the area of emergency medicine and medical science. Should shal
testify, she will testify in the area of the effecls of alcohol and

ﬂ|029‘.5
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in this case, and the alleged victim's medical condition and farget dosage
Effexor 25 documentad in her medical records.
{CV and repor previously provided).

Effexor/Venlafaxine, the fevels of these detected in the gulopsy toxicology repcaq

Dated this 29™ day of July,

RECEIPT of a copy of the Supplemental Nolice of Defendant's Expert Witnessaﬂ

is hereby acknowledged,

2010.

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia A. Palm, Bar No, 8009
1212 Casino Center Bivd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104

(702) 388-9112

Aftorney for Defendant O'Keefa

RECEIFT OF COPY

, 2010.

DATED: __ /ity &9
v

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

200 Lerwns Ave. ; Floor

Las Vegas, NV B9155
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HOME PAGE
GEORGE SCHIRO, MS, F-ABC

CONSULTING FORENSIC SCIENTIST

FORENSIC SCIENCE RESOURCES®
P00, Box 188
CADE, LA 70519 USA
CELL: (337) 3212724

E-MAIL: Gjschiro{@es.com

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Industrial Chemistry - Forensic Science

Including five hours of credit in Forensic DNA Analysis of Biological Materials and accompanying lab
course, three hours of credit in Quality Assurance and Bioinformatics, three hours of credit in
Biochemistry, two hours of credit in Forensic Analysis of DNA Dete, and three hosrs of credit in
Experimental Statistics

University of Central Flonida, Orlando, FL.

Bachelor of Scleace, Micrablology
Including three hours of credit in Genetics

Louisiang State University, Baton Rouge, La.

FROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION

Certificate of Professional Competency in Criminalistics, Fellow of the American Board of
Criminalistics, Specialty Area: Molecular Biology

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING ATTENDED

March 2010 2010 Forensic Symposium — Advanced Death Investigation” — Instructors: Dr.
Kearen Sullivan, Dennis McGowan, George Schiro, Rae Wooten, Dr. Richard
Weems, and Dr. Mark Guilbean, North Georgia College & State University,
Dsahloncga, GA :

February 2010 “ISO 17025 and Audit Preparation” - Instructor: David Epstein, Forensic
Quality Services, New Iberia, LA

August 2009 “Actual Innocence: Estzblishing Innocence or Guilt, Forensic Science Friend of
Foe to the Cnminal Justice System”™ - Instructors: various, The Center for
Amencan and Intemational Eaw, Plano, TX

June 2009 “Ingital Photography for Law Enforcement” - Instructors: Donnie Barker and Joe

Russe, Institute of Palice Technology and Manspement, Lafayetts, LA

AN

nttp:/fwww forensicscienceresources. com/GeorgeCV. him
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March 2008

February 2008

October 2007

February 2007

February 2006

December 2004

June 2003
May 2003

April 2003

January 2002

March 2001

February 2000

November 1999
March 1998
November 1997

Cctober 1997

hitp://wwrw. forensicscienceresources com/GeorgeCV htm

Page 2 0i 5

“Forensic Sympesium 2008 - The Investipation of Sex Crimes and Deviant.
Behavior” — Instructors: Roy Hazelwood, George Schiro, Dr. Brent Paterline, Jeff
D. Branyon, Tim Relph, and Dr. Daniel J. Sheridan, North Georgia College &
Sfate University, Dahloncga, GA

“Conference on Crimes Ageinst Women” — [nstructors: various, Dallas, TX

“Integrity, Character, and Ethics in Forensic Science” — Instructor: Dan B
Gunnell, Louisiania Association of Forensic Scientists (LAFS) Fal) 2007 Meeting,
Baton Rouge, LA

“Anatomy of a Wrongful Conviction: A Muitidisciplinary Examination of the
Ray Krone Case™ — Co-chairmen: George Schirp and Dr. Thomas Streed.
American Academy of Forensic Sciences Meeting, San Antonio, TX

“Solving the South Louisiana Serial Killer Case - New Approaches Blended
With Older Trusted Techniques” Co-chairmen: George Schiro and Ray
Wickenheiser, American Academy of Forensic Sciences (AAFS) Meeting,
Seattle, WA

“Natignal Forensic Science Technology Center (NFSTC) Auditor Workshap” ~
Instructors: Mark Nelson, John Wegel, Richard A. Guerreri, and Heather Subert

“CODIS v5.6 Software Training” — Instructor; Car{a Heron, Baton Rouge, LA

"DNA Auditor Training"” - Instructors: Richard A. Guerreri and Anja Einseln,
Austin, TX

“Statistical Analysis of Forensic DNA Evidence” - Tnstructor: Dr._George
Carmody, Harvey, LA

“Association of Forensig DNA Analys ini s {AFDAA)
Workshops” - Instructors: 8. Cribari, Dr, T. Wang, and R Wickenheiser, Austin,
Ep,4 i
“Basic Forensic DNA Analysis™ - Instructor, Dr. Pat Wojtkiewicz, Baton Rouge,
LA

DINA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, Reno, NV

“Advanved AmpF] STR™ & ARI Prism™ 310 Genetic Analyzer Training” -
Instructor. Catherine Caballero, PE Biosystemy, Baton Rouge. LA

“DINA Typing with STRs - Silver Stain Detection Workshop” -« Instructors: Dr,
Brent Spoth and Kimberly Huston, Promegs Corp., Madison, W1

“Laboratory Auditing” - Instructors: Dr. William Tilstone, Richard Lester, and
Tony Longhetti, NFSTC Warkshop, Baton Rouge, LA

“Forensic Microscopy” - Instructor: (Gary Laughlin, McCrone Research Institute,

np29 8
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Septernber 1597

August 1997

February 1997
November 1996

August 1956

June 1995-

February 1996
July 1695

June 1993

May 1993

March 1993

September 1990

July 1989

June 1255

September 1988
June 1388

June 1988

http:/fwww.forensicscienceresources.com/GeorgeCV. htm

Page 3 of &

L4, State Police Traiping Academy, Baton Rouge, LA

“"Presenting DNA Statistics in Court™ - Instructors: Dr, Bpuce Weir and Dr.
George Carmody, Promegs Symposium, Scotisdale, AZ

“Forensic DNA Analysis” - Instructors: Pat Wojtkiewicz and Mickelle Gaines,
North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

DNA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, New York, NY

“Forensic DNA Testing” - Instructors: Dr. Jim Karam and Dr. Sudhir Sinha,
[ulane University Medical Center, New Orleans, LA

“Bloodstain Pattern Analysis and Crime Scene Documentation” - lastructoes:
Paulette Sutton, Steven Symes, and Lisa Elrod North La. Crime Lab, Shreveport,
LA

“Introduction to Forensic Fiber Microscopy™ - [nstructor: Skip Palenik, Acadiang
Crime Lab, New [bena, LA

DNA Workshop, AAFS Meeting, Nashville, TN

“Personality Profiling and Crime Scene Assessment” - Instructors: Roy
Hazelwood and Robert Ressler, Loyola University, New Ovleans, LA

“Basic Forensic Serology,” EB] Academy, Quantico, VA
DNA Workshop - Instructor: Anne Montgomery, GenTest Lahoratories,

Southern Association of Forensic Scientists (SAFS) Spring Meeting, Savannah,

GA

Attended the Second Intemational Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA
Analysis, FBI Academy, Quantice, VA

“Introduction to Human Immunoglobulin Allotyping™ - Instructor:
Dr. Moses Schanfield, AGTC, Police Crim , Baton Rouge, LA

Bone Grouping Techniques Workshop - Instructor: Dr. Robert Gaensslen and
Dr, Henry Lee, University of New Haven, New Haven, CT

Attended the Intemational Symposium on the Forensic Aspects of DNA Analysis,
FBI Academy, Cruantico, VA

DNA Workshop, SAFS Fall Mecting, Clearwatsr, FL

“Non-Isotopic Detection of DNA Pelymorphisms™ - Instructor: Dale Dvkes,
AGTC, North La, Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

“Microscopy of Hairs™ - Instructor: Skip Palenik, North La. Crime Lab,
Shreveport, LA

?32‘;/%?&9
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April 1988 “Analysis of Footwear and Tire Evidence™ - Instructors: Max Courtney and Ed

Heeske, North La, Crime Lab, Shreveport, LA

September 1987 Introduction to Forensic Genetics Workshop - Instruetor: Dr Moses Schanfield,

SAFS Fall Mesting, Atlanta, GA

March 1987 [soelectric Focusing Workshop, SAFS/ SWAFS/ SAT Combined Spring Meeting,
Baton Rouge, LA

June 1986 Attended the Intemational Symposivm on Forensic Immunology, FBI Academy,
Quantico, V4

February 1986 “Collection and Preservation of Physical Evidence™ - Instructor- Dale Moreau,
FBI School, Metairie, LA

August 1985 “Atomic Absorption in Determining Gunshot Residues,” FBI Academy,
Quantico, VA )

April 1985 “Arson Accelerant Deteetion Course™ - Instructors: Rick Tontarski, Mary Lou
Fuliz, and Rick Strocbel, Bureay of Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (BATF) Lab,
Rockville, MD

July 1984 “Questioned Documents for the Investigator” - Instrugter Dale Morean, FB[
School, Baton Rouge, LA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2002 - present Acadiana Ceiminalistics Laboratory — New Tberia, LA

An ASCLD-L.AR sccredited laboratory

- Employed as a Forensic Chemist - DNA Technical Leader, Duties include Incorporating the
DINA Advisory Board (DARB) standards, accountability for the technical operations of the lab's
biology section, conducting DNA analysis using the £3 $TR core loci and Y STR in casework,
DNA research, forensic science training, and ¢rime scene investigation. Qualified as an expert
over 143 times in 29 Louisiana parish courts, Pope County Ariansas, San Bemardino County
. Califomia, Lee County Flonda, Washington County Mississippi, St Louis County Missouri,
Clark County Nevada, Bronx County New York, Cabell County West Virginia, federal court,
and two Louisiana city courts. Has qualified as an expert in the following areas: latent fingerprint
development; serology; crime scene investigation; forensic science; trajectory reconstruction;
shoeprint identification; ctime scene reconstruction; bloodstam pettern analysis; DNA analysis;
fracture match analysis; and hair comparison. Has also consulted on cases in 23 states, for the
United States Army and Air Force, and in the United Kingdom. Worked over 2900 cases,
Independently contracted DNA fechnical auditor with NESTC and Foregsic Quality Services -
nternational. Contracted DNA Technicat Leader to the Southwest La, Crime Lab in Lake
Charles, LA from 2005-2008. Is 2 member of the Lafayerte Parish Sexual Assault Response
Team (SART). Is also & member of the La. Foundation Against Sexual Agsault (LAFASA}
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1988 - 2041 Lowisiena State Palice Crime Lab - Baton Rouge, LA
An ASCLD-LAB accredited laboratory

Employed as a Forensic Scigntist 2, Duties included incorporating the DNA Advisory Board
(DAB) standards and conducting DNA enalysis using the 13 $TR core loci in casework. Duties
bave also included setting up and developing methods for the analysis of blood and body fluids
using biological, chemical, microscopic, immunological, bicchemical, electrophoretic, and
iseclectric focusing techniques, applying these methods to criminal investigations; and testifying
to the resulis in court, Additional duties included crime scene investigation/reconstruction; latent
prict development; fracture match comparison; projectile trajectory determination; shoeprint
comparison, hair examination; blood spatter interpretation; and traiming persommed in various
aspects of forensic science.

1984 - 1988 Jeffergon Parish Sheriff"s Office Crime Lab ~ Metairie, LA

Employed as Criminalist {I). From 11/85 to 4/88 duties included collection and anajysis of
blood, body fiuids, hairs, and fibers using microscopic, immunological, biochemical, and
chemical techniques. Also testified to the results of these analyses in court. Trained under Senior
Forensic Biologist Joseph Warren. From 6/84 to 10/85 duties included marijuana analysis, arson
analysis, gunshot residue detection, hit and run paint analysis, and development of latent
fingerprints. Trained under Lab Director Ron Singer.

PROFESSIONAL PAPERS

“A Cold Hit,,, Relatively Speaking” presanted at the International Association of Forensic Sciences | 8%
Triennial Meeting in New Ordeans, LA, July 25, 2008. Also presented as “We Are Family...the Key to
Solving s Series of Rapes™ at the 2008 Southern Association of Forensic Scientists Meeting in

Shreveport, LA.

“Criminalistics Errors, Omissions, Problems, and Fthical Issues™ presented as pant of the “Anatomy of a
Wrongful Conviction; A Multidisciplinary Examination of the Ray Krone Case” workshop af the 20607
AAFS Meeting in San Antonio, TX as part of the LAFS Fall 2007 Mesting in Baton Rouge, LA; and as
part of “Actual [nnocence: Establishing Innocence or Guilt, Forensic Science Friend or Foe to the
Criminal Justice System™ at The Center for American and Interpational Law in Plano, TX.

“Using the Quality Assurance Standards for Forensic DNA, Testing Laboratories to Distinguish the
Unqualified Farensic DNA Experts From the Qualified Forensic DNA Experts” presented at the 2007
AAFS Meeting in San Antonio, TX and at the AFDAA 2007 Winter Mesting in Austin, TX,

“Investigative Uses of DNA Databases™ presemted as part of the “Solving the South Louisiana Serial
Killer Case — New Approaches Blended With Older Trusted Techniques™ workshop at the 2006 AAFS
Meeting in Seattle, WA,

“Trace DNA Analysis: Casework Experience” presented as a poster at the 2004 AAFS Meeting in
Dalias, TX and as a talk at the July 2003 AFDAA Meeting in Austin, TX. Also presented as “Interesting
Casework Using AmpFISTR® Profiler Plus® and COfiler® Kits™ at Applied Biggystems® “Future
Trends in Forensic DNA Technology,” September, 2003 in New Orleans, LA.

“Extraction and Quantification of Human Deoxyribonucteic Acid, and the Amplification of Human
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Short Tander Repeats and a Sex Identification Marker from Fly Larvae Found on Decomposing
Tissue™ 2 thesis to fulfill one of the Master of Science requirements. Suecessfully defended on July 13,
2001 at the University of Central Florida, Orlando, Florida. Presentcd at the 2004 AAFS Meeting in -
Dallas, TX, the Spring 2002 La. Association of Forensic Scientists (LAFS) Meeting, and the January
2003 AFDAA Mesting in Austin, TX. S

“Adminstrative Policies Dealing with Crime Scene Operations™ published in the Spring 1999 issue of
Sowthern Lawman Magazine.

“Shooting Reconstruction - When the Bullet Hits the Bone" presented at the 10th Anniversary
Convention of the La, Private lnvestigators Association (LPIAY Nationa! Associgtion of Legp)
Investigators (NALT) Region [V Seminar, September I3, 1997, New Orleans, LA. Licensed as
continuing education for Texas Private investigatars by the Texas Board of Private Investigators and
Private Security Agencies. Published in the Fall 1998 issue of Southern Lawnian Magazine,

“Using Videotape to Document Physical Evidence” presented at the Seventh Annuai Convention of the
LPIA/NALI Region IV Seminar, August 16, 1996, New Orleans, LA Licensed s continuing educstion
for Texas Private Investigators by the Texas Board of Private Investigators and Private Security
Agencies. Published in April 1997 issue of The LPI4 Journal. An edited version was published in the
Winter 1998 issve of Southern Lawman Magazine.

“Collection and Preservation of Blood Evidence from Crime Scenes” disttibuted a3 part of a blpwd
collection workshop held at the Jefferson Parish Coroner's Eighth Annual Death Investigation
Conference, November 17, 1995, Harahan, [LA. Presented as continuing legal education by the La. Bar
Associgtion. Electronically published on the World Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investipation Web .
Page (hitp://police ucr.edw/csi htm). Published in the September/October 1997 issue of the Jowrnal of

Forensic Identification. Referenced in the 7 edition of Techniques of F Crime Scene [nvestipation by
Barry A.J. Fisher.

“Collection and Preservation of Evidence™ presented at La Foundation Against Sexual Assault/ La,
Distrigt Attorneys Associatign sponsored confersnce, “Mecting the Challeage: Investigation and
Prosecution of Sex Crimes,” March 3, 1994, Lafayette, LA. Presented as conunuing legal education by
the La. Bar Association, Published in the Forensic Medicing Soyrcebook. Electronically published on
the World Wide Web at the Crime Scene Investigation Web Page (http:/fpolice?. ucr.edw/csi htm). Also
published in Nanogram, the officia! publication of LAFS. A modified version of the paper was
presented af the Sixth Annual Convention of the LPIA, August 19, 1595, New Orlesns, LA: the NALI
Region [V Continuing Education Semirar, March 9, 1996, Biloxi, MS; and the Texas Association of
Licensed Investigarors (TALI) Winter Seminar, February 15, 1997, Addison, TX. Published in the
July/August 1996 issue and the September/October 1996 issue of The Texas Investigator. Electronically
published on the World Wide Web st TALI's Web Page {http.//pimall.com/tati/evidence. html),
Published in the May 2001 issue of The Mnformant, the official publication of the Professiona] Private

i iafion o ln@dg.hnupdatcdvmiunwuprﬁmteduLa.FnundaﬁonAgﬂnst
Sexual Assault/la District Atiorneys Association sponsored conference, “Collaborating to STOP
Violence Against Women Conference,” March 12, 2003, Lafayeite, LA.

“The Effects of Fecal Contamnination on Phosphoglucomutase Subtyping” presented at the 1989 AAFS
Meeting beld in Las Vegas, Nevada and at the Fall, 1987 SAFS Mecting held in Atianta, Georgia.

“A Report on Gamma Marker (Gm) Antigen Typing™ presented at the Fall, 1986 SAFS Meeting heid in
Auburn, Alabama and at the Summer, 1986 LAFS Mecting.
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“An Improved Method of Glyoxylase I Analysis™ co-presented with Joseph Warnren at the Summer,
1986 LAFS Meeting.

ARTICLES PUBLISHED

“Forensic Science and Crire Scene Investigation: Past, Present, and Future” publeshed in the Winter
2000 issue of American Lawman Magazine.

“New Crime Scenes — Same Old Problems” published in the Winter 1999 jssue of Southern Lawman
Magazine.

“Shoeprint Evidence: Trampled Underfoor” published in the Falf 1999 issue of Sowuthern Lawmar
Magazine,

“LASCE: A Model Orgenization™ published in the Summer 1599 issue of Southern Lawman Magazine,

“Applications of Forensic Science Analysis to Private Investigation™ published in the July 1999 issue of
The LPIA Journal.

TRAINING CONDUCTED

Have conducted trainjng at the following seminars and have treined the following organizations and
agencics in crime scene investigation, forensic science, and/or the collection and preservation of
evidence. Fourth and Seventh International Conferences of Legal Medicine held in Panama City,
Panama; US. State Department’s Anti-Terrorism Assistance Program Police Executive Seminar;

Intellenet 7% Annual Conference; AAFS: American Chemical Socisty; AFDAA; Forensic Science
Education Conference; SAFS; Southern Institute of Forensic Science; University of Nevada Las Vegas
Biotechnology Center; Professional Private Investigators Association of Colorado; Indiana Coroner's
Training Board;, DNA Security, Inc. Open House; South Carolina Coroners Assaciation; Forensic
Symposia 2008 and 2010, North Georgia College & State University, Dahlonega, GA; Palm Bay Police
Dept., Palm Bay, Florida; CGEN 5200, Expert Testimony in Forensic Science, University of North
Texns Health Science Center, Fr. Worth, TX; Mississippi Seciety for Medical Technology; Forensig
Investigats & Investigation; La State Coroners’ Associstion: Jefferson Parish Coroner’s
Office Eighth Annua} Death Investigation Conference: Southern University Law Center; La. State
University Chemistry Departiment Seminar; Chemistry 105, Soytheastern Louisiana Univessity;
University of [ouisians st [afaverte Biology Club; Louisiana Homicide Investigators Association;
Lowisiara Division of the International Assgctation for Identification; U.S. Department of Justice La.
Middle District Law Enforcement Coordinating Committee Crime Scene Investigation Workshap; 1a.
State University's Law Enforcement Training Program Scientific Crime Investigator’s Institute; La.
State University’s Continuing Law Enforcement Education School; La. State Police Training
Academny’s Advanced Forensic Investigation School; La. District Atorneys Association; La. Southeast
Chiefs of Palice Association; Acadiana Law Enforcement Trainin & Academy; Caddo Parish Sheriff's
Office; Mystery Writers of ica - Florida C r; NALI Continuing Education Seminars; TALL
Lalayette Parish Sherifl's Office; Iberia Parish SherifPs Office: Jefferson Parish Sheriff's Office
Training Acedemy; Kenner Police Dept. St. Charles Parish Sheriff's Office; Terrebonne Parish

Sherifi"s Qffice; East Feliciana Parigh Sherifl’s Offics; Tennessee Assaciation of Investi igators; East
ngean3
hnp:ffm,ﬁrensfmicnurmuurms.cumﬁGmrgﬂCV,htm F29/2010
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Baton Rouge Parish Sherift's Office; West Baton Roygg Parish Sheriff's Office; Vermilion Parish
Shemyff's Office; Washington Parish Rape Crisis Center Vohanteers: Missizsippi Professional
Investigators Association; East Baton Rouge Stop Rape Crisis Center Volunteer Physicians; Stuller
Place Sexual Assault Response Center Volunteers; Evangeline and St. Landry Parish Rape Crisis
Volunteers; Tri-Parish Rape Crisis Volunteer Escorts; LPIA; La Foundation Against Sexual Assault;
Louisiana Society for Medical Technology; Baton Rouge Society for Medical Technology; Baton Rouge
Folice Dept. Sex Crimes Unit, Crime Scene Unit, and Traffic Hoimicide Unit; Violence Against Women
Conference; Family Focus Regional Coaference; Qur Lady of the Lake Hospital Emergency Room
Personnel, Sexual Assault: Effective Law Enforcement Response Seminar: La State Police Training
Academy; La. Association of Scientific Crime [nvestigators (LASCI); LAFS; and the Basic Police
Academy (La. Probation and Parole, La. Dept. of Public Safety, La. Motor Vehicle Police, and La. Dept
of Wildlife and Fisheries).

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

ional jcty for Forensi ics
international Association of Bloodstain Pattery Analysts (Full Member)
AAFS (Fellow)

American Board of Criminatistics (Molecular Biology Fellow)
Amenican Socigty for Testing and Materials Cgmmitice E-30 on Forensic Sciences
AFDAA {Chairperson 2004-2005, Fellow)

Association for Crime Scene Reconstryction
SAFS

LAFS ( Editor of Nanagram, the official publication of LAFS - July 1994 ta May 1998, President -
1999, Vice President - 1989)
LASCI

OTHER ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Anzlyzed evidence and issued a report in the 1991 La. State Police investigation of the assassination of
U. 8. Senator Huey P. Long.

Contributing authar to the Forersic Medicine Sourcebook, edited by Annemarie S, Muth,

One of several technical advisors to the non-fiction books Bfood and HNA Evidence, Crime-Solving
Seience fxperiments by Kenneth G. Rainis, Q./ {inmasked,_The Trigl, The Truth. und the Media by
M.L.Rantala and Packer Pyriner by Dennis Evers, Mary Miller, and Thomas Glover.

One of several technical advisors to the fictional books Crusader 's Cross by James Lee Burke,

Company Man by Joscph Finder, Sgvage Ars by Danielle Girard, and Boney jn the Backygrd by Florence
Clowes and Lois J. Blackburn. :

Featured on the "Without g Trace™ and "Through the Camera's Eye™ episodes of The New Detegives
television show that first aired on the Discavery Channe], May 27, 1997 and June {1, 2002,

Featured on the “No Safe Plgce” episode of Forensic Files that first aired on Court TV, January 3, 2007.
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Channel, October 13, 2008,

Featured on the “Knock, Knock, You're Dead” episode of Forensic Fuctor that first aired on the
Discovery Channe! Canada, April 16, 2009,

Recipient of the second Young Forensic Scientist Award given by Sclentific Slewthing Review.
Formerly a columnist for Southern Lawman Magazine.

Authored and managed two federal grants that awarded the La. State Police Crime Lab $147,000 and
$237,000 to set up and develop a DNA labormtory.

A member of the La. State Police Crime Lab’s ASCLD-LAB accreditation Freparation committee.

Featured in the books The Bone Lady: Life as a Forensic Anthropolopist by Mary Manhein, Rope Burny
by Robert Scott, Smilir Acrev; The Angry Victim by Chester Pritchett, An Invisible Man by Stephanie A,
Stanley, Soff Targets. A Woman s Guide to Survival by Detective Michael L. Vamado, Kirstin Rlgise

Lobate's Unreasonable Convicion by Hans Sheryer, gombie CSU. The Forensics of the Living Dead by
Jonathan Maberry, and Science figir Winners: Crime Scene Science by Karen Romano Young and
Duvid Goldin,

* Featured on an episode of Split Ecréen that first aired on the Independent Film Chappel, May 31, 1999,

Featured as & character on the “Kiystip Lobate Case™ episode of Guilty or Innocens? that first aired on
the Discovery Channel, Aprl |, 2005.
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ForeM1c Science ResotfBces®

P.0. Box 188, Cade, LA 70519 USA#(337) 322-27244Gjschiro@cs com
Tuly 27, 2010

This is & supplemental report to the FSR 3-09 report issued 3/15/09 by George Schiro.

Case No,; FSR 3-09

Client: Palm Law Firm, Ltd, 1212 Casino Center Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89104

Clieat Case No.: C250630, Brian O’Kesfe

Dates Case Accepted: 1/26/09 and 7/14/10

Case Documentation Received and Examined By: George Schiro

Dates of Anslysis; 1/31/09 10 3/1549 and 7/18/10 to 727/10

Type of Examination Requested: Review case docurnentation, particularly the parts related to
collection and preservation of evidence and any information that might aid in scene analysis and
reconstruction. :

Specimens Examined; Case documentation, photographs, and & DVD
Analytical Procednres: Reviewed and analyzed case dotumentation, photographs, and DVD.

Resnlty:

1, There is no documertation indicating that blood and urine specimens for toxicological

+ analysis were collected from Mr. O’Keefe in the hours immediately afler the death of
Ms. Whitmarsh,

2. The docurentation indicates that the penile swabs collected from Mr, O'Keefec were
collected improperly. )

3. The documentation indicates that Mr. O’ Keefe hed wounds to his right thumb and right
index finger, \

4. Although a full crime scene reconstruction is not possible basedonthecas:_" o
documentation, certain aspects of the scene following Ms. Whitmarsh's injury can be
interpreted. - o

5 Thepossibﬂityufmaccidmta]smhbingcmbenﬂedm

CONCLUSIONS:

1. Toxicology '

Blood and urinie specimens should have been colected from Mr. O'Keefe in the howss
immediately after the death of Ms. Whitmarsh In potential homicide cases in which &
suspect is arrested shortly after the killing, it is a uscful practice to obtain blood and urine
specimens from the suspect to be screcned for the presence of drugs and alcokol,! These.
blood and wrine specimens could have been subjected to toxicological analysis and wonld
have provided a quantitative estimate of the amaynt of alcobol and drugs in Mr, O'Keefe’s

' Fisher, Barry A1, Technigues of Crime Scene Investigarion, CRC Press, Boca Rator, FL, 2004, p. 325,
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- System, The presence or absence of drugs or alcohol in a person’s body and the issue of
whether the - .
subject was under the influence of a drug is important in the legal defense of dimmished
capaity cases.” [n addition o alcohol quantification, M. O"Kreefe's blood and urine could
have also been tested for the presence of any hatlucinogens or other mingd altering - .
substances. One of the specific objectives of the applied science of forensic toxicology as
stated by the Society of Forensic Toxicolegists, Inc. is interpreting, when experience aliows,
the results of an analysis in terms of the effect of the substance(s) found on the behavior and
State of health of an individual,® Without toxicology analysis and results, factors which may
kave affected Mr. O’Keefe's state of mind and bebavior at the time of Ms.- Whitmarsh’s

2, Improper Evidence Collection

The penile swabs collected from Mr. O'Keefe were collected improperly. This improper
collection techrique could have directly impacted the DNA results of the penile swabs
tarough eross contaminstion of samples. Cross contamination is defined as the unwanted
transfer of material between two or more sources of physical evidence,” When the swabs
were collected, Mr. O'Keefe was handed the swabs by a Crime Scene Analyst (CSA) who
Wwas wearing gloves. Mr, D’Keefewnmwmﬁnganyglwcs. hus rigit hand was bleeding,
and be also had blood, most tikely belonging to Ms. Whitmarsh, on his hands, Mr. O'Keefe
mmwmmmmgmm.mmsmmnmumwmm.
The proper technique would have been for the CSA to collect the swabs while wearing
gloves. This would have prevented the possible transfer of blood and Ms. Whitmarshs DNA
from Mr. O'Keefe’s hands to the penile swabs.

An alternate method of collection would have been for Mr, O’Keefe to clean his hands:
and wounds aﬂm‘ﬂmyhadbacndﬂcmnentedandanypomnﬁalcﬁdmnhadbamﬂﬂlcmed
from his hands, Pﬁsmlmdsshouldhaveﬂzmbeenhmdagedﬂemu!dhﬂcﬂnqu
Pprovided with gloves and at this point he could have swabbed himself under supervision.
Contamination tontrol is essentinl to maintaining the integrity of evidence.” The policy of

integrity. Contamination control procedures require that personal protective equipment.
such as gloves, are used to prevent contamination of personpel.’ .-
The LVMPD Forensic Laboratory Report of Examination Biology/DNA Detsil states that
Mr. O'Keefe’s penile swabs were Begabive for semen, bug positive for blood, Because of the
mnproper collection technique, it is unknown 1f this blood was present on hig penis prior to
the swabbing or if the blood on the penile swabs was introduced during the swahbing. The
LVMPD Forensic Labotatory Report of Examination Biology/DNA Detail also states thata -

3 Ihid, pp.323-324.

! butp:jfvrarw.soft-tox ocg/ComtenyIntroduction/igure t htm ;

* Crime Scene Investigation: 4 Gudde for Law Enforcensem, Technical Working Group on Crims Scene
vestigation, U.5 Dept. of Justica, Office of Justice Programs, Natiosa! Instituge of Justice, Rockville, MD ., p. 42,

id p. 24, - -
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mixture of DNA was obtained from the penile swabs and Mr. O"Keefe and Ms, Whitmarsh
cannot be excluded a5 contributors to this mixture. Because of the improper collection
technique, it is unknown if' Ms. Whitmarsh’s DNA was present on his penis prior to the
swabbing or if Ms. Whitmarsh’s DNA was introduced 1o the penile swabs during the . -
swabbing. Evidence contamination is misleading to an investigation and it results in'an
inability on the part of the crime laboratory to evaluate the true meaning of forensic resulis.”

3. Mr. O’Keefe's wounds

Based or the phetographs examined, Mr. O"Keefe appeared 1o have two injuries on his
right hand. It appears ag though he has a cut on the top joint of his right thumb gnd 2 cut
between the first and second joints of the right index finger. The exact mechanism by which
he received these injuries is snknown; however, given the presence of his blood on the light
switch in the bedroom, his blood on one side of the knife blade and on the handle of the
kmife, and his blood o the pants found in the bathroom, then it is most likely that he -
received these injuries around the same time that Ms, Whitmarsh received her injury. He
could have received his injuries just prior to her injury, at the same time as her injury, or
shortly after ker injury. ' = i

One possibility is that these injurics were obtaiped afier her injury. Other than being salf-
iuﬂicteduraocidental,ﬂwreappemmbemnthcrmechanimaatohnwhewwldhaw.
received these infurtes i they occurred after she received her injury. ]

Ancther possibility is that he received his injuries at the same time Ms, Whitmarsh
received her injury. This scenario is less likely than the other two scEmanos given the
location of Mr. O'Keefe's injuries, the angle of Ms. Whitmarsh's wound, the lack of blood
that would have been on the knife prios to her injury, and the fact that, according 1o the
autopsy report, no bones were struck. Injurics received by an assailant while stabbing
snmmnemmbaﬁmedbyasuddmmﬁunofmnﬁonduemumxpectedlyhitﬁnggbou
or other hard surface causing the hand to slide down on the blade and be cut® Injury to the

ilant’s band can also occur if the hand or handle of the knife becotnes bloody and the
hand slides down the knifc blade.'® Finally, the assailant could inadvertenily stab himself
while stabbing the victim."' If Mr, O’Keefe received his injuries at the same time that Ms.
Whitmarsh received her injury, then #t would requtire thet the knife have an unusual pogition
inhishand.anadonthisscmarin,thentheinjmiestuhaﬁpaniﬁmuldtmvebecnthc
tesuit of an accident,

Another possibility is that Mr. O’Keefs received his injuries prior to Ms. Whitnarsh
receiving her injury. Defense wounds are wounds of the cxtremities mcurred when an
tndividual atterpts to ward-off a pointed or sharp-edged weapon.'? Defense wounds are

Investigation: A Multidiseiplinary Approach, Robert R. Hazelwood and Ann Wolbert Burgess, eds., CRC Press,
Bocs Rxton, FIL, 1993, p. 73, o

? James, Stuart B, Kish, Peul £, ad Sutton, T Pmilette, Principles of Bloodsiain Fattern Analysis, CRC Taylor &
Francis, Bocs Raton, F1, 2008, P34, : '
lﬂml £

* Fhi '

" DiMao, Vincent J. and Dominick, Forensic Pathology, CRC Press, Boca Raton, FL, 2001, p, 215
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which he received his injuries at the same time that Ms. Whitmarsh received her injury,

4. Other notes of interest

The photographs do not indicate that M. O’Keefe was dripping blood around the cTime
scene outside of the immediate area of the bed despite the fact that he had actively bleeding
cuts on lus band. He may have used something to slow down or temporarily siop the
bleeding. '

The foilowing events cannot be sequenced. They all happened at some paint, but not
necessarily in the order listed, ‘ o

The pillowease was removed, possibly held together or bunched up, and then came in
contact with Ms. Whitmarsh's blood. '

Ms. Whitmarsh received her injury, Mr. O°Keefe's biood pext came in contact with one
side of the knife blade, and then the pillowease was placed or landed on the knife.

Ms. Whitmarsh's pants wese removed after they were saturated with blood and then

Shosprints were deposited afler stepping in blood.
5, The possibility of an accidental stabbing ol P
The possibility of an accidental stebbing cannot be ruled out. One scepario that supperts
an accidental stabbing is outlined in the thirg paragraph of “3. Mr, O'Keefe’s wounds.”

Other evidence supporting an accidental stabbing is the lack of defense wounds on Ms.
Whitmarsh’s extremitics and the presence of a single stab wound. I

These results and conclusions are subject to alteration if any new or previously und:sclomd

information is provided
George Schiro, MS, F-ABC
Forensic Scientist
P thic

FSR 3-09 Repart July 27, 2010; Page 4 of 4

& ;:”“29“9 f



Todd Cameron Grey. M.D.
———==cuilon brey, M.D.

Addregs: ; A
Work: Medical Examiner=g Office Home: 652 N. Litje Tree Circle
State of Utah Salt Lake City, Ut 34108
48 N. Medical Drive
SaltLake City, Ut. 84113
(801)584-8410

Fax: (801)-584-8435

b tion:
$ Yale University - B.A. 1976 Anthropology

Med} %
% Dartmouth Medical Schoof - M.D. June, 1980

ital Traiging:
7 e Anatomic Pathology - U1.C.5.D, (980, 981
> Resident Anatomic Pathology - .G 8 1 1981-1982

¢ m t
% Staff Anatomic Pathologist
Reboboth McKinley Christian Hospital 19821985
% Designated Pathologist
Office of the Medica] Investigator
McKmley County, New Mexieo | 983-1985
$ Associate Medical Examiner

University of Miami School of Medicine 1985-1985
XAssistant Medical Examinet ang Deputy Director

Office of the Medics Examiner, State of Ttah 1986-1988

XClinical Assistant Professor

Dept. of Pathology, University of Utah Sehool of Medicine 1986-1992

Curreat H
3 Chief Meadical Examiner
Office of the Medical Examiner - Stage of Litah

% Adjunct Associgte Professor of Fathoiogy
University of Utah School of Medicine

Updated July 9. 201
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Curriculum Vitae - Todd G, Grey, M.D, " Page 2

¢ Nationa| Board of Medical Examiners, Diplomate. August [, 1981 #238440.
$ Board Certified, Anatomic and Forensic Pathology, June 20, 1986 &

Licensure:
% State of Utah No. 86-17491.1205
$ Previously licensed in California and New Mexico

onors end Awards:
SBA cl.unlandeh'imHonursinthemajar
$M.D. Dean=s Honor Rall
$A.0A Honor Saciety

0 cle :
5 National Association of Medical Examiners
$ American Academny of Forengic Sciences
% Utah Society of Pathologises

, d -
$ Sudden Infant Death Syndrome Advisory Committee
Utah Department of Heath, 1986 to 2005
§ Vil Statistics Task Force-Desth Certificate Revision Committes
Utah Department of Health, August-December 1987
$ Department Improvement Committes

Division of Facility and Construction Management, State of Utak, April-May 1983
$ Information Technology Task Force :
Assigned to review Dept. of Health data processing systems and make
recommendations  for improvement, July ta December 1992
$ Child Fatality Review Committee - _
Muiti-Agency Board to review deaths of children in Utsh, November 159] 10 present
$InfamaﬁdFetalDeuhT=chnica!R=ﬂewCom‘rtee o
Utah Department of Heslth. Division of Family Health Services, August 1997 to
Septernber 1995 S
3 Residency Committes _
Department of Pathology, University of Utah School of Medicine, June 1990 to presemt § Healtl
Tasked to rewrite various statyes concerning the coﬂnctinnmduscnfdmby ihe state
heaith department, Augusi-September 1995 _
% Suicide Prevention Task Fospe £
Legisiatively mandated committee taskeq with providing recommendations og ways to
reduce the number of suicides that occur in Whah, July - November 1990
$ Intermountain Tissue Center Seientific Advisory Board _
Pmﬁdmadﬁaandcxperﬁseanissumﬁlﬂadtuﬁssue%ﬁng. October 2000 to
2006

Updated July 9, 2010
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tations:
$Grey, T.C. AKearns Mid-Air Collision-The Role of the Medical Examiner in Aircrafy
Disasters® Aircraft Disaster Seminar, Jackson Hole, WY, October 1987 '

S Grey, T.C. APreserving the Sceneg and AMechanisims of Injuryg
Eighth Annual I ife Flight Conference, S1.C, UT., March 1989

% Penny, J.A., Grey, T.C., and Sweeney, £S5, ACause of Death: Venomous Snake Biss,
Maurer of Death: Homicided Presentad by Grey, T.C. at the 40 Annual Meeting of
American Academy of Forensic Sciences, Philadeiphia, Pa | February 1988

$Grey, TC. and Schaittker, SI AA Fowl Deed at the Aviary@ 33
National Association of Medica Examiners 1989 Annyal Meeting, Sanibe|
Island, FL., October 1989

% Grey, T.C. AEquivocal Deathy: >What=s the Manner With You?=a@
5" Annual National Conference on Serial Murders, Unidentified Bodies and
Missing Persons, Nashville, Th., March 1993

Snowbird, Ut, May 1953

X Grey, T.C. AHighway Accident Deaths: The Role of the Medical Examiner and 2
Plea to Change Utah Law@

Northwest Association of Forensic Sciences-Fa)l Meeting, SLC, Ut October
1996 : .

XGrey, T.C., ASudden Infant Death Syndromes

Family Practice Grand Rounds, Salt Lake Regional Medical Center, SLC, Ut
June 1997 '

Pediatric Grand Rounds, Pemary Children=s Medical Center, SLC, Ut,
September 1997

Updated July 9, 2010
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Curriculum Vitge - Todd C.zey. MD

h Page 4
SLC, UT., October 1997

$ Grey, T.C. AForensic Issues for First Responders, AGunshot Wounds@, ASharp Force
Injuries® and ABhmt Force Injuriesq _
26" Aanual Intermountain E.M S Conference, SLC, UT, November 14 - 15, 2002

5 Grey, T.C. ACSI Utah - The Investigation and Interpretation of Equivoce] Deaths@
Intsrmountain Critical Care Conference. Salt Lake City, UT. October 28, 2005

$ Grey. T.C. AForensic Pathology® Idaho Council on Domesti Violence and Victim
Assistance, Boise D, June 7, 2006 "

% Sweeney, E.S. and Grey, T.C. ALetter to the Editor-SIDSE New England Journal of
Medicine Val. 315, No, 26, Dec. 25, 1986.

$Urey, T.C. and Sweeney, E.3, APhysicians and the Death Penalty (letier)a.
West. J, Med. 1987, July 147:207.

$ Sweeney, E.S. and Grey, T.C. 2Cause of Death-Proper Completion of the Death
Certificate (letter)@ JAMA Vo, 258, No. 22, Dec. 11, 1987 riir s

% Grey, T, Mittlemar, R, and Wetli, C.. AAortoesophageal Fistulas and Sudden Death:
A Report of Two Cases and Literature Review® Am. 1 of Forensic Medicine and
Pathology Vol, 9, No. 1, March 1938 pp 19-22, g

$ Andrews, JM., Sweeney, E.8, and Grey, T.C. AHelp, I=m Freezing to Deatha ASCF
Ferensic Pathology Check Sample. F.P. 905 (Accepted April 8, 1988). '

#Grey, T.C. and Sweency, E.S. APaticnt Controlled Analgosia (letier)@ JAMA Vol 259,
Mo. 15, April 15, 1988, '

$ Andrews, 1 M., Sweeney, E.S., Grey, T.C. and Wetzel, T. AThe Biohazard Potentiai of
Cyanide Poisoning During Postmortern Examination® J. of Forensic Sciences Vol, 34,
No. 3, September 1989 pp 12801284, , -

% Grey, T.C. ADeffbrillator Injury Suggesting Bite Mark@ Am. J. of Forensic Medicine
and Pathology Vol, 10, No. 2, June 1989 pp 144-145. :

# Grey, T.C. ABook Review; Salamander: The story of the Mormon Forgery Murders,
(Stiltoe and Roberts)@ J. of Foremsic Sciences Vol. 34, No. 4, July 1989 pp 1044,

# Grey, T.C. AThe Incredible Bouncing Bullet: Projectile Exit Through the Entrance

Undated Jufy 9, 2010
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Curriculum Vitae - Todd C. Grey, M.D. . Page §

Wound@ J. of Forensic Sciences Val. 28, No. 5, September 1993, pp 1222.

$ Grey, T.C. AShaken Baby Syndrome: Medical Controversies and Their Role in -
Establishing AReasonzble Doubté Child abuse Prevention Council Newsletter, May
1008, |

$ CDC (Grey, T.C. - contributor) AFatal Car Trunk Entrapment Involving Children
United Statcs, 1997-1998" MMWR Vol. 47, No. 47, 1998 pp 1019-22 -

$ Grey, T.C. AUnintentional and Intentional Imjuries@ in Understandin, ioi
{Second Edition), McCance, . L. and Huether, 8. E., Mosby, 5t. Louis. 2000.

5 CDC (Grey, T.C. - contributor) AHypathermia Related Deaths - Utah, 2000 and United
States, 1979 -1998" MMWR Vol. 51, No. 4, 2001 pp 76-78 :

$Bennett, P.J., McMahon, W.M., Watabe J., Achiiles J., Bacon M., Coon M.,
Grey T., Keller T_, Tate D. Teaciuc |, Workman J. and Gray D. ATryptophian
Hydroxylase Polymorphisms in Suicide Victimsa, Psychiatr. Genet. 2000
Mar;10{1):13-7.

$ Boyer, R. 5., Rodin, E. A. & Grey, T.C. AThe Skult and Cervical Spine - =
Radiographs of Tutankahem: A Criticai Appraisal@ Am. J. of Neurcradial,, 24:
1142-1147, June/July 2003 B

¢ Caravati, EM., Grey, T.C., Nangle, B., Rolfs, R.T. & Peteraon-chzni_k, C. A
Alncrease in Poisoning Deaths Caused by Non-Illicit Drugs C Utah, 1991R2003",
Moarpidity & Mortality Weekly Report. January 21, 2605/ Vol. 54/ No. 2. e

$ Cailor, W. B., Petersen, E,, Gray, D., Grey, T. C., Lameroux, T & Bennst, P,
APreliminary Findings of Noncompliance with Psychotrepic Medication and
Prevalence of Methamphetarmine Intoxication Associated with Suicides. Crisis
2005; Vol 26 (2): 78 - 84. = g

er training activities: N
ADetermination of the Cause and Manner of Death Presented July 1988 at Utah
Peace Officers Association Annual Conference, Wendover, Nevada. )

S Alnjuries due to Gunfire, Sharp and Blunt Foroes€ Eight hour presentation to
Wyoming Coroner=s Basic Certification Course, Wyoming Law Enforcement
Academy, Douglas, Wyoming, February 26, 1991, March 23, 1993 and June 17,
1996 i

Updated July 9, 2010
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Curriculum Vitae - Todd C. Grey. M.D. Page 6

ADecath Investigation® Eight hour course for law enforcement pmfessamals on
investigative techniques and pathologic fi indings. i

Cedar City, Utah, April 5, 1991,

St George, Utah, April 10, 1992,

Vernal, Utah, June 5, 1992.

APathological Techniques for Discovering Non-Accidental Causes of Deaﬂi in
Childreng. Prosecution Council Training Seminar on Child Sexual Abuse and
Child Fatalities, Snowbird, Utah, Jure 18, 1991. :

AShaken Baby Syndrome-The Role of the Medica] Examiner@. Child Abuse
Prevention Council of Ogden, Weber State University, Ogdea, Utah, Aogust 6,
1992,

AMechanism, Cause and Manner of Death: The Proper Completion of the Death
Certificate® Pediatric Grand Rounds, University of Utah Medical Cmter Sa.lt
Lake City, Utah, February 22, 1993,

AS.LD.S. and The Office of the Medical Examiner® Ussh Department of Health
Symposium on 5.1.D.8. for Public Health Nurses, Salt Lake City, Uu.h._, March 30,
1593,

APattems of Injury: Investigative Challenges@ Federal Bureau of I.nvest:gauun-
College of American Pathologists Course EMedicolegal Investigation of Déath &
Injury in Child Abuse and S.1D.5. Salt Lake City, Utah. August 14, 1995

AFire Related Deaths@ Sat Lake City Fire Department, September 12, 1995,
Also presented to Idsho Chapter, Interational Arson Investigators, November 7,
1996,

AForensic Medicine; The Vital Link in Organ/Tissue Donation Intermountain
Organ Recovery Systems Fducational Symposium, Salt Lake City, Utah, May 6
1997.

AWhat Your Pathofogist Can and Can=t Do For Youg@
Utah Prosecution Council Presecutor Training Course. Layton, UT, September
18, 2003

AProsecutors and the Office of the Medical Examiner@ Utah Prosecution Cmmml
Homicide Conference, St. George, UT. November , ZDUE

Updared July 9, 2010 o ' 'f A
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Curricilum Vitae - Todd C. Grey, MD.

QOther Activities:

5

Initial design development and participation in oversight of design and
construction of a new 18,000 sq. f. facility for the OfFice of the Medical
Examiner, State of Utah, 19891991, B e

Development, purchase and implementation of Macintosh? based computer
systemn for the Office of the Medical Examiner, State of Utah, 1989-1991.

Completion of Series I and II of Certified Public Manager=s Course. University

of Utah and Utah Department of Human Resource Management. November
19935,

Developroent, purchase and implementation of MS Windows? based computer
system for the Office of the Medical Examiner, State of Utah, .1996-1997,

Development of web based Medical Examiner database and case management
program, State of Utah, 2009 it 395

Updaied July 9, 2010
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L@)IS F. MORTILLARO, PHIg)
.5{11 South Rancho Drive, Suite F-37
Lss Vegas, Nevada 89106
(792) 388-9403 FAX (702) 333-9?;3

LICENSURE;

" Psychologist, State of Nevada, 1987, license number PY(169
' Marriage & Family Therapist, State of Nevada, 1935, license mummber 310

AREAS OF SPECIALIZATION:

* Clinical - Counseling Psychology

* Clinica] N logy

- Clinical Health and Rehabilitation Psychology

1984: National Certified Counsalor, Nations) Board for Certified Counselors,
certificate number 447
1988: Diplomate, American Academy of Pain Management, certificate number 144
1996: Diplomate, American Board of Forensie Examiners, certificate number 21 18
1996: Diplomate, American Boerd of Farensic Medicine, certificate munber 1393
- Feﬁow and Diplomate, Ametican Board of Medical Paychotherapists,
certificate mumber 2096 ;
1996: Disability Analyst and Fellow, American Board of Disability Anaiysts,
certificate number 3556
1997: DiEImate of the American Board of Peycholagical Specisitics

* Forensic e logy, certificate numbar 6112
’ Fauﬁ]}rMﬂmljc Relations Peychology, certificate nupiber 61132

- California Life Credential in Pupil Personnel Services with Specizlizations in C
Psychometry, Counseling, Social Work and Attendance, 1971, certificats number 104682

* California Life Credentia] in Adwlt Education Subjects (Basic Education, Biology, Chemistry,
General Sciences, French and Social Sciences), 1969, certificate mumber 293258

EDUCATIONAL HISTORY:
Post Gradnate Certificate of 8 tization in Clinjcai Neuropsychelogy

The Fielding Institute, Santa Barm California
Dates Attended: February, 1996 - January, 199§

Major: Clinical szvﬂlbythulngy
Cotirse Work: seiméster units
2000 hour practicum

200 hours of clinical case sapervision
Date Certificate Confermed: Fanuary 24, 1958

Ph.D., United States International Univessity, San Diego, California
Major: Professional Psychology

Minor: Clinical Psychodingnostics

Dates Attended: 1976 - 1973

Date Degree Conferred: hune 11,1978

0297




M.P.A., University of Southem Caiifornie, Los Angeles, California
Majar: Public Adminjstmtion

Minor. Criminal Justice Administration

Dates Attended: 1974 - 1075

Date Degree Conferred: January 25, 1975

M.5.Ed,, University of Southery California, Los Anpeles, California
Major: Connseling Psychology

Minor: School Psychology

Dates Attended; 1967 - 1671

Date Degree Conferred: August 30, 1968

B.S. Loyola University of Los Angeles, California
Majeor: giluln ——

Minor: /Phi y

Dates Attmdﬂn:iﬁnlfgﬁz P?;%ﬁ

Date Degree Conferred: June 3, 1966

Predoctoral Internship (2500 hours)
76-1978

* Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisors: Patrick Maioney, Ph.D.
Verdun Trione, Ed.D.

Supervised forty bour per week practice of conducting psychological evaluations and performing
psychuthn:nﬂy far fuvenile delinquents, status offenders, and abandoned, neglected, and abused
children their family members in & juvenile court setting.  Also, provided case
consultation/conferencing and training for a staff of institutional youth counselors and probetion and
parvie officers, as well as provided expert courl testimany as requested. )

» Carelinit Pro
Lake Mead Hospital
North Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervised six hour per week practice of conducting psychological evalmtions, as ;wel_I a3
peeforming individual, group and family psychotherapy and ronsultation/conferencing services in
an inpatient hospital setting for substance a i : .
Postdectors] Intermship (2500 kours)

1578 - 198D

- Jean Hanma Clark Rehabilitation Center
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisor: Verdun Trione, Ed.D.

Supervised forty hour per week practice of conducting psychological, neuropsychological,
presurgical and vocational evaluations; provided biofeedback therapy and individualfgmup_‘

Cumiculum Vitee
Louis F. Mortillare, Ph.D.
Page 2
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psychotherapy to help clients cope with pain and psychosocial issues related to physical digability;
performed case consultation/conlerencing within & multidisciplinary evaluation and frestrmat team
setting in a rehabilitation center for industrially injured workers . :

Sehoo! Prychalogy Internship {708 heurs)

1371

* Pasadena Unified School District
Pasadena, California

Supervisor;  Allen Webh, Ph.D.
O'Neal Varner, M.A. (350 supervised hours)

- Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Supervisor: Allen Webb, Ph.D. {350 supervised hours)

Conducted psychological evalustions for school-aged stdents invoived with the Clark Coun
Juvenile Court ax an adjudicated delinquent, child in need of supervision, or & child abandon

judge, hearing master, probation and parole officers, parents, and the Clark County School Distriet
for use in developing prescriptive remedial educational and behaviora) chanping treatment programs.

Frivats Paychiology Practice

As pert of & diversified outpatient and hospital practice, the following psychological s&vi:ns; are
provided not only for self-referred clients, but also upon referral from physicians, chiropraciors,
insurance claims adjustors, nurse case fuanagers, psychological colleagues, attomeys, the courts,
private industry, the public sector, .

Climical Ammmmts: F{-::n:rcmic Assessments:

* Netropsychological . mnl;petencr

* Peychological * Death Penaity Mitigation

* Presurgica) - Dangerousness

* Vocational - Fitness For Duty

* Substance Use +Child C

- Pain Managemnent * Pablic Safety Officer Post Job Offer Screening

Curticulum Vitae
Louis F. Mortillarn, Ph.1D.
Page 3




ICli.l:lica.{IIi Treatment: Clinical Consultation/Conferencing With: _
« Individual Psychotherapy - Physicigns _
i - Group Counseling * Paychological colleagues '
* Family Counseling * Lawyers, judges, appeals and hearing officers
* Marita] Counseling * Claims adj OT OiIrSE CASE managers -
* Biofeedback Therspy - Physical and occupetional therapists -
* Psycho Education * Clients and client family members
: * Vocational rehabilitation counselors

Psychological services provided are for eliznts refermed from the following practice arcas and prﬁnnt
with 2 pumber of medica! and psychosocial problems: . oo

* Hospital practice
*  Heaith South Rebebilitstion Haspitals
* Head trauima
* Pogi-surgica) rchabilitation
* Spinal cord injuries
. Cerebmwscul’ar accidents

Medical/Surgical Hospitals (UMC;, Valley, Hiimaiia, Mountain View, Desert Spiings, and
Summer]in)

+ Post-nurgical recovery

» Traina recovery
Fountain Ridge Alcoholism Center

- Substance abuse/dependence detoxification process

* Full range of psychological disorders

Montevista Psyehiatric Hospital
- Adult Inpetient
Adult Outpatient

- Forensic Practice
* Clark County Public Defapder
* Capital Murder
+ Comipetency 1o stand trial and assist counsel
+ Sexual dangerousness
* Clark County Special Public Defender
+ Capital Murder
' Degth penalty mitigation
» Clark County Districi Attomey
* Sexua) abuse
* Domestic violence
+ Capita] munder
- Defense and Plaintiff's Attorneys
' Traumatic brain injuries
- Motor vehicle accidents
- Slip and falis
* Toxic exposure !
' Cotnpetency to manage one's own effairs
- Clark County Family Court
- Child custody
« Parental fitness
- Parent-child reunification
* Special Master/Coperenting Coordinator
Curriculum Vitas -
Louis F. Mortillaro, Ph.D.
Page 4 .




8 ®
Private Industry

*  Fitness For Duty Eveluations
Work place violence patentjal
Public Agencies 8
- Fitness For Duty evaluations for the Mesquite, Nevada, State of Nevada Department of

Public Safety, Henderson, Nevada, State of Nevada Department of Risk Managemerit and
City of Las Vegas Persanne] Department

1595 - 2002
Prychology Direcior
NovaCare Pain and Rehabilitation Center

Provide clinical health and rehabilitation psychological services for NovaCare's CARF accredited
Pain and Rehabilitation Center's Chronic Pain Management Program including conducting

psychological and neuropsychologica! evaluations; providing individual and group pain and stress
management counscling, biofeedback end psychocducational lecnires; and performing
psychological consultation/conferencing with physicians. clajims EXATRINETS, DUrsé Case MAn:gers,
rebabilitation counselors, attomneys, hearing o and appeals officers. Clinic was closed in
December 2003, -

1995 - present
Post Job Offer Prychologieal Evatesier

On an ag-needed basis, provided pre-employment conditional job offer screening and evaluation
services for public snfg?r tEscmncl {police officers, corrections officers and police officer cadeis),
meeting the standards Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 and Civil Rights Agt 0f 1991,

Served the following police dﬁ:\mnwmts:
* 1995 . 1998 - Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
2003 - present - Mesquite Police nt

2006 - present - City of Henderson Police Departeent

1990 - 1995
Co-Owner/Psyehology Director

Imjury Management Associates of Nevada, dba Nevada Pein and Rehabilitation Center, Las Vegas,
Nevada (gold to NovaCare Qutpetient Rehabilitstion Division - May, 1995} -

The Nevada Pain and Rehabilitstion Center was Southern Nevada's first privately owned
multidisciplinary CARF accredited rehebilitation center providing ;:vnlmnul? and trestment
programs for chronjc pain management, injury management, pain counse ing, work hardening/work
simulation, and sinﬁd‘ar service medical, psychological, physica! end cecupational - therapy
treatments primarily ind_ustrial]}r injured workers. o B
Clinical services provided inchuded, for industrialty injured workers, conducting 'psjn:hoéuginﬂ,
presurgical and peurapsychelogical evaluations; providing individual and group pain and stress
ol counseling, binfeedback therapy end petiemt education lectures; i
peychological consultation/conferencing with piysicians, claims examiners, nurse cass managers,
rehabilitation connselors, judges, sttormeys, hearing officers and appeals officers. .
Cumenlum Vitne :
Louis F. Mortiltam, PRI,
- Page 5
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Administrative duties included, in association with parteer, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, assisted in planning, organizing and directing the Mﬂjwm ang
support staff of fifty employees; preparing and administating the ecorporate b » approval of
purchase of capita] items and jes recruiting, hiring and training of staff, specifically
psychologists, test exariner, and  hiofeedback therapist; setting work standards and evaluating
cmployee performance; establishing policies and pmccdums; participating the senjor i
team and executive committes mestings; maintaising public contact wi referring sources:
coordinating the public relations and rmarketing efforts,

1985 - 1994

Owner/Consultant
Children's Oasis Schoals, Inc.
Las Yegas, Nevada

LCo-gwner with spouse of two El'mh gol and day cere centers located in Spr Valley and The
Lakes, Las Vegas. The Spring Vailey School had a continaous corollment u}- 108 childrer and The
Lakes School served ap average of 220 children, As owner. facifitated the recruitment and
superviston of directors for the two schools, prepaved and sdministered the corporate budget, and

helped orgenize and implement the schoo! cursiculum, ' The Spring Valley School was sald in -

197§ - 1989

Chief Paychologist

Jean Hanpa Clerk Rehabilitation Center
Las Vegas, Nevada

Performed the duties of Chief Paychologist in a multidisciplinary rehabilitation center owtned and
operated by the State Industrial Insurance System (S11S). :
Clinical doties  included providing injured workers peychological, presurpical and
nevropsychological evaluations; individual and group pain and stress manapement counseling,
biofeadback therapy and psychoeducational lectures; and performing psychological consultation with
muans claims examiners, nurse case managers, rebabilitation counselars, judges. attorneys,
ing afficers and appesls officers. B

1971 - 1978
Chief Pyychologiat

Clark County Juvenile Court
Las Vegas, Nevada

Porformed the dutics of Chief Psychologistfor Clark County Nevade's Juvenile Conurt with jivessic
detinquents, children in need of supervision, and abandoned, neglected, and abused children.

Curriculum Vitae
Lowis F. Mortitlare, Ph.I3.
Page &
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Clinical services included conducting psychological eveluations used in court placement disposition:
pravided indjvidual, group and family counscling; performed psychological
consultation/conferencing with the probation, parole, institutional and judicial departments: callectsd
and analyzed data for research and evaluation designs of fedenalty finded court programs: and

] 4

provided continving aducation seminars for staft and educational instrection for youthful offenders

Admiristrative duties included planning, organizing and directing services; preparing and
edministering the department budget; ordering supplies and equipment; facilitating the ing and
wriing of Federal Grant proposals; mordim:ing work activities and meintaining extepsive contact
with other court servires and community agencies; recruiting, hiring and training of Psychological
services staff; setting work steadards and evalvating employee performence; ; lementing empioyes
counselmg, disciplinary or fermination procedutes Whms;fﬂummm; cl:huac:ed, analyzed and
utilized data in administrative and department accountability studics; serving on the Director's Senior
t Team.

- 1971

Adult Ednestion Instructar . o e
Work Incentive Pro (partnership progrem between the Department of Employment and the
Department of Fami Services)

Los Angeles City Schools, Los Angeles, California

Teacher ofbesic education subjects, such as math, reading, English grammar and spelling to welfare
recipients in & federally fimd pragzam located in South Central Los Angeles (Watts area). Upen
successful completion of dgs educational remediation program, recipients were referred for
vocational rehabilitation training leading to re-entering the job marker, o

1968 - (969
Employment Counselor
b of foyment
Eamwffpﬂahfonu' ia

Provided employment counselin g and vocational testing with adults end teenagers for job
development and plecement Eervicesin the pr:domi.nmryu}_?:ss;mnic Comununity in east Los Angeles,

~

High School Tencher/Conch
Black-Foxe School, Loa Angeles, Califarmia

Teacher of biclogy mmml science subjects for students in grades 9-12. Also served zs g vm'ﬁiiy
track coach and co ar/ N
RY EM

faculty advisor to junior and senigr Classes,

Associate Producer - Ask Rita Television Show
Martin Bergman and Rits Rudner, Progducers

Curricufum Vitae
Louis F, Moartillaro, Ph.D,
Page 7
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Part-Time College Teaching:

1976 - 1984

Park College School for Community Education:
Parkville, Missouri

- Adjunct professor of Paychology in the off campus program located at Nellis Air Force Hase,
Nevarln, )

» Taught at least one undergraduate psycholegy class per semester from the following curriculum
offerings: Theories of Personality, Counseling Theory, Tesis & Measurements, Special Topics
in Social Pswhu]og“mﬂ Independent Study.

* Served as the Resident Academic Director providing curriculum accountability, teacher
evaluations, and teachey recruitment services in association with the residemt program
agministrator. i

(978 - 1540

Nova University
Las Vegas, Nevada

* Instructor in the offcampus graduaie educstion curriculum tavght in Las Vegas, Nevads.

* Taught classes in Stress Management, Human Sexuality, Parental Commseling, Exceptionn)
Chiidren, Educational Theory Into Practice and Administration and Supervision. |

* Performed mentor and advisor services for students completing their master's project.

1973 - 1976

Clark Coupty Cﬁmmunity Cnljuge
Las Vegas, Neveda

* Part-time Instructor of undergraduate courses, o
- Taught courses in criminal justice administration, general psychology, and the psychology
of adjustment. :

1278 . 1579

New Coliege/Stoner Chiropractie Foundation
Las Vegas, Nevada

+ Instructor

- Taught eourses in behavioral science applications for chiropeactic doctors enrolled in &
cm:;m:mg educztion program co-sponsored by the Stoner Chiropractic Foundation & New
Callege, : _—

1377

College of Great Falls, Montana
Great F&I_Ls, Montana

* Instructor hom

- Taught a winter quarter class (intense format) titled “Using Commmity Resourees {ncluding
Diversion)" for the State of Montana probation officers, youth instingtion Supervisors, and
aftercare workers, :

Curriculurn Vitae
Louis F. Monillaro, Ph.D.
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University of Nevada, Las Vegas
Lag Vegas, Nevada

: ?ﬂ*ﬁme Ingtructer & i ; Fasily
* Taught undergraduate course in Strese anagement and graduste courses in Fami
Dyramics, Counscling in Agencies, and Special Pmbimngriaé' Family Dysfunctian. ;.

1986 - 1590

Golden Gate University
Sen Franciseo, Caiifornia

- Part-time Instructor

* Taught graduaie kv:lmmhmwchdusignmmﬁsﬁuinm MBAMPA
pro located off canNm.m &t Forl Irwin, Celtfornia; Edwards Air Farce Base, Califomniz;
Neliiz Air Force Base, Nevada: and George Air Force Base, Victorville, California,

Tratning fiid Comsiltation Servicss:
Provided educationsl seminars and organizatione] consulting for the following elients:

- Dlingis Probation Council, 1976 - 1978
* Nationa! Cotmecil of Tuvenile & Family Court Judges, 1976 - 1973
* Tropicana Hotel, 1986. 1938
* EG&G, 1981 - 1986 ;
- Sands Hotel, 1988 ;
 Mardi Gras Best Wesierm Hotel, 1981 - 1980
» Clark County School District, 1974 - 1978
- Home of the Good Shepherd, 1975
- Furnace Creek Inn (Death Valley), 1989 - 1996
. Nevada Industrial Commission, 1979 - 1987

" Nevada State Psychology Association:
1991 - 1952: Treasurer and Executive Committes Member,
2001 - 2002: President elect and Executive Committer member,
2002 - 2003: President and Fxecutjve Cormnitiee member,
2003 « 2004: Past President and Execwtive Commitiee member,

* The American Pain Soci
- Intemational Association for the Study of Pain

. [nSDciel}r for Bﬁhnvinml M:;.iicin;

* Intemational Neuropsychology Saciety

» Natione) Acaderrry of Neumpsychohﬁ'

* Coalition of Clinical Practitioners in europsychology {Charter Member)
Curriculum Vitae

Louis F, Mortillaro, PR.D.
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- Reitan Bociety (Charter Member)

- Association for Applied Physiology and Biofecdback

» The American
* Phi Delta Kap

Association for Marringe & Pamily Therapy (Clinical Member}
- University of Southern California C

- Phi Kappa Pht. University of Southern Califasnia Chapter

» The American Academy of Pain Matag

emnent

» Program Committes Member (term: 1997 - 2000} « Division of Counseling Psychology
of the American Peychological Associstion

FUBLICATIONS:

Mormillaro, Louis F.

Trione, Verdun and
Mortillero, Lowis F.

Mortillare, Louis F.
and Carmany, James P

Mortillaro, Louis F.
Mortillaro, Louis F.

Mortiltero, Louis F.

Mortillaro, Louis F.

Mortillaro, Lonis F.
and Stomer, Fred 1.

Fisher, Ronald, Mortillaro, Louis.
and Johnson, Donald

Rl Y g Math: M (3] P E HN( :.'1 L2 =TT A1
Excrciges, Santa Ana California: Methods Res
Associates, Inc, 1971, '

“Measuring Professional Performance of Counselyrs by
Objectives” in Trione, Fj Th ar
Counselors, Xerox CoHege Publishing, Lexi n, 1975,

"Smine"&cl;uu_mahility Meodel for the Juvenils Justice

Systemn, ieg, May 1975, Vol, 26, No. 2, pp.
35.39.
"The Behavioral Accountability Program,” = Juvegils

Lustice, August, 1975, Vol. 26, No. 3, pp. 24-3¢. |

"Behavieral Negotiation Process,” -Group Les
' No. XX, November 1977, pp_ 5-6.

“The Use of Psychological Services in # Juvenili Court
St':lrgns," duvenile Jushce, May 1978, Vol. 29, No. 2, pp.
7-12. ‘ ;

"An Analysis of California Psychological Inventory
Factorzin Predicting and Differentiating hetween Juvenile
Delinquents and Status Offenders, Unpublished Drictoral
Drissertation, San Diego, California, June 1973.

"Personal Evaluation of Dohm%rs of Chiropractic Enrull;fd

in a Continuing Education gram,” - The Digest
iro i jcs, November/December, 1978,

Volume 21, Number 3, pp. 24-25, =

*A Discussion on the Behavioral Medicine Approsich 1o
the Treaiment of Chronic Back Pain,”

2nd Guidapce Jonmal, November 1979, Vol. 1, pp. 1523,

Mortillare, Louis F, "A Coordinatad Personne] Sysiemn for Hiring Chiropractic
Assistants and Chirdpractic Techniciaps,
h| i i, June 1980, Yal, 17, No. 6, pp.
30-32. : '

Cumiculum Vitae

Louis F. Moriiflaro, Ph.D.
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Youth Charities of Southern Nevada

Big BrothersBig Sisters of Souther Nevada {past President)
Bﬂf & InGcirls Clut of Southern Nevada

Nevada Association for the Handicappad

Mispah House .

Nevada Network inst Domestic Violence

Fraternal Order of the Desert Big Homn Sheep -

Nevada Boys & Girls Club of Henderson, Nevada

Nevada State Board of Psychological Examiners
First Term: December 14, 1992 10 June 30, 15995
Second Term: July 1, 1995 to June 30, 2000
President of Board: Juiy i 1998 to june 30, 2000

MEDIA APFEARANCES:

Interviews for local television pewscasts
Interviews on local radio shows

HONORS AND AWARDS:

Congressional Recognition - Hon, Jor C. Porter (U.S. Congressman) - Recognition as one of the
original founders of Big Brothers & Big Sisters of Nevada (11/05/05) - o
Psycholagist of the Year, Nevada State Psychological Association (2003) e
Outstanding Service Awatd - State of Nevada Board of Psychalogica] Examiners (1992-2000
Qutslanding Service Award - Board of Directors, Boys & Girls Club of Herderson, Nevada 2004
Outstanding Service Award - Board of Directors, Boys & Girls Club of Southern Nevada {15%82)
Duwst?;gg:g Service Award - Board of Directors, Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Southern Nevada
(197 3 ; i

Track C of the Year - League in Los Angeles, California (1968)

Outstanding Student Legisll:::f - Loyola University of Los Angeles, Califomia {1965}

FRESENTAYTONS: ;

1571 - Present Presentation of numergus in-service training sessions for governmental - )
agensics/private businesses on a variety of psycholopical issues o

1376 Youth in Trouble Conference: The Adolescent With Leamning Disabilities, Lag Vegas,
Nevada November 4-6, 19?65 3
Presantation: “The Agencies Speak” -

1977 Third Annual We:stgn Regional Conference: “Humanistic Approaches in Behavior
Modification™ Las Vegas, Nevaga  March 10-12, 1677
Chairperson: Homework in Counseling & Psychotherapy: The Use of Systematic Planned
Assignments 1o Promote Transfer and Enhance Efficiency : i

1978 APGA Convention- Washington, D.C., March 20-24, 1978 “The Behaviora] Accountability

, Program” -

1979 APGA Convention - Las Vegas, Nevadn April 2-5, 1979 :

“An Analysis of California Psychological inventory Factors in Differentiating and Predicting
- Between Status Offenders and Juvenile Delinquents™ i Y

Curriculum Yitae
Loujs F. Mortiltaro, PE.D>.
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1954

1599
2003

2006

2006

2007

2007

CCBA Family Law Sermpar .

New Approach; Child Custody Evaluations and Altemative Soiuticns
Februery 5, 1959 ;
Nevada State Psychological Assaciation Annus! Conference Facilitator: Ethical Issues in
Clinical Practice, May 21, 1595

17* Annual Low Back Pain Conference, Las Vegas, Nevada

June 27-29, 2001 i e

Program Title: Psychological Testing: Short ng Version

Stete Bar of Nevada 17" Annual Family Law Conference

Program Title: Child Custody: A Local Perspective

Sexved &5 a ;nﬂenurf&aml discussant

March 17, 20086, Ely, Nevada

Nevada Rehabilitation Center’s Continuation Education Class

Las Vegas Nevada Apnl 20, 2006

Program Title: Psychoi:giml Injuries Due to Auto Accidents

U.S. District Court - District of Nevada 2007 District Conference

Program Title: Anger Mansgement to Reduce Stress & Avoid Ethical Problems
Sexved ms guest speaker Mey 3, 2007, Las Vegns, Nevada

The National Divorce Skills Institute - 2007

. Program: The Role of The Child Custody Evilvetion, Cosumon Diagnostic Tools Used and

How Their Function is Carried Out
Served a3 guest speaker, September 19, 2007, Las Vegas, Nevada.

Curriculum Vitse
Louis F. Mortillare, Ph.D.
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In relationship to the time frame that waou
and Mr. Okeefe were lnveolved with each other, you ha

actually lived together -- you spent some evenings,

you said, spent some nights together. And based upon

answering the gquestions freom the State, I take it that

the apartment that you were in had a joint lease or
was with Mr. Ckeefe pr was it in your name?

A, It was supposed to be in our name, both of
OUr names.

0. In relationship to that the two of you also
bought a wvehicle together?

A. Correct.

Q. In fact, Mr. Okeefe had used your credit Lo

buy a gar, so yen were stiil obligated under the nate

on that car at the time this happened?
A, Correct,

- You kept a key to the apartment complex or

the apartment that you and he shared. Did you ever gof

back into that apartment prior to the death of

Victoria?

A Yes,

o What did vyou go back there for?

A. Toe go pick up the rest of my things, what was
left there, I couldn't pick up the two large boxes

that were left there, so he actually tock them and

d

MERLCER & ASSOCIATES
{702) 388-2913
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dropped them off at a frierd's house.

Q. Whether you say he?

A, I'm so0rry, Bryan.

G. Buring the course of that time, did you ever
have an gpportunity to meet Victoria Whitmarsh?

A. Victoria reguested that I meet with her. I
thought about it and I declined.

Q. Khen she requested that she meet with vyou,
did you talk with her on the phone?

A. Yo, several times.

2. What was the general content of that
conversation?

AL The general content of that conversabion was
why she was s5till seelng Bryan, why I was =till seeling
Bryan. Also, the fact that 1if I made him upset, if I
get him mad, that he would and could hurt me, Becausd
she said he had done that to her.

O During the time that you were with Mr.
Okeefe, he didn't hurt you physically, did he?

MR. SMITH: Objection, relevance.

THEE COQURT: The relevance?

MR. PIKE: 1In response to the observations
ui whether he was intoxicated. Let me rephrase the
guestion,

Q. During the time that you resided with Mr.

MERCER & ASSUCLATES
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Okeefe, you had ab opportunity to see him both when hd

was socber and both when he was intoxicated, is that

correct?®?
A. Yes.
Q. And up to the time close to the time when you

left, was he drinking more or less than he usually

did?

A, I would say that he was drinking & litcle bit
more.

Q. What was he drinking usually?

. Beer. But on occasions he would drink vedka

and pretend as though I wouldn't know.

Q. When he was drinking or when you saw him
drink alecholic¢ beverages, did his general attitude
change?

A, When he was drinking beer he was gkay, he
never really geot wvioclent. When it was hard liguor,
that was a different story. W®With vodka I had
eXxperienged that situation with him.

Q. When yoUu say vou experienced that, you saw

that his demeanor changed?
Yes,
Did he bercome mare or less vioclent?

Mcre viclent.

2o s A

During the time that yvou were residing with

{102) 388-29713
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him or, excuse me, when you made the decision Lo move
cut and when you talked with Victoria, did she

indicate to you in the conversation that she had with
yvou that she was frightened of Mr. Ckeefe in any way”?

B, Ho.

Q. End approximately how lehg prior to the time
that you became aware that she had passed away did
this conversation cecur?

i There were several conversations witfh her
throughout, from Jume through, I think it was August.

Q. Were all of these over the telephone?

R, Yes.

Q. Bid any of these relate to the ongoing

relationship between her and Mr. Okeefe or vou and Mr.

Okeefe?
B. I don't understand.
Q. It was a poor gquestion, I'm sorry.
What basically were the conversations
abont?
A. There was a time when he had spent the whole

week with her and he had actually come back te me
saying he no longer warted to bhe with her, that he
wanted to be with me, she was poisgn, I was the good
person, or the good girl, 1s what he would say. A&nd

that he did not want to have anything teo do with her.

MERCER & ASSUCIATES
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But there were pccasions in between June through the
time that we had broke p that he had actually gone to
see her and he wouldn't come home for z couple of
davs.

Q. Puring that time, your conversation with Mrs.
Whitmarsh, did she indicate to you that she would
often initiate going nack with Mr. Okeefe?

MR. SMITH: Objection fto relevance, Judde.
Either that or it's hearsay, under ng exception.

MR. PIKE: Certainly it is hearsay. The
exception is the State has brought forth hearsay
evidence to indicate their belief or their theory as
to premeditation, deliberation or mental intent at the
time that this occurred. If there was any scrt of
planning ¢r gquestion about planning, then this is in
direct response to that., It's reliable, there 1s a
general exception toc the hearsay rule when the
evidence is inherently reliable. And it may inveolve
the mental state of Mrs. Whitmarsh at the time they
were getting back together.

HME. SMITH: My reply would be her mental
state, whether or not =she was going to get back with
him has rncthing te do with the gdmissicons that I've
elicited on direct testimony regarding premeditation

or deliberation or planning.

HERCEE [ ﬂSEEEIHTEE 3
(702} 386-2973 12854
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THE COURT: The ohjecticn is overruled.
Ask the guestion again. You can answer
MR. PBIKE:

Q. During the conversation did she ever talk
with you about her initiating, reconnecting with Mr.
Qkeefe?

A, One of the lengthier conversatiocns she said
she did not want to have anything to do with him, that
she gould net take care of him, that he was a grown
man and he could take care of himself., I asked why
she wanted to he with him and if whether or not she
loved him or not. And her reply toc me, and I never
told Mr. Okeefe this, but her reply tec me was "I just
keep him around because somebody has to love
somebhody.”

MR. SMITH: I'm just goimg to centinue my
objection, for fthe record
MR. PIKE:
. Since the arrest of Mr. Okeefe, have you had

any contact with Mr, Qkeefe?

F i Yes, 1 did,
2. And what was that?
A, That was, 1 believe, two weeks ago I went to

visit him because a friend of mine had called and had

informed me that Bryan had sent a letter to his sister

{702) 388-23713
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stating that the district atterney had given bhim some
information and said things that T did not say. And I
went to Bryan and I asked him about it, and thatl was
pretty much the cohversation.

2. S5ince this has gccurred, were you gzhle to go
back in to the apartment after the police had cleared

it to get the rest of your persenal items out of the

apariment?
A, The ifems that I took -- yes, I did. I was
able %o go back there. I de not remamber when. But

I was able to go ahead and retrieve the key for the
car. The other key is missing, we don't know where
that's at, and some paperwork for the car and the car
itself,

Q. It deesn't indicate, according to the
recogrds, that it was impounded?

A, Ho. [ just had te take 1t back. 1 had to
turn it in because the car payrents were behind.

g. During the course ¢f this have you had =
opportunity to talk with any of the other neighbors
that were there at that time?

A. Just what we saw gutside when we all gathered
out there.

Q. At that point in time you shared what you

knew about the case and they shared what they knew

MERCER & ASSUCIAIES npn
{702} 388-2973 i
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about the case?

A, They spoke about their feelings and why they
were here.

. Without saying what they said, you guys just
king of talked sbout what you knew, what you felt
about the case?

roie Yes.

2. During the course of your conversations with
Mrs. Whitmarsh, did she talk to you about the two of
them drinking together?

A. Yes.

0. What did she say about that 7

ME. SMITH: Acgain, judge, I'd renew my
obhijection, hearsay, and I'd also add relevance.

THE CQURT: Relevance?

MR. PIKE: Relevance would have to be with
whether or not mutual drinking, if both of them uwere
drinking together, if that precipitated any sort of
violence or if she felt threatened by his drinking?

MR. SMZITH: It's not really tailored to
the night in guestion, it's more propensity than
anything, which is spec¢ifically precluded by statute.
It's no different than us asking is a person a
habhitual drug user.

ME, PIKE: I'l1l withdraw the guestion.

MERCER & RGSOCIATES
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Q. bDuring the time —- during your cobservations
when Mr. Okeefe was drinking, he became a little bit
louder, & little Bit -~ I guess meaner, would that be
g8 good fterm? ©Or how would you describe 1%73

A. That would only be when he was drinking hard
liguaor. When he wWas drinking beer, he was prettiy
mellow person.

Q. And you mever -- during the time he was
intoxicated, although he may have saild he was angry
about things, he was never physigally wviclent with
youz

., He hit me a couple times, cnce in the arm,
and pinned me up against & wall,

MR. BIKE: I have no further guestions.

MR, SMITH: Briefly.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SMITH:

Q. Ma'am, you said scmething <n
cross-examination, I just want to make sure i1t's
clear. Do you recall telling Mr. Pike that Miss
Whitmarsh had said something to you about I better be
careful because when he gets mad he hurt me?

A, Correact.

{702) 3§8-2973
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Q. She stated to you that she had better be
careful or else Mr., Okeefe would hurt her or . .
A, Ho, she stated that I would neéed ta be

careful bhecause 1f I got Mr. Okeefe upset, that Mr,

Ckeafe would hurt me.

0.

be careful or Mr. Qkeefe would nurt her?

A

Q.

that in Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada?

A.

MR. PIKE:

Q.

and you sald in the rib cage, would that be in the

sternum,

A,

= B PR

Sc she did not say to you that she had better

Nao.

And one final question. 50C1 E1 Parque, is

Yes, it is.

MR, EMJITH: HNo further cuestions.

RECROS5S EXAMINATION

When you were demcnstrating the physical act

or front part of your chest?

Right here.

For the record, ycu're pointing directly?
Off to one side, closer to tﬁe heart.

But in the front?

Correct.

MR. PIKE: Thank wouw. That's all.

MERCER & ASSOLIATES 2859
(702) 388-2973
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1  he made somc TAlmEmS, 1 Mombonya

2 | satmnit thon theer clearty satisfies the wanne, 2 JUROQR MO, 2: Hers,

3 And Tudige, i's the State’s position that the toason Tor the 3 THE CLERE: James Ernl.

4 cxcitnd ubpyancs sxccpiion is that it is presurtied that 2 § FURORE WO, 3; Hers,

h  person wilt ke muthful statements while under the stress of 5 THE CLERK: Judy Chelini.

B an cvent because presumnbly they have no move to fhrcor or ) 6 JUROR NQ. §; Here,

T e, Sothe only thing that the Sinte has o show s that = T THE CLERK: Wancy Mirolock,

% stertling ¢vet happened, and that the persom was still under 8 JURDR NO. 5: Here.

%  the stress of thar senling event while they made thoss 3 THE CLERK: Kirk Livemssh

i0  sixcyeends, and that's exactly whil we hove here. 10 JUROR NO. §: Here,

11 THE COURT: All ight. | dest't think he nceds o s 11 THE CLERE: BDawn Fraley,

17 the actual stabbing when he's « like coansel had mentionsd, 32 JUROR NO. 7: Hare.

13 shis Indy that perhaps didn'y know il she was dead, blood all 13 THE CLERK: Araccli Murisa.

14 over the place, | think he said the sheets or rags were sogked 4 JUROR NO. & Here

15 inblood, 15 THE CLERK: lames McCaldin.

16 MR, SMITH: Yes, sit. 15 JUROR NO. 9: Here,

17 THE COURT: The defendan be testificd was shalena | 17 THE CLERK: Maric Pimillos,

10 wake up ot something like thal, So that's why | overied the 18 JURDRE WO, 10 Here.

19 objpection. Anything cls=? 19 THE CLERK: Jos¢ Vesqued

20 MS. GRAHAM: Nope, 29 JUROR NO. 1); Here.

21 THE COURT: Call the Jury i, el THE CLERK: Robert Clark:

22 THE MARSHAL: Officers s cmembers of the cour, ) JURDHR NO. 13 Here.

23 Deparoment |7 juroms 23 THE CLERK: And Manin Villasoor.

24 (In the presence of the fury) 24 JUROR NO. i4: Herz,

25 THE CLERK: Waoll call. Justin Dettre, Iody 25 THE MARSHAL; Le's make surc all celk phones are

Page § Page 7
EOUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

1 rumed off. please. All phoass e off, 1 THE (1ERK: Pienss br scated. Stabe your mame and
2 THE COURT: Ladier and gestlemen, fuct o you know, 2 =pell it for the recond.

3 luror Ho, 12 was invelved in &1 eXtreme emergency Simstiod, 3 THE WITNESE. Cheryl Mo, C-hee-r-y-1. Moms,
& and g0 he is no longer part of the jury pancl, med rear's why 4§ Mlipeparei-g,

4 it's impereant that we Bave aliemales, Ax | sald befoce, the a THE COURT: Go ahead, Counsch

& sltcrstes have been mmdomiy selected, 5o it's nok nocessanily & ME_SMITH: Thank you, Judge.

T sems 13 or 14, Bo P'm sure cveryone will fay attenion 7 DIRECT EXAMINATICN

B (hrocghoal tee trial, Stat, platse cal your DEXL WITREsS. B BY MR SMITH:;

8 MR, SMITH: Thenk you, Judge. Judge, de Siame cails & Q Good moming, Ms, Momiz

10 Chary! Moeris vo che sand, 14 A Good enoring.

11 THE COLRT; Also, [ dow'y belisve cither pemy's il Q Ms Mo, do you know 2 person by ihe nume of Bran|
12 mvoked the sxchusinaxry rule, Does gilher parmy with o 12 O'Keefe?

13 imvoke the? 13 A Yes leo

14 M3, GRAMAM: We do, yoir Hoaaor. 1% £ Doyouses Mr. OKeele prasent in court today?
15 THE COURT: All righi. 17 there £z any wilncsses 15 A Yeldo

16 fhet pe goig to be celled i this case, they're instucted to 18 * Q Canyoupoim o ke for us and identily what he's
17 remain oweside unnl called in by the marshad. 17 weeaning,

13 UMIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Your Honor, the head phames | 189 A He't the pentleman silting thete with bis counsel.
15 men't workng, L% -and he's wearing o dark suit.

20 THE OCURT: We'll furve the rrarshal check — or 20 Q What codor tie?

Z1 mhchelle, do you have Uime o~ 21 A Brouwnbiack lie, dark lic.

22 THE MARSHAL: Ms. Morris, il youll temain standing, | 22 MR, SMITH: Judge, can the recond reflect the witkess
23 plesgm Haie yous ght hepd Facs the clerk 23 has idemified the defenda?
L CHERY1. MORRIS, PLATNTIFF'S WITNESS, SWOAN 24 THE COURT: Yex it will,
23 THE WITNESS. Yes: 25 MR SMITH: Thank you, Judge.

Page 8 Page 3
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N02862




1 BY MR EMITH: I tme?
z § And Ms. Momis, how do you know M. (FReefe? 2 A | received a phone call from Mr. OReefe gating hat
3 A [ was dating Mr. O'lcefe T e wamied to come heme, and be wanted i bning Yicttnia home:
4 [ When would har relutionship star? 4 with him.
5 A January Tk of 2008, 5 Q  Victoria who?
& Q  When did that relationship snd? 8 A Victoria Witmarsh (phonctic
T A Seplember Gih of 2008 T Q0  Du yoi know whi Yicioria Wigmarsh is?
] § Okay. Now, when thel miatonship onded, where were ] A Yes,
§  you residing? 9 G And who is Vicloriz Witmareh?
10 A | was residing with a friend. & A A flomer girlftiend of b
11 Q Olay. Throughout the wourse of the relationship thal 11 Ln] How do you know Yiciona Witmarsh was a former
12 you hadt with Mr. ©Reclt, did you two ever reside topether? |22 ginfrend of Mr. O'Keef's?
13 A Briefly, which was last part of August of this year 13 A Mr O'Kesle st me knaw.
14 prexcuss me, of lasi yéar and September, acally, Wemaoved| 14 Q Okoy. Had you tvet personaity et Victora Witmarsh?
1% imoan apaniment, bul [ wes only there for four deys. 15 A Mo
1§ O Okay Where wos that apartment Jocaied” 18 0D Tow, when you moved o the EI Parque address in
17 A 5001 El Pargue Avenue, Aparonont 35 — 17 ﬁugumlﬂﬂ&,myamkmwhdngmd&ed:fmﬁhmmlliua
18 lsthe-~ : 1B relavionship with Ms. WWipoarsh?
19 A -inL&s Vegms. 19 A "Hehad soen har on oocasions, yes. But be'd come
20 O Andwes that in Clark County, Meveda? 26 hack and Jevme know that he was actually moes inzrestzd in me
2L A Yes 21 vather than being wigh her.
22 Q MNow,you just said that you oty livedthare forfouwr | 22§ Okav. Now, you've already tmstified that you movid
273 deys 23 gud of the E] Parque addness because the defondant ssid hat he
24 A Comecl. z4 v going 1o bring Ms, Witinarsh to they nddvess,
25 Q Why didyou only sty there for that shor period of 25 A Comesl
Pape 10 Page 11
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1 O And were you nad okay with that? ¥ 0 Oy, Now, ket me ask you this. You're abeedy
F; A Ho 2 peytificd that you maved out of he aparms becauss Mr,
3 (¢ Dkay. And why oot? 3 (fKeefc wenied 1o bring home another woman as it were,
4 A Dida’ think it was right. Several days prior i him 1 A Ye
g ullhgmmhdmwdmwnw:n'tguh;mh'ingmm L Q Dot you bt any i1 will owants M, Witmarh!
& over 1o the apariment wntl | wed able 1o move om, We broke ] A Mo, not AT 8.
T up wo days befor. 7 G Did you bave any ill will iowards Me. O'Keefe?
g 0 Sowe being you and Mr, O'Rocie? £ A 1 way - | wes upct at Lhe wiry be had done it
4 A Yoo ] 9 Ohar.
10 Q Disiy. So, i e cormect 1o say that when yois ginys ig A AT way - ns of the wiy he approached the
11 wem living o the EY Farque address, you guys being you and 11 stouariva becawss | scieally miormed his that if ho wanded 1o
12 M. O'Keafe, thet you weren'tactually ina relatomship & 12 be with her, fr was okay. Just Set me know, and I'd move om
13 thel time? 13 of the way.
i1 A Mo 14 1) Okay. And did you, in fect, mawe ol of the way?
15 @ Okmy Andwhat was the ke agrecient? 15 A Yes
L6 A Fmauwry? 16 O Okay, Now, you tastificd that your relatienshin
13 ¢ 'Whost name wis o the leasa? i7 lasted for severs] monthe,
11 A Bath of ours, ) 18 A Comect,
19 O Ckay. an,wm;luumuvndmnuf'th:mmnmt,did 19 Q You said it started in Januacy and if eoded when?
20 your meene mmam on the Jease? 26 A liended September,
21 A Yey | did pot -~ | calied the apatmant awner, i1 g Ckeoy. Throughot the course ] thal relatoaship Jid
22 and | equesied that b wke thet leass and have Mr. O'lecfe 73 the defersdant ever falk 1 you abont his selationship with Mex.
23 and M, Witmmrsh sign 8 brazd new loase, | setuathy kepd thae 23 O eshe -- excase me, Mrs Witmarsh?
24 tparmmkcysmdlemlymuilbmknfmﬂtnpumlm 24 A Yes
25 that it woudd be mken care of. 25 0 Okay- A v plien woukl e speak b you sboul her’?

Page 12 Page 13
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1 A Almos all the time. He usualfy would bsmor=or | 1 bocause she pul him in prison
2 lesy on a daily basis. I'd say sbout thres, four wesksaday | 2 G Obkpy. What elee wiould he say?
3 - 3 A He'd say things like he wanted o kil the bitch,
4 g Okey. 4 Q5o just so the record's clear, Mr. OKecle would make
L A —nor atima, T shElemenia 1o you saying he wanted to kil Mre, Wittnaesh
E G What types of things would he tell you about the & pecaliss sbe pul him m prison?
7 relationship? T A Yes
B MR PIKE: Obiestion, vour Honor, Hearsgy. a (¢ And when you sy that because he put ber in prason,
& THE COURT: Sustaincd. %  did he indicate tha she had actuaily 1exiifed sgainst him?
1t ME. SMITH, fudge, it's e sisterners of a party 0 A Yes
11 oppocern offered ageinst that pevscn, 11 Q AbRjury trisl?
12 THE COURT: Counsel epproach. 12 A Y
1z {Bernh confarense). 13 0 Okay DGid he make any statements as 1o what kind of
14 THE COURT: ¥'m goimg to ovesmule the objection. | 14 porson Victora Wilmarsh was?
13 ME. BMITH! Thenk you, your Honor. 15 A He would sate that Vicweis was somewhet 2 very -
la ME. PIEE: 1 ask for thet continuing objection o | 1E  she wasn't a 5tOng persan.
17 beplaced. 1T Q Ohay.
18 THE COURT: Ablnght 18 A Bhe = if you yolbed 2t her, basically, she windd
1% BY M SMITH:: 19 cower Hoshe would be porfrayed as & very meek person,
20 Q  Ms Moiris, you cart answer the quesiion. 20 Q  Saihe defendanl described Mrs. Wimnarsh o you 25 2
21 A Could you repesd the question, please. 21 sabmissive weman?
22} Thequestion was whal rypesof thimgswould the |22 A Comert
23 deferdam 1]l you with regands o his relationship with 2% (3 Okav Dhid he indicate that be liked hor betmiac of
24 Vietoria Witmarsh? 24 tha?
5 A Onoccagions he'd setusily sy thet he was upset |25 A No, be didn't ouke any sort of indicstion,
Page 14 Page 15
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1 Q0 Do yourcmall giving a stteznent to the podice back 1 A Yea, hedid
2 o November Jith, 20087 = O Mow, Ms, Marris, agein, througho your tieas with Mr.
i A Ye 3 OKeefe, dild he ever meke any statements 1o you Indiciing hiy
3 @ Do you recal) im recording that statsment? 1. proficiency with weapons?
-] A Yez [da 3 A Yea
g Q16T showed you m copy of that gatemens, wou bd it & 4 Specificully what md of a »eaponT
7 refimh your reeolleation as v whetter defndant 2ver mmde any | 7 A Almife.
B smements to you regarding whother he liked Viconia biceess B 3 ‘Whet pypex of things would he rell you?
3 ghe w4 sebmiesive woenen? 8 A That be s copable of killing snyone
10 A Tes I0 Q Withnknifz?
il ME, SMITH: Moy agproach the watness — 11 A Wik knife, wes.
12 THE COURT: Yes, =2 @ 04d he =ver demonatraze to you how he coyld kill
13 MR SMITH: - Judge? 13 someons with & knife?
11 BY MR SMITH: 14 A Yes, he did,
15 O And fiwrvbe moond, ewm, P'm showing you Page 130f | 15 Q Cen you show s
16 nrecorded manscrpl — of 4 ranscripl of a recorded 16 A 1'd have o stamd up.
L7 voluntary statemei tear you gave o vou pelics. L'd msk you 17 9 Yes, ma'am,
18 tojus — read this partion ko yourseli, and then let me know 18 A Mr OKeefe would hold me on one shoolder and have a
1% when vou're doms. 19 pretend sort of weapom in his hand, and b2 would stand thee
20 A Yes, #0 sl hold me a3 langth's ~ srm's length and say he would come
21 G Novw do you recat] whether of ot the defendant svsr 21 &t meor colld come oo person and sbove it hrough the cage
22 miade p gimemimd Io you thet e fiked Vicloris Wikmasgh beciuse | 22— ribicage aiea and then Jud pull up pretly much —
23 he vt sebwsissive? 23 O And for the -
24 A Yes 24 A - Elicing someates open.
25 £} [Hd b, i Gact, sy dhat? 75 ME SHITH: And for tee reeacd, the witness 9

Page 16 Page 17
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT ROUGH DRAFT THANSCRIFT

00

2864




1 pointing o her mid section. a Q D Mr, OFieele guer make any Maicren(s o you
2 THE COURT: All right T regerding any i (hat be has bad in the special foroes”
3 MR, MKE: Mo parteslily the seermum aca. 3 A Yes he suid e had rining in the Grenada.
4 MR SMITH: The stermum e (] 0 Oksy. Now, aficr you moved ot of that apenment in
5 MR PIKE: Themk yo 5 2008, did you ever have an occasion t see Mr. OKesfe again?
& THE COAURT: Okay. § A& Yes ]did Fm ot axsctly sane whot date il wis.
T BY MR SMITH: 1 G Coutd il have becn December b, 20087
! ( Now, while you Two were fiving [ he E1 Pasque ] A Yes.
9 sl for thase Tour daws, did vou shoep in the smme bed? 8 Q So wondld that heve besn spproximatedy o month afcr
1 A Mo 10 the incident in questioa?
11 Whal wene the slerping armngamerns? 11 A Comecl
12 A After Mr And 0'Feele ond | had decided sl we were 12 W SMITH: Your Honor, we're — potuafly, can we
11 mlung:rmgmhcwﬂhudmllm,lwmmemm 13 appmueh? Can we —
14 nwhadhhhﬂiockcddwr,mdhcﬂnplmdnmh. L4 THE COURT: Al righL,
15 Q And was that, 1 your knowledgs, cirsistenl with the 15 MR, SMITH: -- approach, Judge?
16 agrecment you two i to be marsly platonic? 15 THE COURT: {Bench conference).
11 A Cormeel, 17 MR SMITH: May [ proceed, Tudge?
12 3 Did you ever reside vrith Brins OfKeele again after 18 THE COURT: Yo
I8 youmoved onl? 15 M¥. SMEITH: Thank you.
In A Ho 20 BY MR SMITH:
21 g Doymkmwhuwhn;w.ﬂ'mfthaskmwnvimh 21 Mow, Ms. Moris, under what sircumsiness did you
22 'Witmarsh? 22 mﬂmﬂnmmmﬂmnﬂuf:hnmnﬁmfm
23 A Since 1001 21 A llmﬁﬂﬂmluhmlmﬁhaﬁmdviﬁt
234 0 Andhow doyou know tha? 24 him # the county jail,
25 A Mr O'Keefe has sinted that to me 25 O Oy New, when you wer 1o go wisit br. Oileett
Page 4 Pape 19
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1 while he way o the Clark County Urtention Censer 4 month efler 1 Mmhymmﬂmwm”swdhmmm;
2 this imcidend bad happensd, did you wsk him wia happencd? 2 alleged sumpgle?
1 A Yiea o ded, 3 A Mo
4 Q  And wha did he 11l you? 1 Q Guingbukmu:mmmiﬂmmalywhdwiﬂiw.
-] A He swid that e ard vicipria had come home from - Ummﬂﬂhﬂhisdiﬂl&hdmwmnmﬁrmdirqhim
E somewhers - | cannot remember the place whers be hid mentioned) 6 mpdmdiﬂh:mmﬂ:wmmmwyuuumﬂz
7 s T lengthof time?
] O Oksy ] A Inregads 1o how many limes thal she'd go end visil?
3 A - but he mnd Victorin cone bomse. He waz tired. He & G Mo, in regacds 10 ber testifying agrinst his and
10 -wenl mio te room, aid e proceeded to go 1o sleep inthe 10 ylnmarely being incarcersind?
L1 garkreom went the sexd thing he koow he gaid thet he fiLs 11 & She woud go and visit him quits oficn. I'm sory —
12 pri:k.urasuhbtn;mhishmd.ndh:nw‘-’iﬂu‘i:m:ﬁn; i o Dkay.
13 aver by with 2 kmle. i3 A = [ don't mdeniend
14 0 Okay e | My question is, okay, do you recail wheiker of not
1% A Andihep be sated U the nexs thing he koew was 15 uuwmnmmmmwumm,wmm
16 that he was holding ber hand, md it wen limp, and the kel 16 wway thres years ol his life?
17 wit & — i hey dide. 17 A Yes bedid He bad menthonsd that quile aflen, amd
18 O ko, Did he offer anything 10-+xplain e gap 10 that wi in conclusion wilh, you know, the bisch. T hate e,
19 bnhﬂnﬂndleydpﬁmdﬂuhﬁfebﬁnghﬂhnfm 19 sh:'spoimuumklhmmofwlire.lmmmﬁil
20 ‘Wiomarzh? 29 her
21 A He sad that they atruggled. 21 MR SMUTH: Pase the witness, Judge.
23 O Ohoy Whal was his demennor while he wis eilingyon | 22 THE COURT: Cross-cxamination,
23 thex? 3 CROSS-EXAMNATION
24 A Somber 24 BY MR PIKE:
25 G Okay. Did ke ever — canuse me. 3trike that, Did he 5 G Moming —

Page 20 Page 11
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o w o oL E W e

el
k=3

Co0d moming,
= W5 Merris. How are you tody?
Firve, thank you,
“ow, hew did veu and Brian meet?
| was gt & casino calied Arizona Chartic’s with s
Mmﬂlmw;ﬂmmmmﬁﬂlrﬂpﬁﬂmﬁﬂ
and st down and =al, snd he snd anovher friend bad come 1p and
sl down beside me.

Ly M.M:ddmw—mimﬁumdﬂ:aiwin
Larwowry ol st year.

A Nn.mullyﬂmhq:pmed‘mﬂemhﬂ'.mdlhxi
et i o to San Diego and | did oot retuom watil lamsary,

>

T o s mn e e

[
L

ymfrcmﬂtin:unﬂmlﬂ:phmwuﬂynuwmdmﬂapinga
relutionship with cach other, you wers developing an
attractine; would that be an aporoprisle (erm 1o use?

A Yo

©Q  And it bocame 1 coupls bype relationshiy whers iL—
you could lelle with him sbout [ntimale detaits of your Life and
hie éould talk 1o yoy abon inkmate details —

A Yes

) —ofhislife

A Yex

€ And besves the iwo of youL, that reletionshp where
mummﬂdngmwhudmmamf:r:lmnnstﬁpwhm

11 O Clay. And whenyou came back in fanuary, did —wst |13 you could share dreams, Topes, sspirsions, conoons, past
14 nmﬁuwﬁmmmﬁmﬂﬂanmwi'mbﬂh 14 horrors of your Life and things like that
18 ownordid munal fiends el you? What —how fid sl work {15 A Cesrerl
16 our? 16 € And that went on for a period of time,
17 A Mr OKeelzand | had alked while | wes in 3a0 I A Yes
18 Dhiege. Asametter of fact, he made this comment thet he ra 18 0 During that ¢arly part of the refztionship, thal wes
1% upabillaf 3300, W had talked on the phone almost all = 10 befarc Victoris came back inio the — iato Me. O'Keefe's life,
20 mﬂmudmmﬂifhmﬁhﬂemmmd 20 comect?
21 pkkmwﬁmh@hmﬂﬂmmmiminmmm 21 A Coreect
22 thed was the smatgemcK, 22 O Did;ruuumarknddwwhmvi:mriamhﬁmzed
23 © Ohay. Andhe did pick you up? 23 contan? Let me rephrase il Did Brian s1en 10 drink more?
24 A Y 24 MR SMITH: Objection. Gocs o relsvance,
28 G Allrgh, And zo diring that period of lme whils 23 THE COURT: Crverruled.

Page 22 Page 23

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

z THE WITNESS: Mo panre than he usuafly did. On 1 A Yes | did
7 oeeasions he waukd have a litile more, yes 2 () Apd what did she tell you?
3 BY MR FIKE; 3 MAL SMITH: Objoctina, Judge. Cals for hearsay.
¢ @ Didyou believe during that peried of time that Brizn | 4 THE COURT: Sustained.
5  had a problem with akeohol? 5 BY MR. PIKE:
& A Yes £ Q During the time tha you falked with Victoria, did
7 O Did he consume o0 rnch slcobal? 7 youll her that she wasn't good for Brian?
g A Dcpendsmwtutymmliarmﬁtdutmuum B A No,
2] €} Tooowch - ket me ask the question tis wary, Didke | S5 O Did you tell hex thar she didn't get buck in his
10 mﬂumhmminmmbrdﬁnkm&:wﬂwmh 10 life?
11 would not — he would behave differony? 1 A No
12 A With beet, no. 12 0 Did you tell hirn {slc) that she shauld lenve well
13 9 With ather alechel bevernges, yes? 13 enoughabone and jusl go on with her Life?
14 A Comedt 14 A Mo
I8 O Andyooindicsted just previcusly that the 18 @ Was Vicloria persistenl in celling you i and wlking
16 guestioning that it was Victorie that relniiated contat with | 18 with you?
1T Mr Ol coaptr? L) A Several limes, yes.
18 A Vel 18 Q In[mLﬂmegmmlhnphmwimwumdshe
19§ Andyoutalked to Victoria about that 19 was mlking with you, would she yell at you?
20 A Yes 0 A Shedid thal ome occasion which wis the day thet Mt
21 0O And youtold her — you 1ld Vicworia that il was 21 Kecte called and said he was bringing Victoria homc
72 inappropeiate for hey otry and ger back with him. 22 Andbow did you pet the phane to wlk 1o Vicona
23 A | don't recall making tha saement. 23 during st thi period of Lre?
24 0 Okay When you taliced with Victorie, did you ask ez i1

25

why she wanted to get back with Bran?
Page 14
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A He handed her the phane
Q  And you talked with her, and she was insistent sbowt
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1 cmning fnp your spsctment? 1 euskedy over hor wstimany, dida’t be?
2 A Yoo, bomase her stairmend was he lived ther, be 2 A Yo
1 gaid che rent, why wasn't he sble w come back. 3 Acelthee she woubd pur money on his ook,
1 0 And you took it from thal converaation, the other 1 A Yes
3 pomversabons that you hed with ber that she was coming back 5 G And do you understand what thad means?
£ into chat apmetrment whesher you Hked i of net. & A Yes
L A Mo, 1 ook it that they both necded & place o sy 7 Q  Thet meams? Oy, would you describe 1 for the
B thet night Tor ome reason o anciber, and thal's where they B Jury.
3 were poing tn b 9 A v mons when vou go W the conrt bowse or amrahers
1t Q9 Owring that period of ime you bevame awane thot 10 eke, you'rs sllowed (o go ohead and pid — the inmate has an
il during the conversptions ot Victna wis no longer woleome ol | 11 cxpense acrount whre you'ns able ©© depodit money s the
12 her hiodme with her hosband., 12 imsae is aliewed to buy things whiis they o mcpnoerued.
13 A Tha b wha she lold me. 13 9 And in TR, sl the Gme of the mpd in this
14 And from sverything that you had cbeerved during ¢t | 14 matier, she tegtificd oa behalf of Mr, (PKeeke,
15 perind of time, you didn' think it was going o be o good wdes 15 A No, she instified aguinsd Mr, DKeck:.
16 for Viclerin to be back in thal house. 16 @ Bemcmber him szying tha she recamed her icstimony?
1t A In whose house? i7 MR. SMITH: Obicction, Judge. Itcalls for hearsay.
18 ¢ nGyving back with Brian, b O'Kezle 18 THE COURT: Susrained
1a A Mo, that's norrue. What 1 actually was stading wai 18 M. MIKE! It'sa compices stary, your Honer
20 thet 35 5000 25 T moved o, they could be mgether, 29 They'vs rought in the hearsey as w what b sud 3 ahe
21 Andso it was your impeoszion during thad period of 21 recaovied that westimony.
22 time that both of them wanted 10 he hock Wpether 22 THE COURT: Well—
23 A Comeg, 23 ME SMITH: Well, Judge —
FE | ) And during conversations with Brinn shout Victode, | THE COURT; — there wasn's any obscction At fhe e
23 Mr, (Kesfe wld you thal she wem oo visitfim while he watin | 25 50 I'm sustain the ohisciion.
Pzge 26 Page 27
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L MR PIKE: Al night, thank you 1 M. FEE: Thank yvou, your Honor.
2 BY MR PIXE: Z BYMR_FIKE:
3 Q The fortthet you had estabiished nrvlationship with 3 0 And you ked done all of this, sxd ten Vicworis comes
4 Mr OrKeefe for shout anive manth persod, you had fived with | 4 ow of ke bt somebody that yoo thought would pever come
5 him off atd on duriog that persod? 5 hack; iy Thar copreet?
] A 1 atayed with hum in the traiber. 6 & Moo Victors was tlwys there. He o Mr. OFieefe
T 0 And that wes locaed bere in Los Vogts, Movad? T poldme sbeoul her e very macoeni that we'd men, 50 she was
B A Yos, we — it wiao mosthy during the pight beeause he ¥ elwaoy thixe s conversation througho Lhe atlire bme.
9wk work:ing duting the day, T had my school during the day, 1) ? 2 And then physicsdly she sbowsd up.
10 did other things, went o appalnimenis, 18 A She ealled bt i Jusie on Father's Dy wiere Mr

B RS A e e Bt e s e s
o O M @ -] @ R o LD hd e

23
24
25

) And there was a decivion that you would became 3
couple. And in fact, you saried (o make plans together, You
ropied gn Apartment.

A Yex

Q  You purchiscd a qir together,

A Yea

Q' He put you on a bank acocount. You had 1 joim
pCcount tngether —

A  Comect,

Q = for ewhile,

MIL SMITEL Judge, at thisy point Tm gaing W object
t the refevunoe af thieir relativaship.
THE COLRT: I thigk il can go 1o biss 56 -
MR MEE: Yeah
THE COURT: = going icoverrube the objection.
Page 24
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OKeche proceaded W first fie 1o me ghook i, mod the suid |
can't lie: g youL, it was Yictaria

0  And it apoeared (hat Vicloris was resaitisting the
rebalionship, 18 you've indicated, e then My K eefe sancd
1o spend mare Limee with Vicmeria

A Mr O'Kecfe, afior that conrversalion, tha foflowing
Mondey he bad Befi for 3n entim workc without any noties,
fricnds or oyl and staped wath Vigtorm for disd week

0 And thar obviously would wpsct you,

A 1 vany mom hol hetmuse | ped weop in M OKeck
somedhing different. Something that when woe had spodoen befome
that 15 it v arose thet he wouwkd te courlesus coough oo led
A ko Thid thisd 'wis s intentions,

G Because you s «- v bad made pless with bom,
You'd bought a oo with Mm. You hed s sctount with him, And
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1 that all sareed o change, yes of my? Yes, B stacted to i A My sonand Yictories hushand Devid and Wictoria®s
2 chmge 2 dmugher,
E| A b did sort o change, yex 3 0 During the tme thet you weni through that apanhent
L] Q I fact, you were tdoem ofT of the ocoount 4 did you heve Mr. O'Kecit’s plasces? Did you pick Lheas Wp?
5 A Wo, | ok myself ofT the account. 4 A Ye ldid
-] 1 Okny. And you wanied jo ke yourse | off o the & Q. And for whit purpoxT
T carn 7 A My, O eefe Taud called me some teme when be ended op
L A Comect 9 o jail 3 requesied that [ - through his lawyer — through
5 Q  And you wisicd 1o Lake vourwe]E off of the apartmen:. 8 you as 3 madter of fact neoqeesizd thai | brimg ther 6o you.
10 A Comen 10§ Andyou and | hot some conversstions in ying 1o
11 Q  Aa it point in titne you warted i disaociss 11 arrange the exchsnge of thosa gesses ~
12 yourslf complerly with Mr. OKeefe becas e was imalved |12 A Comect
13 with Yigtorw 13 - amd yous brocght them to the preliminary hearing, —
i4 A He wat invohed with Wicloria — 14 A Ve '
15 7 And you wanied to go through and boomee that ear had [ 15 Q) — in fact, 50 thet be could havn e glocet.
16 been purchased joindly with you and Mr. 'Keele, bt o was |16 A Yes
17 -=the loam vias in your name, and wow stil] kad p fnanciad 17T G Insddition to that, you wanted in haove w poaer of
18 responsibiliny for that, 18 miomey 1o chose oot the sectw, by i resobic the issues
X A [t wasja botk Mr. D% eefi's nume and my name. 1% with the cur, and try and resolve the linsncial isgses that vou
20 & And efty — and you mainizined o key o te 20 o bezin emsmibered with doring wour cekationship with Mr,
21 aparkment. Afler you heand about what happesed that night, did | 21 OKeeke
22 yom o back mio that gpanmenr? 22 A o regands o thay, it was only becauss of e fact
24 A B wes oo umil the police cleared s ko be abin (o 23 el M (FKeete, when | did heve an accoint with him o |
24 go back ino e apartment. 214 vohyary ook oy name ofT the accound, he woald sate to me o
25 Q Andwho did you g beek i the aparmment with? 25 gmythicg hepponcd o kim, | would be able 1o hove acoess o bo
Pape 30 Pape 31
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1 able ki get mgney 1o him and put them oo bis books and enything| 1 jail conversaion, your purpese for thal wisit was to gel his
7 elzs iBai peeded 1o be inken can of. Z  side of Une story, was it o get @ repaoet from Tima, what vt
2 G Andin fact you kept that set of keys yois kepl, and 3 your purpose in going and visiting him?
4 then vou were ablc to resolve the issies with the car, covnect? q A My purpose wad | went w visit Mr. O'eefe becaace o
5 A | volnizry gave i back, yes. 5 rownaal frkond comancied me siating that Mr, Oeclc senLa
B 11 1o gaing through that, during this period of wme the & lener o bis sisier —
T potice achuslly didiy contact o Yok went and contacted the 7 Q  Well okay, now lot me just ask you, did you ga there
B detectives, 8 with a specific purposs in mind, yes or no?
g A Yes, §did, and the reason why | did that was because 9 A Yo, and it was because —
L0 1have a friend it Metro, and 1 spoke with Gis retired 10 Q Dad-
1. officer, and [ nsked him what | should do, i | A = | needed -
12 @ Youwetdinad gave o stueement, and Ben you wenl 12 Q0 Lot me-Til getthore. P get there, [ proimise.
13 pverand ke with Mr. Mesfe 1 the Clark County Detention | L3 Wie're developing & short — in short scpments here And prine
14 Cenrar, and that was done over a monitor; i that cormest? L4 1w poing over 1o 1alk with him t the jil, you had mel with
15 A Ve 15 the police and you'd given » statemenl..
1B ] During the tine that you had the conversations with 1E A Yo
17 him, did you believe tha thes: convermbions wene beting 17 Q You - ab chet poiol in time the police had told you
18 reconded? 18 that you were g0Oing 1o estify o a prelivioniy hear, i thal
1% A Hesaid they were -- 12 comen?
26 0 Didyou- 20 A They =id it was a posaibility, yes.
21 A - recorded, 21 0 Anddid any police officer mfk with you aboul going
22 QD% you lmve n — did you believe they wers being 27 i and having conversatizms of talking with Mr, Ceefe and
23 reconded? 23 then coming back o them and 1elling them what he had £3d?
23 A Yes 1dud, 24 A Mo
b Q@  Ckay. And durisg thel period of time, diiring s 25 0  Okny. Mo derective told yeu oot v talk with him?
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1 MR, SMITIE: Obiection, Judpge. Ashed and answered 1 redstionship was (o @ot b0 mest his daughters?
2 THE COURT: [ think it's -- I'm. going ra allow it, 2 A No
3 Overruled. 3 0 You just = what did you take that as”
4 THE WITNESS: When! made the statemncnt il was sasd | 4 ME. SMITH: Obiection, Fudpe. Relovancs,
5 =1 don't recall them relling me anything abour that | wesn't 3 THE COURT: I'm giring to overnle it
6 supposed ko go and see hity, They may have sugpested [hatlt | & BY MR PIKE:
1 weasa good ided not 10 5ee him or nok to have any convorsations| 7 Q If mything.
& with him, q A Tust the fact that he wee thowing me how prowd o was
g BY MR PIKE: 9 ofhiy daughters
10 0 Andregardiess of thas, then you wemin and hadthat |20 3 And how many times did you meet his daughters?
11 comversation. which yau believe to bt peoonded during that 11 A | think maybe once, bwice, A couple of times.
12 periodof timz, Dhrring the lime thar you and Mr_(FEesfe were | 12 3 And 1n poing through this rlationship you felt tal
12 together, did be evertake you to the imion to work with him? | 13 your agrasrieste with Mr, {¥Keefe had been violated by him,
14 A Togo to work, you mean? 14 A Y
15} Topeto work wilk him orto - 15 ‘You fel tha it wm inappropoiate for ki o be ek
15 A Mo L6 beVictoris
17  Q — goto ey socind svents af the union? 17T A No, ivwss inapproprizie fi hivn ko chisst.
14 A Mo uf G Did you think, based upon your conversations with
19 ) Did he ever ke you iy sod af alcobol 19 Victoria when she was yolling at you, that thal was somehaw
2t eonmssfing or dag counseling? 20 differsnt than this subenissive voice that somcwrw the Siate
22 A No 21 indicates that she had? She cartainfy didn't secm « let me
22 ) Did be gvex take you ta po over and meet his b 22 rephrase the question. It was 2 bad question,
231 mingr daughiers? 23 When she was on the phone yelling at you, thel didn
24 A Yes 24 zoumd subwTiissive.
25 (¥ Andboped thal Heat was part of cxtaidiching a ) A Tt wearn't really yeiling. 1t was mare of a sEemenl
Pape 34 Pape 35
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1 withempinss 1 A Waell, heand | had broken up twe days befbre so it
Z Q) Well, Inyour — 2 gkt maher what she was doing
3 MR PIKE: May | approach the witness? 3 Q  Well, that's &ind of 2 shon period of time wo b
4 THE COURT: Yes. 4 replaced by somebody coming [n two days.
3 BY MR FIKE: E A Mo, because | hod understood that during the tims
5 @ W Mo, this is the sumc sktement that you & thu Mr. FKeefe and [ were togeiier, be had felings for her,
T previgusly looked af 7 and we tnlked 2 Jot about #- [ did & lot ol fistening. Mr.
B « A Um-hm. B (riesfe did a lot of mikmg, and be hed Leld me that, you
g Q) andif you just kimd of Jaalk: ai that arza, 9 kewowr, that te did care about her becauts she was dving, and he
10 A Umn-him 10 wantedd & b with her,
11 g Chay, 11 And i odd him if that's what be waned, if that's
12 A Ripht 12 wha made him bappy, | understood
13 ) Having looked al your stelement and baving refresh 113 3 Shewas dying betawse of what?
14 your reeolleetion with that, you advised the police thal when | 4 A She hud Hepatitis.
15 she gat on ihe phone, she did start yeiling sl vou, 13 Q Do yourecall her having circhoss of the liver also?
16 A Yea, 16 A Cirrhosls of the bvet and Hepatitiz C, yer.
17 Q And yelling i 2 loud aggressive type of 4 volca, 17 £ She sver calke wirh ~- and didn't you suggest o Mr.
18 A I woubdnd be like something F'd bave w hold the 1% O'ecle that being with her may exposc him o health risks?
19 phone ot here, but here, vou know, and she said iralide bit | 12 A Ye
27 lomder then ususl, yos. 21 O Did a that seem o concemn him?
Z1 Q It seemed 1o you during that period of time that she | 21 A Oman occasion, stveral oneasions, y2s, be dalked
27 way imene ppon or inserting herself inte Mr, O'Keefe's life | 22 me aboul it
22 and kicking you out of it 23 @ And becalked her poison.
21 A | didn't think of thar. 24 A Ye, hedid
25  Youjust knew thal you were kaving, 25 Q  And you vambin' dissgrco wiln thas
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1 A |lcthim ik 1 A Correcl
2 MR SMITH: Objection, Judge. That's — 1o 2 3 an you elsboratc on that?
3 relevance. k| A He would drindc vodke. and when he drisnle vodks, be
] THE COUET: Sustained. ¢ would bevome violenl,
5 ME. FIKE: 1 have na further questions. ) Q Okay. Mow, you've slso teatified abready thal you
§ THE COURT:  Any further direcl? 6 moved oul of yaur pwn aceond,
3 MESMITH: Yoz, Judge. T A Comecl,
B HREDMRECT EXAMMATION 2 Q)  DAid v have any hard feclings upen moving out?
3 BY MR SMITH: 8 A No, L did not,
11 Mz Mo, guing beck (o some of the ihings that you | 10 Q  And you've aiso tesified on cToss-examiaaiion thet
11 kindof ended your cross-examination with, speciffeally abour | 1 vou did several things i dissociale yourself with Mr. Or¥eefs;
17 comversations that Mr, O el had with you mdicating cthat he | 22 is that comect?
13 xill had Fexlings for Mrs. Wimarsh 12 A Correct yes
19 A Yes 14 O Olmy, Then Ma'am why arc you here iday?
15 Q Burisiisull your testimony thm there were 2lso 15 A Beomuse | was subpoenacd
16 occasions whens he stated that be haed Mrs. Witmaesh fw 16 Wy, Andarc you hert today to el the truh?
17 testifying mgninst hirm ai chad wial? 11 A Comect
18 A Yed 13 ) Pursuani o the oath you just look?
13 (3 Andthet she testifeed against him as & victim 3 A Yes
0 A Yo 20 MR PFKE; Objcction, your Honor, 1rs kading It
21 O Now,oncover the questions thay Mr. Pike asked you  j 21 goes beyond the scope. [t's
22 abwn# Mr OKeefc's propensitics when drinking aboohal, | 22 THE COURT: 1M sustain tve abjcetion.
2% think, basd on - inanswening & question that he asked you, | 23 MP. PIKE: — vouchirg for wwitness, [ havea
24 you said kst his mood didn' change when he drank beer bt 1 24 mobion at {he approprise ime.
25 with cther sloabes] it did. 25 THE COURT: Sustain the objection.
Page 38 Pape 39
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1 MR, PIKE: Thank you. 1 mirgl Ms Morris, is why did you po visit Mr, O'Weett in
2 BY MR, SMITH: 2  December of 20087
3 Q M. Musmis, are you & ] ilied ex-gimiinend? 3 A Because of | letter be weole @ his sister, His
1 A No. 4 sister contacted & manual friend and | wasred 1o set the
5 ¢ Do you hove @y binses owands Mr, OKesfeasyoust | 5 regonl straight with him,
6 here wndey? ] O Hnwe you heen back i s him since Den®
¥ A Wo, [ do not, t A o,
g QDo you have sny hinges towardy ¥icorn W itnarsh o i {3} Have you spoken with hisn since then?
8 you sit boe oday? 5 A Mo
10 A Mo Idonot 19 Q  And you've already 1estified thal prrsean 8
11 @ Now, Mc Pike also asked you s gaestion in regack to 11 request by te defense atiomey, you in fct, brought Mr.
12 the conversaion that you bad with Mrs. Witmarsh with she 12 (FKecfe his glasses; is that comeat?
13 yelled ol you— T A Yes 1 did
14 A Y= 14 0 Would you have done thae ifyau were hiased ageiner
15 0 - doygurscall that? L5 him?
5 A Yo 16 MRE. PIKE: Objcction, your Hanor. Impermissible,
17 Q  And Mr. Pike asked you basically wi she bemy 17 Ther's nothing I relabilitate.
18 sybwmissive under those circumetances; i thel comect? ia THE COURT: U'm pothg tor rstain il 45 it relates fo
15 A Comect, 15 the form of the queston.
20 O Okay. Going back to Mr, {¥Kech's siements to you | 30 BY ME. SMITH:
21 ehout Mrs Wamerah's personality and ber being sabmisthve did | 21 €} Why did you bring hia glasses?
27 he indicate if she wax submiistive Lo everyone or ubwmissive o | 22 A Becmae he alzo sked me when | wenk to go and see
23 him? 23 him if | could bring his plaszes beesuss he needed it, and |
24 A She was submissive W everyone,

bl
Lh

} Now, another question thet P sare i on everyme's
Pape 4
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said | weuld do that.
MR, SMITH: Cowts indulgence,
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THE COURT: ANl right.
BY MR SMITH::
Q  Ms: Momis, how many conversetons wodld you say you
hendd with Yickorim Wikmarsh?
A 1 would sy profmbly sbout five.
Q  Aod bow many tenes oo of diose comersabons did she
yefil 1 you?
A Just that (me day,
0 Jug st o tinc?
A Commest.
ME. SMITH: Mo further questiom.
THE COURT: Any moyoss?
RECRGSS-EXAMMNATION
BY MR PIKE:
Q0 Inmlsicn W the converssions s Mr, O'Keele
{indisvernible) military, did he tell you about his cxperiences
during the: Crenadd war'?

A0 M =) g A Lk R

e
Lw ]

-1

13
14
15
16
7

w1 Grenada?
MR SMITH: Objection, Judpe. Calls for hearsay.
ME. PIKE: Okay, lat me rephrse the question.
BY MR PIKE:-

Q During the coorss of that time the = in b
comversations that you had with him, wou were able 1 form an
opinion thal that iraining amd thay portion of it was
distasichiyl ko him

A Yez

0 Andthat, in Eact, it was those expericnces that
causad him ko start an his roed 1o drmking.

A Tdon't keow. No.

2 And hc was drinking ity much ¢vervdmy & the end
of the relationship, wasn't he?

A Yes

MR, SMITH: Judge, Td moew my abiection
relevanl.

[EE R e}
[P I = ]

-t
in b

16
=7
18
1%
0
21
2%
2z
29

z5

M5 GRAHAM: That would be Offioer Brian Santarosss,

THE MARSHAL: Officer Senrossa, o you'll vemaim
stamding,, pleasc. Raise your nigh hiod and face the kel

OFFICER BRIAN SANTAROSA

THE CLERK: Pleaas be semed Wil you plesse st
your e arvd spell it for the secord.

THE WITNESS: Brian Santarossa, B-rei-a-n
Lo B B

DIRECT EXAMIMNATION
BY MR GRAHAM::
G Crood moming, CiYesr,
A Good moming.

MR. PIKE: Youi Hanor durmg thiy izssirivony dnd
guring the estimeny of the mial theme iz a disgram of an ama
that's bevwn prepared. Wie've been provided s copy of thel and
stigrabird 1o s admission &t this point i Hme,

Page 44
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L. A Yex hedid 18 THE COURT: Crvermuled,
13 Apd Ihose had uwpset him? b | ME, PIKE: Thank vou. Wothing further.
0 A Yes 20 THE COURT: Anything further, Mr, Smuth?
1 @ Andinreltionship to what voo demongtrated shout z1 MR SMITH: No, Judge,
22  the knife o7 sl — tetilicd abour the knife, thal was whitl 22 THE COURT: All right, thaik you, Ma'am, Or sy
23 had been — he'd Deen gramed with n the Anny? 23 guestions from the umors? Yos, we do. Cotmsei approach,
24 A Cormect. 24 please,
25 Q  Acd did b tell ypu anytiing sboul what had heppenad | 25 {Bench confertnoe),
Pape 42 Fape 43
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1 THE COURT: For the recond, we maeived diree 1 THE COURY: Thank you, Mr. Pike What numbe is
2 questioms G the Jurors, and under the rubes of evidence 2 that?
3w nof able tn nak these quesiions, All right, thenk you, 3 MS. GRAHAM: Soae’s Exhibir .
4 Wix'mm, for your leshmony, Yoo i inenecied pod ko discuss | THE COUNT: 1 will be admined.
5y tesciigny with eny oler winess ivolved in this case 5 ME, GRAHAM: Thank you, Judgs.
€ wntil thi matier is Beally resohved  Thank youl for your [ VIR SMITH: la il okay if | just stand up with my
T times, Ma'am, T co-caunsel?
g THE WiTNESS: Thank you. 4 THE COURT; Y.
9 THE COURT: Smix, please call vour pexi wiktness.

e e e
T .~ B

[ S I R )
O o Ay -4 h LR

(R O o R % B o
LA e al RS

BY M5 GRAHAM::

3 Officer Sanfaressa, how are you anployed?

A Poiice officer with the Lot Vegns Meiropaiitan Police
Erepaniment,

Q  And horw kong have you been employed with Metm?

A Aboutong and a hallyesrs

) And were you working in your-capacity as an officer
on November Sth, 2008. this paat vexr?

A Yes, fwes,

O Approximately 10200 p.m ish?

A Yes, eatm.

0 [Hd you reypond e acall &l & location of 5001 El
Parque, Apariment 35 that eveniog?

A Ve, ma'am.

Q And what were the demils of that calf?

A The only detrils we biltialty ged wid thatl there was
a femalc Iving in & begroom and that there was blood every
Pape 45
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NOTC % i Muﬁu—-—
DAVID RGGER
Clark County District Attorney SRENROr THE SR
Nevada Bar #002781
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI
Chief Deputy District Attomey
Nevada Bar #005398
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
&TGE] 671-2500
ttomey for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

g gt

Plaintiff, CASENO: (08C250630
-Vg- DEPT NO: XV
BRIAN KERRY O'KEEFE,
#1447732
Defendant. ;

SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234(1){a)]

TO: BRIAN KERRY OKEEFE, Defendant; and
TQ; PATRICIA PALM, ESQ}., Counsel of Record:
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF

NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses in its case m chief:

NAME ADDRESS

ARMBRLSTER, TODD 6344 BURGUNDY ST., LVN

BALLEJOS, 1. LVMPD P#8406

BAS, JENNIFER LYMPD P#3944

BESSE, TOBIAS 1254 N. TORREY PINES #1154 LVN
BUNN, CHRISTOPHER LYMPD P#4407

COLLINS, CHELSEA LVYMPD P#9255

CONN, TODD LYMPD P#8101

CONNOR, MICHAEL &01 BINBROOK DR.. HENDERSON, NV

CoProgram FileMNeavia ComDacegient Converteraempt 463 1 F5 1107 165100

872
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DAHN, ROBBIE
DUNCAN, .

DUTRA, DR. TIMOTHY

EBBERT. LINDA
EGGLESTON, LINDA
FONABUENA, R.
FORD, DANIEL
GUENTHER, ED
HATHCOX, JIMMY
HODSON, R.

HORN, D.
HUTCHERSON, C.
KELLY.,S.
KOLACZ, ROBIN
KYGER, TERESA
MALDONADO, 7.
MONIOT, T.
MORGENSTERN, K.
MORRIS, CHERYL
MOTT, HONEY
MURPHY, KATE
NEWBERRY, DANIEL
OELAND, A.
PAZOS, E.

PENNY, B.
POINTON, C.
PRICE, RICHARD
RADMANOVICH, S.

LVMPD P#5947

LVMPD P#7157

CCME, 1704 PINTO LN., LVN
SANE/UMC

3864 ALGONQUIN #2, LVN
LVMPD P#6834

LVMPD P#4244

LVMPD P#589|

3955 CHINCHILLA AVE., LVN
LVMPD P#3711

LVMPD P#1928

LVMPD P#12996

LVMPD P#6836

MGR./CASA SALVATORE APTS.,
LVMPD P#4191

LYMPD P#6920

LVMPD PH4664

LVMPD P#4665

C/O DAWN BARLOW/CCDA'S OFFICE
1500 STARDUST RD. #A-2016, LVN
LVMPD P#9756

LVMPD P#4956

LYMPD P#6942

LVMPD P#6817

LVMPD P#6042

LVMPD P#7160

LVMPD P#5626

LVMPD P#6420

C:‘;Prca:mm Files' Nervia. U omiDocursent L anverierdemph 483 13- 1 0 TTE5.100,
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RAMIREZ, V, LVMPD P#4916

2 RUMERY, 5. LVMPD PH6734
3 SANTAROSA, B. LVMPD P#6930
4 STALLINGS, JOHN CCME. 1704 PINTO LN., LVN
& STEIBER, R. LVMPLD P#3542
6 TAYLOR, SEAN LVMPD P#8718
7 TINIO, NORMA 2992 ORCHARD MESA, HENDERSON, NV
R TOLIVER, CHARLES 1013 N. JONES #10]1, LVN
9 TOLIVER, JOYCE 2218 DISK LANE, NLVN
10 WHITMARSH, ALEXANDRA 7648 CELESTIAL FLOW, LVN
11 WHITMARSH, DAVID 7648 CELESTIAL GLOW, LVN
12 WILDEMANN, MARTIN LVMPD P#3516
i3 WONG, T. LYMPD P#6812
14 These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information and

15 || any other witness for which a separate Notice has been filed.
16

" w  Kpwo Peses

DAVID ROGER

19 DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MNevada Bar #02781
20
21
. ERTIFICATE OF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION
23 I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 14th day of
2% January, 2011, by facsimile transmission to:
PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.
25 FAX: 3869114
26 '
/s/Deana Daniels
27 Secretary for the District Attorney's
Oifice
28

C:'-Prt;'mm FileaNeevia ComiDocumant U onverertomph 1465 193-1 707 165 DO
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® omicivaL @
'} PALM LAW FIRM, LTD. °F \ L E Dﬂ‘El

2 | PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.

3| 157% GASING CENTER BLVD al
LAS VEGAS, NV 89104 - i 1 ush

4[| Phone: {702) 386-9113 .
Fax: (702)386-9114

2
Email: Patrigia.galm@y@gmail.cnm Q@: 5 ’i"w,'.;._;ﬁ';_
Attarney for Brian O'Keefe CLERR OF 17

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

3
6
7
B
5

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C250630
Plaintiff, DEPT. NG. XVIi

il

12
VS, mmnu

13
|| BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, : nma.u at Copy

s LR

L6

RECEIPT OF COPY
V7

18 RECEIPT of a copy of DEFENDANT O'KEEFE'S OPPOSITION TO MCTION IN

134 LIMINE TO ADMIT EVIDENCE OF OTHER BAD ACTS PURSUANT TO NRS 48.045 AND
20 | EVIDENGE OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PURSUANT TO 48.061 is hereby acknowledged.
21
22 " DISTRICT ATTORNEY OFFICE

s T i

700 Lewrs A¥e. 3" Floor U/
Las Vegas, NV §9155

Dated: /"fB "f_)'

6Z 8T Nyr

112876




-i. a _r F:‘}"" o "l---.L - T
; FILED?
: RI{I:‘#A“JF?ALM F? o
NEVADA BAR NO. 606% dn 8 ) wsPH
G0 g -
¢ || Phone: (702) 386.9113 Q. ...
i Fax;j&‘?ﬂﬂ} 386-9114 1 CLEHY F 7' DGURT
Email: P .COm ;
¢ Attorney tor Brian O'kee
DISTRICT COURT
. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
B
. STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C250830 -W - -
Plaintiff, DEPT. NO; XVII Oppowiion ko Motiee
in 11818
o vars: 12/ 1/ || [N
i BRIAN K. CKEEFE, i . S__ :
Defendant, ' 3? i3 o

13

14

DEFENDANT O'KEEFE’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION IN LIMINE TO
& ADMIT EVIDENCE OF OTHER BAD ACTS PURSUANT TO NRS 48.045
3é AND EVIDENCE OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PURSUANT TO 48.081

- COMES NOW the Defendant, Brian O'Keefe, by and through his attorney,
1s || Patricia Palm of Palm Law Firm, Ltd., and hereby opposes the State’'s Motion tg
1 ||Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts, above-named, which was filed on served on

+a || Defendant’s counsel on January 7, 2011.1
7ty

ey

L

£

IThe State's Certificate of Facsimile Service certifies that the document wag served

on January 6, 2011. That date ie incorrect, a5 the document was actually served by
facaimile in the late afternoon of January 7, 2011.

5

oy

¥ o]
-1
-l




This Orpposition is made and based upon all papera and pleadings on file wit}J
this Court, the United States and Nevadsn Constitutions, the attached Points snd
Authorities, and any argument as may be had at the time of hearing.

Dated thie m}r of January, 2011.

PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

atricia A. Palrd Bar No. 6009
Nevada Bar No. 6062

1212 Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89104

10

11

13

13

14

15

16

11

18

13

0

21

23

£3

24

25

14

27

24

Attorney for Defendant
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* PRCCEDURAL HISTORY
= The State charged Defendant Brian K. (VKeefe with murder with use of g
3 || deadly weapaon for the alleped November 5, 2008 killing of Victoria Whitmarsh., On
4 || January 20, 2005, he entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his conetitutional ang
5 || statutory righta to a speedy trial. On February 2, 2009, the State filed a2 motion ta
€ || admit evidence of other crimes, which {¥Keefe opposed.
7 The Court ruled that the State could introduce evidence of threats to the
8 Il alleged victim Whitmarsh through witness Cheryl Morris, a woman whom O'Keefd
% ||had dated then rejected. Morris claimed that O'Keefe stated a deaire to kilk
10 || Whitmarsh and alsc demonstrated to Morris his proficiency at how to kill with
1L || knives., The Court further ruled that the State could introduce (¥Keefe's prion
12 ||Judgment of Conviction for felony domestic battery involving Whitmarsh. Further,
13 ||if O'Keefe testified, then the State could prove his other prior felony convictions.
14 || Pursuant to the Court's ruling, the State was permitted to introduce only the details
15 || of when ('Keefe was convicted, in which jurisdiction, and the names of the offensea)
16 {| and with the felony domestic battery, the fact that Whitmarsh had testified againsy
27 [[him in that cage. 8/16/09 TT 2.16. '
18 This case waa first tried before this Court beginning March 16, 2008. After
19 ||five daya of trial, on March 20, 2009, the jury returned 2 verdict finding (FKeefq
20 || guilty of second degree murder with use of a deadly weapon. On May B, 2009, thi
21 || Court eentenced (FKeefe to 10 to 25 years for second-degree murder and
22 || consecutive 98 to 240 monthe (8 to 20 years) on the deadly weapon enhancement,
23 C'Keefe timely appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. After briefing, the
24 || Court reversed O'Keefe's conviction, agreeing with him that the district court "erred
25 || by giving the State’s proposed instruction on second-degree murder because it set
26 || forth an alternative theory of second-degree murder, the charging document did noy
+¢ ||allege this alternate theory, and no evidence supported this theory” The C
25 || explained, “[Tihe State's charging document did not allege that ('Keefe killed
victim while he was committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at

3
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14
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17

18
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20

21
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z3

24

25

268

27

28

did not support this theory of aecond-degree murder.” O'Keefe v, State, NSC Docket
No, £38589, Order of Reversal and Remend (April 7, 2010). The Court furthen
ptated, *The distriet court’s error in giving this instruction was not harmless
because it ia not clear bevond a reasonable doubt that a rational jurce would have
found O'Keefe guilty of second-degree murder absent the error.” Id. at 2.

After remand to this Court, O'Keefe continued to asaert hia rights to a speedy]
trial, and the case was retried beginning August 23, 2010, During that trial, the
State introduced new bad act evidence and arguments never hefore noticed and/or
reled upon. O'Keefe moved for a mistrial during that case, based upon
progecutorial misconduct during closing argument, That motion waa denied.
#/31/10 TT 163-65, 168-69. The retrial ended with a hung jury. Again, O'Keefe
invoked his speedy trial rights and the case was set to begin a third trial om
January 24, 2011.

On Janvary 2, 2011, O’Keefe filed a Moton to Preclude the State from
Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument, inclading matters related tog
Victoria Whitmarah's prior testimony in Case €207B35 (felony domestic battery
case), Cheryl Morris's allegations that O'Keefe had committed “other bad acts”
including kiliing people and yelling at Whitmarsh, expert witness disparagement]
and improper impeachment, evidence relating to domeastic violence syndromea)
causes, etc., and evidence relating to (OFKeefe's failure to pay child support
convictions,

On January 3, 2011, the State faxed to defense counsel a Bupplemental
Notice of Expert Witnesses stating that it now intends to present at the retrial the
testimony of Andrez Sundberg, as "an expert in battered women's syndrome, power
and control dynamics, and the cycle of abuse, generally,” in its case in chief The
State’a notice had no reports attached to it and the defense is unaware what the
expert's opinion would be, if any, in this srea. Moreover, the State had never beforg
noticed an expert or sought permission to present expert testimony or evidencs

relating to the dynamics and effects of domestic violence or abuse.

4
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X On January 7, 2011, O'Keefe filed and Served a Motion to Dismiss on
2 || Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and, alternatively, to
3 || Preclude State’s New Expert Witness, Evidence and Argument Relating to Th
% || Dynamies or Effects of Domeastic Violence and Abuse. The same date, the Sta

5 || served on O'Keefe its pending Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad

& || Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence Pursuant to NRS

7 ||48.061. Both of these motions were set for argument before this Honorable Coury

B ||on January 20, 2011.

3 On January 13, the Court heard partial argument (Eeefe filed a Motion 1o
1¢ || Precluds the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument|
11 ||The Court demied O'Keefe's request to preclude the State from introdue
i2 || evidence/argument to show that Whitmarsh teatified “against him” in a prior Feij
13 || Domestic Battery Conviction in C207835, when in fact, she had recanted during hen
14 || testimony and denied sbuse. The Court denied O'EKeefe’s requests to prevent
15 || witness Cheryl Morris from testifying that O'Keefe had killed people duri
16 || military service, that (FKeefe had demonstrated how he would kill a person with
17 || knife, that O'Keefe had yelled at Whitmarsh, and the Court granted O'Keefe'
18 |l request to preclude evidence that Morris locked her bedroom door and that O'Keefa
19 ||had been kicked out of his trailer. The Court also denied O'Keefe's request td
20 i prevent certain questioning and argument related to his expert witnesses, and the
21 || Court granted O'Keefe's requeat to preclude the use of hia prior convictions for
22 ||failure to pay child support. The Court continued argument on the final issug
23 |lraised by O'Keefe: That the Stats should be precluded from arguing or introducing
24 ||evidence related to domestie viclence syndromes, effects or dynamics or the gener

25 |l cause of fighting against domestic viclence. That argument is set to be heard at th
26 ||same time as the other motions set for January 20, 2011.

27 The original calendar call of Januvary 18, 2611, has beec continued
g ||January 20, 2011, because whether ('Keefe's will or can go forward depends on th
outcome of the Court's ruling on the pending motions.

&
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Preceding the August 2010 retrial, O'EKeefe sought to introduce ex
testimony and evidence regarding Whitmarsh's diagnesed paychalogical conditio
and mental health history. See August 19, 2010 Motions Hearing Transcript 28-36;
8/23/11 TT 1-11; pgee algo Motion By Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Eviden
Pertaining o the Alleged Victim's Mentsl Health Condition and History, fil
7/21/10; and Court’'s Exhibit B admitted during the March 2009 trial. In oppositio
to the defense request for admission of Whitmarsh's various diagnoses, whi
included bipolar disorder, borderline personality traits, panic attacks wit

agoraphobia, and anxiety disorder, the prosecutor argued, T meon, now what we
going to do is we're going to have a — a shrink come in, I guess, and analyse someo
who's dead after the fact." The Court responded, “Well, we're not having it ot thi
point.” B/19/10 Motions Hearing Transcript at 35. The defense argued, in part, tha
Whitmarsh's mental health history and conduct shown in the medical recorde wa
relevant to show alternative reasons why the knife might have been brought intd
the bedroom and why the neighbors might have heard noises when Whitmareh wad
alone in the apartment, and to show a possible noneriminal cause of death and
balance the prejudice from the avidence of (YKeefe's prior convietion and Morris’
accusations being admitted to show inteat/motive. The Court ruled that the pa.rt.iej
should attempt o determine to which evidence from the medical records they might
stipulate. The parties disagreed on a stipulation, and the Court granted in part,
defenee’s request to present certain facts. However, the Court denied the defense’
request to pregent evidence of Whitmarsh's disgnoses or expert testimony related to
these disgnoees. 8/23/10 TT 8-10; 8/24/10 TT 2-11.
During the retrial voir dire, the Court also ruled that the State could noH
discuss battered women's syndrome. 8/23/10 TT 13-18.
To briefly summarize the basic evidence presented at trial O'Keefe anJ
Whitmarsh had a dating relationship which began in 2001. In 2006, O'Keefe w
convicted of felony domestic battery coaviction involving Whitmarsh, and he went td

&
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! Hlprison. 8/26/10 TT 27: 8/30/10 TT 169. He was released from prison in April, 2007
2 || and in January, 2008, he began dating Chery! Morris. Later, in June, 2008, he alsd
? |lresumed a relationship with Whitmarsh. 8/26/10 TT 27. By September, 2008,
4 [|O’Keefe had left Morrie in favor of Whitmarsh, and he and Whitmarsh began i.ivi.uﬁ
% ||together. Id. at 35.
6 Morris testified during the first trig]l that (PKeefe made statemen
7 || indicating that he was proficient with knives and that he was capable of killi
B || anyone with a knife. According to Morris, he demonstrated how he would
3 || somecne with a knife: “O'Keefe would hold me on one shoulder and have a preten
1% ||gort of weapon in his hand, and he would stand there and hold me as ... arm’g

11 |[lengih and say he would come at me or could come at a person and shove it through
12 ||the cage — rib cage area and then just pull up pretiy much . . . slicing someong
13 |lopen.” 31709 TT 17, Morrs demonstrated this elicing action on her sternuzmn area)
14 ||Id, at 17-18. Prior to the second trial, the defense again spught to exclude ths
15 ||evidence. Motion filed July 21, 2010. The Court heard argument on the motion
16 ||and ruled that the evidence was relevant and should be admitted. #1910 TT 2
17 || Order filed September 9, 2010, p.1.

18 During the firat trial, all parties operated under the assumption that O'Keefe
19 {|could introduce evidence of the loving and forward looking relationehip of O'EKeefe
2o (|and Whitmarsh during the period after he was released from prison. 3/16/09
21 || Transcript at 12; gee. e.g.. 3/16/09 TT 259 (Jimmy Hathecox'a testimony that durin
22 U pericd of time Whitmarsh and (‘Keefe lived at El Parque they appeared to be

23 ||open and loving couple); 3/19/08 TT 19-21 (testimony of Lows DeSalvio that
24 || Whitmarsh and (’Keefe seemed very upbeat in the fall of 2008), During the

25 ||in Auguet, 2010, the State sought to Limit the evidence that O’Keefe could introdu
26 || &8 rebuttal to the evidence from Cheryl Morris regarding O'Keefe's alleged hatred o
77 || Whitmarsh, 826/10 TT 11-21. The Court limited the defense to asking what

28 || witnesses saw during the relevant time period (versus opinion on the couple’
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interaction), so aa to not open the door to cross-examination on other prior bad acta)
Id. at 21; 8/26/10 TT 114.

During the retrial, however, Morris greatly expanded on the claims she
earlier made during her atatement to the police, her preliminary hearing testimony
and her first trial testimony. At the retrial without seeking permission, the State

elicited several actuci bad acts and bad character evidence through Morris’
testimony: i.e., that O'Keefe had killed people before, that he had been kicked out
his abode, and that he had velled at Whitmarsh, Furthermore, fur the first time
Morria testified that O'Eeefe had demonstrated yet ancther way of killing people
never before mentioned: slicing someone acroes the throat.

Specifically, Morris teatified that OPKeefe would become angry over bein
sent to prison based upon a trial involving Whitmarsh. 8/26/10 TT 29-30. He woul
eay he hated the bitch and wanted to kill her. He did this multiple timee. . Id, at 30,
During the aame conversations, he would tell her about his experience in
military killing people. 1d. He would talk about it and say it was either kill or be
kiled and he would talk about the kind of weapon he would use. Id. He said the
military trained him to kill. ]d. He was very equipped for hand to hand combat,
basically using a knife. He would describe killing someone by taking a knife and
shoving it upwards toward their sternum angd pulling up. Or perhaps coming up
romm behind and taking the Xnife from the left aide of the neck to the right side. Jd.
at 3%. (The alleged victim was killed by a puncture type stab wound under hen
armpit that went directionelly frem front to back and downward.) Sge 8/18/09 TT
108, 118 (descripticn of wound).

Morris aleo testified for the firet time that O'Keefe got “kicked out’ of the
trailer he waa living in. 8/26/10 TT 28. Morria further testified at the retrial that
O'Keefe was atiracted to Whitmarsh because she was submissive. I he yelled a4
her. she’d do whatever he asked Id. st 32.

Other evidence at the retrial showed that on November 5, 2008, beginming
shortly after 9:00 p.m., downstairs neighbors began hearing noise coming from

N028%4
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1 || O'Keefs and Whitmarsh's upstaire apartment. #26/10 TT 85. There had neves
2 || been noise up there before; the couple was very quiet. Id. at 85, 81. The only voi
3 [ heard sounded like a ferale. Jd. at 88. Charles Toliver went upstairs and foun
1 [{O'Keefe and Whitmarsh in their bedroom: O'Keefe wag holding Whitmarsh an
5 {|talking to her, and she appeared to be unconsecious. [d. at 135-38, 152. Charles ran
& [lout of the aparfment and started hollering for help. Id. st 140. Jimmy Hathcox|
T 1| whe lived next door to ('Keefs and Whitmarsh, had also heard a little ruckus going
& |l on, but the walla are paper thin and it did not seem out of the ordinary. Jd. at 250-
9 l151. Hatheox never heard yelling, and the noises he heard from the apartment could
10 || have been someone banging thinge around in a temper fit. Hatheox heard a bang
11 ||on the rail outside, looked out and aaw O'Eeefe entering hia apartment. [d at 253-
iz |54, About 15 minutes after Hatheox saw O'Keefe enter the apartment, he heard
13 || Toliver yelling for help. [d, at 253,
14 Police responded but O'Keefe did not obey their commands that he leav
15 || Whitmarsh's body. While lying next to Whitmarsh, he was twice tased the
16 ||arrested. &27/10 TT 84-85, 169. [t was possible that Whitmarsh wae bumpe
17 || during the arrest process, and O'Keefe went on top of her body during the taring. 1
18 ||was apparent that 'Keefe was extremely intoxicated. Jd. at 133. He wag
19 ||interviewed, and the redacted interview, was played for the jury. 8/30 TT 180.
20 Law enforcement found no disarray in O'Keefe's apartment, except for in thg
21 || bedroom where ’Keefe and Whitmarsh were found. There was a large knife on the
22 || bed, and anatysis of it showed both Whitmarsh's and (FKeefe's blood. 8/27/10 TT
23 || 220; 8/30/10 TT 151-55.
24 O’Keefe had cuts on hig right thumb and finger. 8/27/10 TT 14. Defens
28 || expert George Schiro testified that it was more likely that O'Keefe was cut be
26 || Whitmareh received her fatal cut. 8/27/10 TT 32, O'Keefe’s cuta could have bee
27 |[caused by grabbing the blade. Id. Schiro also testified that the poseibility of
78 || accdental stabbing could not be ruled out. 1d. at 44,
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Whitmarsh had a psychiatric history which included self-mutilation, anger
outburests, and suicide attempts involving knives. 8/30/10 TT 212-15.

The State’a medical examinar, Ir. Benjamin, ruled the cause of death wag
homicide, but neither she, nor the defense expert medical exgminer, Dr, Grey, could
rule put accident or sucide based on the physical evidence, &/25/10 TT 104, 106;
8/26/10 TT 170-71, Whitmarsh had both healing and acute bruising, but fow of the
bruises were detarmined to be scute, and the bruising could have been consistent
with bumping into things or being bumped into, and alsc would have been likelw
been exacerbated by Whitmarsh's advanced liver cirrhosis and use of alcohol. Her
blood alcohal level at the time of death waas .24, 8/25/10 TT 78; 8/26/10 TT 161-223,

{'Keefe has been provided in discovery only a three page incident report by

Officer Pointon. That report references the existence of a *domestic viclence|
report,” and a “volunfary statement” by Victoris Whitmareh., Neither of those
documents hae been provided to the defense. Nor have any other reports,
photographs or other evidence. (O'Keefe pleaded guilty to obstructing an officer and
not a8 domestic battery offense.

2. Event No. (30804-2025 (never charged, August 4, 2003 incident)

The defense has only been provided with a three page incident report by
Officer Oeland, which references a voluntary statement by Victoria Whitmareh.
The incident report statea the allegation full, *Vietoria declarea that Brian grabbed
her ponytail and was going to pull her hair, but she said, “Don’t,” eo he didn't.”
There is no reference to any carrying Vietoria, or dropping her, or pouring water on
her mentioned in the State's metion. The defense had not been provided with the

19
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voluntary statement by Whitmarah, any eother reports, photographs or othen
gvidence. No chargea were even filad in this case.

The defense was given only a three page incidemt report by Officer Wong,
which report refers to voluntary statementa by Victoria Whitmarsh and Michells
Moit. Neither of those documents has been provided to the defense. Nor have an:J
other reports, photographa or other evidence. (’Keefe was charged with
misdemeanor battery, and pled guilty to a first offense.

The defense has been provided only 8 two page incident report, which referd
to a voluntary statement of Whitmarsh, and another from Mickael Connor. Neither
of these documenta has been provided to the defense. Nor have any other reports)
photographs or other evidence. Moreover, thie case was dismissed and did nof

result in a conviction.

The Btate has provided the defenae with only a three page incident report)
That report refers to a voluntary statement by Victoma Whitmarash: that document
has never been provided. This offense is the 3= BDV conviction for felony for which
(’Keefe waa sentenced to prison. The Court has already ruled that the fact of thig
felony conviction is admissible in the State's case in chief, but only the fact of t
conviction, the jurisdiction, the date, and the faet that Whitmarsh testified in th
State's case againet O'Keefe.
b
i




3 The defense has been provided with only a three page inadent report, which
t || retere to voluntary statements by Lynda Eggleaton and Victoria Whitmarsh, neithes
3 [lof which has been provided to the defense. The incident report also refers tg
® ||domestic viclence and connecting reports, which have not been provided, Neither
? || have any other reports, photographs or other evidence. This offense resulted in al

misdemeanor domestic battery conviction.

10

% The defense hae bean provided with only a three page incident report. It ig
‘2 ||obvious from this repert that numerous other reports and records were created,
13 llincluding a statement from witness Tobias Besse, SANE reports, police reports]
4 | forensic reports, etc. The defense has never been provided with any of thesd
2% (| additional reports or other evidence. Moreover, despite the fact that this incident
reaulted in a felony conviction for burglary, the jury obwviously discredited
Whitmarsh's testimeny and the evidence as it related to the sexual assault counts,

18

17

18

since the jury acquitted on these counts.

1%

20
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za
24 An with the proposed expert testimony, raised by way of O'Keefe's Motion tq
25 || Dismisa, O'Keefe hae never before received notice of the State's intent to use the
26 ||had acts evidemce in guestion in its caee in chief beyond the felony conviction
27 {evidence which the Court has limited. (Y’Keefe has not received statutory or Brady
28 || discovery with respect to these incidents, although he has conducted repeat filg
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reviews and even moved for diseovery on August 2, 2010. O'Keefe also conducted
two file reviews prior to the August 2010 retrial. Despite the fact that volumino

evidence is obviousely in the State’a posseseion, the State hae never provided th
defense with any more than simple incident reports. Indeed, O'Keefe is unaware
upon which evidence the State relies for its motion's statement of the prior
incidents, since most of the State’s allegations have never been shown in any
document provided to defenee counsel. O'Keefe has prosctively ltigated every
aepect of this case, and the State hae affirmatively indicated that it did not intend
to introduce the evidence which it now seeks to admit. Thus, (FKeefe had no cause
te waete defense resources to prepare for mini-triale on the prior allegations.
Pursuant to NRS 174,235, the defense is entitled ta discovery o include thd
statements of any witness the prosecuting attorney intends to call in the case i

chief of the State, results or reporte of any examination or testing made i
connection with a particular esse, and books, papers, documents, and tangible
cbjecte which the State intends to introduce im its ¢case in chief Mareover, pursuant
to constitutional due process under the State and Federal Constitutions, ('Keefe ig
entitled to evidence, “if it provides grounds for the defense to attack reliahbility,
thoroughness, and good faith of the police investigation, to impeach credibility
the state's witneases, or to bolster the defense case against prosecutorial attanksﬂ
and this obligation is not limited to evidence that will be admissible at triall
Mazzan v, Warden, 116 Nev. 48, 67, 993 P.2d 25, 37 (2000); U.S. Const., amend. V,
XIV; Nev. Const. art. 1, sec. 8. The State’a failure to provide adequate discovery in
a timely meanner should prevent it from introducing such evidence, which the
defendart has had no opportunity to adequately inveatigate or prepars to meet.
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3 The Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United State

2 |iConstitution, as wall as the Nevada Constitution, article 1, section 8, protect

3 |lcriming]l defendant's right to a fair trial, at which he may confront and crosad
examing witneases and present evidence 11 hia defense. Pointer v. Texas, 380 U5,
5 ||400 (1966) (recognizing that the right of confrontation requires that a criminal

defendant be given an opportunity to cross-examine the witnesses against him);
7 | Chambers v, Misgissippi. 410 UL.S. 284, 294 (1973) (stating that “the rights to
confront and ¢rosg-examine witnesses and to call witnesses in one’s own behalf have
* || long been recognized as essential to due procees™.

10 NHS 48.015 provides that “relevant evidence” means evidence having any
11 ltendency to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the
12 |l determination of the action more or leas probable than it would be without tha
1 |levidence.” NRS 48.025(2) recognizea that “[e]vidence which is not relevant is uatt
Y || admissible.” NRS 48.035 provides in part that:

1 1, Although relevant, evidence is not admissible if ite probative value

- is subatantially outwsighed l:f the danger of unfair prejudice, of
eonfusion of the issues or of mieleading the cﬁ“ﬁ

17 2, Although relevant, evidence may ke excluded if its probative value
18 substantaally cutweighed by considerations of undue delay, wante of

18 time or needless presentation of cumulative evidenice. . . .

13
Additionally, “[a]beent certain exceptions, evidence of a person’s character or

a trait of his character is not admissible for the purpose of proving that he ascted inf
eenformity therewith on a particular oceasion. This indudes evidence of other

20
21

% crimes, wrongs or acts, which ie not admisaible to prove the character of & person i

order to show that he acted in conformity therewith." Tavlor v, State, 109 Nev. 349,
853, B58 P.2d B43, 846 (1993). Prior to admitting such other act evidence, the State
must first bring & “Petroceli” motion and request a hearing to determine if *{1)

23
24
25
% |lincident is relevant to the crime charged; (2) the act is proven by clear an
23 convineing evidence; and (3} the probative value of the evidence is not substantially

outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice.” Roever v, State, 114 Nev. B67, 872,

g
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1 11963 P.2d 608, 505-06 (1998) {citing Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 1176, 346 P.2d
¢ 11061, 1064-65 (1997); (Petrocelli v. State, 101 Nev. 46, 692 P.2d 503 (1985)).
However, even if the other-act evidence is relevant to a permissibie purpose and
1 l|proven by clear and convincing evidence, A court should still exclude it if ity
5 || probative value is substantially cutweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice. Id, at
¢ ||872, 963 P 2d at 505-06 (citing Tinch, 113 Nev. at 1176, 946 P.2d at 1064-65.

L The Nevada Supreme Court recognizes that the use of character evidence tao
8 || convict a defendant is extremely disfavered in our criminal justice system. Such
9 || evidence is likely to be prejudicial and irrelevant and forces the accused to defend
10 |} againat vague and unsuhstantiated chargea. It may improperly influence the jury
11 |jand result in the accused's conviction because the juzy believes he ie a bad person,
1Z || The use of such evidence to show a propensity to commit the crime charged is
13 || clearly prohibited by the law of this state and ie commonly regarded as sufficient
14 || ground for reversal on appeal. See Tavior, 109 Nev. at 8564, 868 P.2d at 847.

15 The State has failed to demonstrate how it will prove any of the alleged prior
18 || offenses by clear and convincing evidence, That is, the State does not indicate in itg
17 ||motion how any of the evidence in support of the priors might be admissible,
18 || Because the defense does not have fisll discovery pertaining to these prior offenses,
19 |jdespite multiple file reviews and a discovery motion, it is impossible to determine
20 || how to defend against the State'a assertions.

z1 The State already has permission to admit the fact of conviction for felony
22 ||domestic battery. Incidents numbered 1, 2 and 4 above did not result in domestia
23 || violence convictions. Number 1, was a conviction for obstructing. Nwnber 2 wag
24 ||not charged because of insufficient evidence. Numher 4 was diamissed. As for
25 || number 7 above, O'Keefe was acquiited of the sexual assault charges though they
z6 ||are described at length in the State's motion. [t does not appear from the meager
27 ||evidence provided to the defense that any witness actually saw any abuse by
28 || Keefe.

18
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Because there were not independent witnesses to any battery, each of the
propogsed incidents rely on hearsay accusations of Ms. Whitmarsh as to wha
happened. To the extent that the State intends tc rely on prior statementa
Whitmarsh, this would violate O'Keefe'a Sixth Amendment righta as set forth in
Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36, 124 8. Ct. 1354 (2004), Melendez-Diaz v.

Masgachusetts, 567 US. __, 129 §. Ct. 2527 (2009), and Polk v. State, 126 Nev.
. 233 P.34 357 (2010).

Moreover, even though Whitmarah may have actually teatified, at least wi
respect to the felony BDV conviction already admissible, she recanted in that]
testimony. Also, the State haa not timely poticed its intent to admit any prion
testimony, If the State deaired to admit any of Whitmarsh's prior testimony, if
would be required to make a timely moticn, at least 15 dayas befors trial. EDCR
3.20, 3.28, and NRS 174.125. The State would be required to show good cause to
suppart the untimely motion. Herpandez v, State, 124 Nev, . 188 P.3d 1126
(2008). Here, the State appears to be sidestepping the requirementsa of the rules by
filirzg m motion to admit bad acte. However, that document contains no reference tq
prior testimony, end there has been no motion to admit prior testimony|
Considering that the State had since November, 2008, when O'Keefe was first
arrested, to move to admnit prior testimony of Whitmarsh, there is no good cause tg
allow a late request. In addition, Whitmarah was not subjected to adequate eross

examination in the context of this case, as we now know her substantial men:
health history, which ia detailed more fully in connection with O'Keefe's Motion
Dismige, Given the host of paychiatric disorders which Whitmarsh suffered from
and her conduct following the allegutions which imprisoned him, O'Keefe shoul
have been able to eross-examine Whitmarsh on her mental health issues, including

bipelar disorder II, depressed versus recurrent major depressive dizorder, :::j
borderline personality traits, past suditory hallucinations, her history of imp
contrel and anger problems, and her prior reports of abuse against her husband,




Therefore, the admission of her prior testimony weuld violate hie confrontations
rights.

Furthermore, this Court has already conducted the balancing determinati
necessary under Petroeelli, and it determined that the prior felony domestic batte
conviction would be admiasible tc show motivefintent. The State grossly misasta
the strength of its case in arguing that a different balance should now apply. Nog

only hag our Supreme Court stated there is not overwhelming evidence of a second
degree murder, the jury hung at the last trial, even with the improper intreduction
of other bad acts evidence and impreper argument by the State.

In addition, the State has never alleged a theory of second degree murden
based upon an unlawful act; however, the State by ita motion seeks to show that]
Whitmarsh's death was a result of a domestic battery, and this must be so because
of (’Keefe'e propensity to batter. Allowing the State to proceed with such an
unnoticed theory would viclate O'Keefe's due process rights, as previously
determined by the Supreme Court had already happened in thie case. "[Tihe State’
charging document did not allepe that O'Keefe killed the victim while he wuj
committing an unlawful act and the evidence presented at trial did not support this
theory of second-degree murder.” O'Eeefe v. State, NSC Docket No. 53859, Order of
Reversal and Remand (April 7, 2010). The Court further stated, “The district
court's error in giving thia instruction was not harmless because it ia not clesar
beyond a reasonable doubt that a rational juror would have found O'Keefo guilty of
eecond-degree murder absent the error.” Id, at 2. See alac Jennings y. State, 116
Nev. 488, 998 P.2d 557 (2000).

In gdditionn, introduction of such evidence at trial would cause unfair
prejudice and confuse the jssues and mialsad the jury. NRS 48.035(1) (Although
relevant, evidence is not admissible if ita probative value iz substantiallyl
outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of
mizgleading the jury) O'Keefe has never claimed that he killed Whitmarsh

17




purposely in self-defense. His defense theory has been that she either stabbed
berself, or, she must have been accidentally stabled during the struggle when hd
sought to ward eff her knife attack. Here, the evidence of prior batterise is not
sufficiently probative of an intent to kill. None of the prior incddents involved the
use of a knife or an attempt to kill. Thus, even under the cases upon which the
State relies, the evidence would not be admissible. See, e.g., People v. Johnson, 185
Cal. App, 4% 520 (2010) (incidents not invelving use of weapona were not admitted
in case where defendant was alleged to have shot his ex-girlfriend in the back). In
addition, as noted in the various ether maotions to this court, and most specifically,
the recent Motion to Dismisa, Whitinarsh suffered from s host of psychological
disorders which may have affected her conduct and reporting of eonduet. She alsqg
made similar allegations about her former husband. (O'Keefe was twice married
and there have been no suck allegations againet him.

The evidence is overly prejudicial, as it tends to show that O'Keefe acted with
a character trait of being an abuser. See Lonporia v. State, 99 Nev, 754, 670 P.2
939 {1983} (evidence of prior stabbing improperly admitied to ehow intent to
another person a month later by stabbing); Rogver, 114 Nev, 867, 968 P.2d 8
(improper to admit evidence of various threats and violent conduct, which served
wmflame jury). Moreover, this is not a strong case for the State, None of the e
could rule out suicide or accident based on the physical evidence. There was no
evidence that any sort of domestic dispute had cccrrred between these two people in
the days and weeks before the incident. Indeed, the neighbors and friends have
testified to the contrary, i.e., that they were a loving, forward looking couple, wha
were quiet neighbors. It is apparant why the State needsa thia testimony: to bolater

1ts weak case, However, in defending against the evidence, which greatly increased
the likelihood of conviction based on the improper use of character evidence, the
trial would be sidelined by mini-trials on the alleged prior offenses.




Finally, the State’s citation to the unpublished order in Hglcomb v, State, i
in direct viclation of SCH 123, which provides in relevant part, "An unpubliehe
opmicn or order of the Navada Supreme Court ehall not be regarded as precedent
and shall not be cited as legal authority .. . .* Therefore, this Courf should refuse i
eonsider the State’s prohibited argument based on Holcomb.

48.06]1 does not create an ¢

Contrary to the State’s aesertion, there ie no exception in Nevada to allow th
evidence in gquestion despite the presumption againet admitting such evi
under NRS 48.045. Specifically, the State relies on the 2001 amendments to
48.061, which both allowed the State to introduce evidence of domestic violence an
ita effects, and at the same time made clear that the State could not use exp
testimony to prove the basis of a charge against a criminal defendant. That statute
provides, in full:

{1} Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, evidence of domestie
violence and expert testimony concerning the effect of domestic
viclence, including, without limitation, the effect of physical, emotional
or mental abuse, on the beliefs, behavior and perception of the alleged
victim of the domestic violence that is offered by the prosecution or
defense iz admiseible in a criminal proceeding for any relevant
purpose, including, without hmitation, when determining:

{g) Whether a defendant is excepted from criminal lishility pursuant
to subsection 7 of NRS 194.010, to show the state of mind of the
defendant.

(b) Whether a defendant in accordance with NRS 200.200 has killed
ancther in self-defense, toward the establishment of the legal defense.

{2) Expert testimony concerning the effect of domesiic violence may not
be offered against g defendant pursuant to subsection 1 to prove the
ocourrence of an act which forms the basis of a eriminal charge against
the defendant.




1

11

13

13

14

15

14

17

1a

1%

20

21

22

23

24

28

26

27

28

(3) Aa used in this section, "domestic violence” means the commission
of any act described in NES 33,018,

{(Emphasis added.)

Also, contrary to the State's suggestion, the clear legialative intent in
enacting the amendment to NRS 48.061, allowing the prosecution to intreduce
evidence relating to domestic viclence, was to remedy the problem of testifying but]
recanting victim, versus create an exception to the normal rules of evidence
diafavoring bad act evidenice. As the minutes reflect, a proponent of this change,
Gemma Waldron, Legislative Representative, Washoe County District Attorney's
Office and Nevada District Attorney's Association,

explained to the committee that under current law, a defendant who
was charged with a violent crime could bring in expert testimony and
evidence to make the claim of self-defense by showing that the crime
committed by the defendant was a result of being abused over many
years. However, the state was not allowed under current law to bring
in experts to discues the c¢ycle of viclence in order to explain the
testimony given by a victim who had been batiered by the defendant
and testified in 8 manner that assisted the defense rather than the
state, by minimizing the actions of the defendant. Ms. Waldron stated
moet jurors were not aware of the consequances of the cycle of violence
and could not understand how the state could bring a case against a
defendant despite testimony by the victim that minimized the behavior
of the defendant. Ms. Waldron indicated without any mechaniam to
explain the victim's testimony, it was difficult to convict the defendant.
A.B. 417 would allow the atate to bring in an expert witness to explain
why a victim of violence would minimize a batterer's behavior.

Minutes of the Assembly Committes on the Judicary, April §, 2001. Prier to
paseage of AB 417, the SBenate amended the proposed hill to make clear that an
expert could not testify in order fo prove the underlying offense against a defendant.
The Minutes of the Senate Committee on the Judiciary, May 16, 2001, refiect ag
follows:
Ma. Waldron noted an attempt is not being made to change current
faw, just add something to it. Anawering 2 question, Ms. Waldron said

20
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they want to bring in expert testimony to explain the cycle of violence,
She stressed the expert would not be asked to give an opinion on the
ultimate izsue of the case, She said that is why the language is in the
bill. Benator James inquired, *“What other purpose would it be used
for?” Ms. Waldron answered, “To explain why she is testifying the way
ahe 18"

Id. Thus, the history is clear that our legislature sought to make clear the eviden
of prior offenses would be admissible when the prosecution had to impeach
recanting victim, At the same time, the legislature, by adding subsection 2|
intended to msaure that expert testimony would not be admissible to prove the
charge sgainat a defendant.

Additienally, the State relies on out-of-state authorities, which have na
persuzgive effect in interpreting Nevada's statutes. The other states in queation

enacted laws creating an exception in cases of domestic violence to the gener

presumption against the admissibility of other bad act evidence to show propensity
Such an exception was also proposed in Nevada in 2001, as Assembly Bill 436. Th
relevant language of the bill stated, “Chapter 48 of NRS is hereby amended b
adding thereto a new section to read as follows: 1. Except as otherwise provided in
subsection 2, evidence that a defendant who is charged with a3 crime which
conaiitutes demestic violence previously has committed an act that constitute

domestic violence is admisaible in a crtminal proceeding” However, that bill me]
opposition, and it died in commitiee and was not passed. See Minutes of tha
Asgembly Committee on Judiciary, April 2, 2001.

In sum, comtrary to the State’s lengthy dissertation on other state’
inapposite Jaws, in Nevada the general presumption agsinst the admissibility {J
this evidence to show propensity stands.
i |
i
i
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An argued by way of the Defense Motion to Dismise, to allow the Stata to
improve its case following two trials in which it committed misconduct, ig
inconeistent with Double Jeopardy protections.

The Double Jecpardy Clauses of the United States and Nevada Conatitutiona,
mandate that no person shall "be subject . . . to be twice put in jeopardy” for th
same offense. U.5. Const. amend. V; Nev. Conet. art. 1, § 8. Jeopsrdy attache

when & jury is eworn, and the gusrantee against double jeopardy may entitle
defendant who is put to trial to go free if the trial fails to end in a final judgment.
See Glover v, Diatrict Court 125 Nev. __, __, 220 P.3d 684, 692 (2009). The publig
has an interest in seeing that verdicts in criminal cases are the result of “honest
deliberation by individuals who are of a mind free from biaa and prejudice.”™ Glover,
125 Nev, at __, 220 P.3d at 692 (quoting Merritt v. District Court, 67 Nev. 604
607, 222 P.2d 410, 411 (19560)).

The Double Jeopardy Clause protects, in part, “the 'deeply ingrained
principle that ‘the State with all its resources and power should not be allowed o
make repeated attempts to coaviet an individual for an alleged offense, thereby|
subjecting him $0 embarrassment, expense and ordeal and compelling him to live in
4 continuwing state of anxiety and insecurity, as well as enhancing the possibility
that even though innocent he may be found guilty”™ Yeager v, United States, |
0.8, . 129 8. Ct. 2380, 2365-66 (2009) {guoting Green v, United States, 355 US|
184, 187-188, 718 5. Ct. 221 (195T)) (other citations omitted). See alsc United Stated
y. Jorn, 400 U.5. 470, 479, 91 8. Ct. 547, 564 (1971). This interest ie “implicated
whenever the State seeks a second trial after its first attempt to obtain a conviction
regults in a miatrial because the jury has failed to reach a verdict.” Yeager 129 S|
Ct. at 2366.

s
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I is unacceptable for the prosecution to seek tactical advantage by using an

aborted proceeding as a trial run for the next. In Arizons v. Washington, 434 US|
497, 98 8. Ct. 824 (1978}, the Supreme Court stated:

Even if the first trial is not compieted, a second prosecution may be
grossly unfair. It increases the financial end emotional burden on the
sccused, prolongs the pericd in which he is stigmatized by an
unresolved accusation of wrongdoing, and may even enhance the risk
that an innocent defendant may be convicted. The danger of such
nnfairness to the defendant exists whenever a trial is shorted before it
iz completed Comnsequently, as a general rule, the prosecutor is

entitled to one, and only one, opportunity to require an accused to
stand trial.

Id. at 503-05, 98 8. Ct. at 829-30 (footnotes cmitted). The Court further explained
that the risk of an innocent being convicted increases with each trial because "even
‘subtle changes in the State’s testimony, initially favorable to the defendant, may
occur during the course of succeasive prosecutions.™ I, at 504 n.14, 98 S. Ct. at. 829
n.14 (quoting Green, 356 U.S. 184, 1587-88).
Normally, the double jeopardy bar does not prevent retrial following a h

jury. See Washington. 434 U.B. 514, 98 S, Ct. 824. However, an exception to thi
rile iz recognized where the prosecutorizl misconduet results in a hung jury, an

the prosecutor intended to commit such misconduct for the purpase of a tactical
advantage upon retrial. See Qhio v. Betts 2007 Ohic 5533, Ohio App. Lexis 4873/
p.23 (2007). In Betts, the same rare factual acenario as the instant case
present, ie., “the somewhat unusual backdrop of potential double jeop
implicatione following the denial of the motion for mistrial and the case is then
retried following a hung jury.” Ohio App. Lexia 4873, at 10, The court relied on thd
decision in another procedurally aimilar case, United Statea v. Gollamudi. ED.N.Y)
Ne. CR-91-518, 1993 U.S, Dist. LEXIS 1402 (Jan. 29, 1993), and concluded that
prosecutorial misconduct will bar a subsequent retrial where the prosecutor actaj
with the specific intent either {0 inspire a meotion for a mistrial, or ta ohtain
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P Keefe, Brizn
Document Page No.
(Ex Parte) Motion to Appoint Counsel] filed on 12/06/13 4648-4700
*Amended” Exhibits to “Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by
a True Pretrial Detainee filed on 10/03/14 S008-5036
“Evidentiary Hearing Request™ {Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34,360 Exclusive | Based on Subject-Marter of
Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by Notice of Appeal then
“COA™ Granted on a Double Jeopardy Violation with No Remand Issued
Since) filed on 10/03/14 4995-5007
“Reply” to State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro
Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Prsuant to NRS 34.360 filed on
10/27/14 5052-5061
“True Pretrial Detainge’s” Reply to State’s Opposition{s) Admitting the
State has a Jurisdictional Defect by the Aung of a Notice of Appeal
Which Diveste Jurisdiction of the Matter Appealed; 1.e., O'Keefe's
Pretrial Habeas Matter Appealed to the 9™ Circuit on the Subject Matter
of the Amended [nformation Already Named a Double Jeopardy
Violation filed on 10/01/14 4989-4904
Affidavit of Matthew ). Carling, Esqg. filed on 06/2%/15 5447-5453
Affidavit of the Honorable Michael P. Villani filed on D9/24/14 49814983
Amended Information filed on 02/10/09 0175-0177
Amended Notice of Appeal filed on 10/28/15 5565-3568
Appendix of Exhibits for: Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of
the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeapardy Clause,
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding Stale’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawtui Intentional
Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on (3/16/12 3225-3406
Case Appead Statemnent filed on 03/14/14 4850-4851
Case Appeal Statement filed on 04/11/14 4862-4863
Case Appeal Statement filed on 05/21/08 0334-0336
{Case Appezl Statement filed on 08/04/15 5476-3477
Case Appeal Statement filed on 08/12/15 5484-5485
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/02/14 4925-4926
(Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/04/12 3536-3537
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/24/12 4625-4628
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/20/15 5547-5548
Case Appeal Statemnent filed on 10/21/15 5554-5556
Case Appeal Statemnent filed on 11/04/15 5572-5573
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/24/14 5070-5071

Certificate of Mailing filed on 05/03/11
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Certificate of Service filed on 06/29/15 3454
Clerks Certificate Judgment Reversed and Remanded filed on 05/36/10 1023-1027
Criminal Bindover filed on 12/26/08 (004-0020
Criminal Order 1o Statistically Close Case filed on 07/31/13 4662
Defendant O'Keefe’s Opposition to Motion in Limine 10 Admit Evidence

of Other Bad Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic

Violence Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/18/H1 2877-2907
Defendant’s Brief on Admissibility of Evidence of Alleged Victim's

History of Suicide Attempts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation (With Knives andn Scissors), and Ematic

Behavior filed on 03/20/09 0293-03G1
Defendant’s Motion to Require Court 1o Advise the Prosepective Jurors as

to the Mandatory Sentences Required if the Defendant is Convicted of

Second Depree Murder filed on 03/04/09 0196-0218
Defendant’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 03/24/09 0317-G322
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0302-0316
Defendant's Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 08/23/10 1335-1393
Defendant’s Submission o Clark County District Attorney’s Death

Review Committes filed on 12/31/08 0021-0027
Defendant’s Supplemental Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0290-0292
Defendant’s Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1294-1266
District Court Amended Jury List filed on 03/19/09 0245
District Court Jury List filed on 03/16/09 0239

Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion and Motion to Chief Judge to Reassign

Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit 3:14-CV-00385-RCJ-

WGC Against Judge Michael Villami for proceeding in Clear *“Want of

Jurisdiction™ Thereby Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 08/28/14 4503-4912
Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion filed on 08/28/14 4913

Ex Parte Application for Order Requiring Material Witness to Past Bail

filed on 03/10/09 (023240236
Ex Parte Motion for an Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1292-1293
Ex Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to NRS 34.750

filed on 09/15/14 4950-4952
Ex Parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 06/30/10 1037-1043
Ex Parte Motion for Production of Documents (Specific) Papers,

Pleadings and Tangible Froperty of Defendant filed on 01/13/14 4714-4720
Ex Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Legal Cost of Faretta Canvassea

Defendant to Above Instant Case filed on 12/13/13 4701-4707
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3041-3042
Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 06/24/15 5438-5441
Exhibits to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by a True Pretrial Detainee

filed on 05/15/14 4954-4980
Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the

Court Declaring Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis filed

on 01/21/14 | 4722-4747
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Ex-Parte Motion te Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 01/28/14 47644767
Filing in Support of Motion to Seal Records as Ordered by Judge filed on

04/16/12 3438-3441
Findings of Fagt, Conclusion of Law and Order filed on 10/02/15 5528-5536
Information filed on 12/19/08 (001-0003
Instructions to the Jury (Instruction No. 1) filed on 09/02/10 1399-1426
Instruciions to the Jury filed on 03/20/09 0246-0288
Judgment of Conviction (Jury Trial) filed on 09/05/12 4623-4624
Judgment of Conviction filed on 05/08/0% 0327-0328
Judicial Notice Pursuant NRS 47,140(1)}-NRS 47.150(2) Supporting Pro-

3¢ Petition Pursuant NRS 34,360 filed on 03/12/15 5082-5088
Jury List filed on 06/12/12 3456

Jury List filed on 08/25/10 1396
Letters in Aid of Sentencing filed on 05/04/09 0324-0326
Maotion by Defendant O Kgefe filed on 08/19/10 1329-1334
Motion for Complete Rough Draft Transcript filed on 04/03/12 3430
Motion for Judicial Notice the State’s Failure to File and Serve Response

in Opposition filed on 02/24/14 4800-4809
Motion for Judicial Ruling filed on 05/24/10 1028-1030)
Motion for Leave te File Supplemental Petition Addressing All Claims in

the First Instance Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with

Affidavit filed on 06/15/15 5420-5422
Motien for Relief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.,S.

Court of Appeals has not Issued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittitur

filed on 07/23/14 4871-4889
Motion 10 Continue Trial filed on (6/01/12 3450-3455
Motion to Dismiss Counsel filed on 10/03/11 3164-3168
Motion to Modify and/or Correct lllegal Sentence filed on 01/27/14 4749-4759
Metion to Place on Calendar {iled on 10/26/11 3169-3182
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 11/28/11 3184-3192
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel filed on 04/26/11 3044-3047
Mation to Withdraw Counsel filed om 11/28/11 3193-3198
Motion o Withdraw Counsel for Conflict and Failure to Present Claims

when [LA.C. Claims Must be Raised Per Statute in the First Petition

Pursuant Chapter 34 filed on 06/08/15 5148-5153
Motion to Withdraw filed on 09/14/10 1434-1437
Notice of Appeal filed on 03/13/14 4843-4849
Notice of Appeal filed on D4/11/14 4858-4861
Notice of Appeal filed on §5/21/09 0332-0333
Natice of Appeal filed on 07/31/15 5467-5472
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/11/15 5478-5483
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/25/14 4523-4924
Natice of Appeeal filed on 10/21/15 5552-5553
Notice of Appeal filed on 11/03/15 | 5569-3571
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Notice of Appeal filed on 11/21/14

5067-5069

Notice of Change of Address filed on 06/06/14

4864-4865

Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witness filed on 02/20/09

0180-0195

Notice of Defendant’s Witnesses filed on 03/06/09

0224-0227

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed
on 10/06/15

3337-5546

Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 03/05/09

0222-0223

Notice of Motion and Maotion by Defendant O"Keefe for a Reasonable
Bail filed on 09/24/10

1441-1451

Notice of Metion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe for Discovery filed
on 08/02/10

1211-1219

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendamt O°Keefe for Evidentiary
Hearing on Whether the State and CCDC have Complied with Their
Obligations with Respect 10 the Recording of a Jail Visit Between
{FKeefe and State Witness Cheryl Morris filed on 08/02/10

1220-1239

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaining to the Alleged Victim®s Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Errmatic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1064-1081

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence

Pertaining to the Alleged Victim's Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Atternpts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Ercatic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1099-111&

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O°Keefe to Admit Evidence
Showing LVMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/02/10

1199-1210

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and.
Altematively, to Preciude State's New Expert Witness, Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Notice of Motion and Motien by Defendant O'Keefe to Preclude Expent
Testimony filed on (18/16/10

1284-1291

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant 0 Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1047-1063

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’ Ksefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O’Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Tral Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/03/11

1682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant O'Keefe 1o Suppress his
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Statements to Police, or, Altemnatively, to Preclude the State from

Introducing Portions of his Interrogation filed on 08/02/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court to File Motion for

Rehearing - Pursuant 10 EDCR, Rule 2.24 filed on 08/29/14 4914-4921
Notice of Motion and Motion in Liming to Admit Evidence of Other Bad

Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence

Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on

02/02/09 (150-0163
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph

Examination Resulis filed on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Maotion 10 Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of the

Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause.

Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res

Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Uipon the States

Precluding Siate’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional

Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended

Information filed on 03/16/12 3201-3224
Notice of Motion and Motion to Seal Records filed on 03/22/12 3416-3429
Notice of Motion and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of

Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 4695-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

(9/23/15 5517-5519
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

09729415 5525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Notice of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748
Netice of Motion filed on 01/27/14 4760
Notige of Motion filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Mation filed on 03/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 06/G8/15 5154-5160
Notice of Moticn filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on 08/29/14 4922
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/053/09 0166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses filed on 02/17/09 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judgment Affirmed filed on

02/06/15 5072-5081
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Affirmed filed on

07/26/13 4653-4661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

D6/18/14 4866-4870
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

03/12/15 5089-5093

NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/fudgment Dismissed filed on
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(9/2R/15 5520-5524
NV Bupreme Coust Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

10/29/14 5062-5066
(’Kesfe’s Reply to State's Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence

Showing LYMPD Homicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath

Alcohol Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Qther Bad Acts filed

on 02/06/09 0169-0172
Crder Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 021580220
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork

Limit filed on 08/13/15 5486-5488
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of

Incidental Costs Declaring Defendant Ingigent and Granting Forma

pauperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgmen! Based on

Lack of Jurisdiction for 11.8. Court of Appeals had not Issues any

Remand, Mandare or Remittatture filed on 09/04/14 4927-4929
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 04/11/12 3434-3435
Order Denying Defendant's Mation to Seal Recoreds and Defendant’s

Motion to Admit Evidence of Plygraph Examination filed on 05/24/12 3448-3449
Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the

Altermative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to

Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Writ of Mandamus; Order Denying

Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on D1/28/14 4761-4763
Ordet Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The

State’s Failure ta File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 | 4855-3857
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave 1o File

Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First [nstance

Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on

07/15/15 5464-5466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Correct

Illepal Bentence filed on03/25/14 4852-4854
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Withdraw Counsel for

Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When LA, C. Claims Must be

Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on

07415113 5461-53463
Order Denying Matthew D, Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of

Record for Defendant filed on 11/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Motion to Disqualify filed on 10/06/14 3037-5040
Order filed on 01/30/G9 0149
Order filed on 11/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Production of Inmate Brian O0"Keefe filed on 05/26/10 1032-1033
Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/11 3183

o
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Order for Transenipts filed on 04/30/12 3442
Order Granting and Denying in Part Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for

Production of Documents (Specific) Papers, Pleadings, and Tangible

Property of Defendant filed on 02/28/14 4818-4820
Order Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-10435
Order Granting Request for Transctipts filed on 01720411 2966-2967
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 04/27/11 3043
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1431
Order Granting Request for Transeripts filed on 09/16/10 1438-1439
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Pari, Motion by Defendant

O'Keefe for Discovery filed on 08/23/10 1394-1395
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant

O'Keefe to Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Other Act or

Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or

Would Vielate his Constitutional Rights filed on 06/09/10 1427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other 3199-3200
Bad Acts filed on 03/13/12

Order Releasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3039-3040
Order Reguinng Material Witness to Post Bail or be Cormnmitted to

Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-0231
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Coram

Nobis filed on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or in the Alternative Motion 1o

Preclude Prosecution from Seeking Firgt Degree Murder Conviciion

Based Upon the Failure to Collect Evidence filed on 01/26/09 G125-0133
Petition for Wril of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34,360 Exclusive |

Based On Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth

Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy

Violation with No Remand Issued Since filed on 09/15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner’s Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Arpument Scheduled by the

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for November 17, 2014, Courtroom #1

filed on 10/01/14 4984-4988
Pro Se "Reply to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Se Motion to

Modify and/or Correct lllegal Sentence filed on 03/04/14 4821-4832
ProSe “Reply™ to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion

for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring

Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/24/14 4792-4799
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/09 (134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/09 0144
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/06/09 0168
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Receipt of Copy filed on (:3/04/09 0221
Receipt of Copy filed on (3/24/09 {323
Peceipt of Copy filed on 05/24/10 1031
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/13/11 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/30/10 1036
Receipt of Copy filed on G8H2/1G 1240
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/1G 1243
Receipt of copy filed on 08/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed en 09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 69/21/10 1440
Receipt of File filed on 07/01/10 1046
Reply in Suppert of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction) filed on 08/25/15 5500-35110
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction

Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on 06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply 1o State’s Response to Defendant’s Supplementat Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 5489-5499
Regeust for Reugh Draft Transcripts filed on 1021115 5549-5551
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 07/17/12 3458-3460
Request for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed on 09/09/09 0772-0723
Request for Rough Drafi Transcript filed on 05/21/09 0329-0331
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629-4631
Reiurn to Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 0135-0145
Second Amended Information filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s {Ex-Parte} “Moetion for Reimbursement

of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring Defendant Indigent

and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/07/14 47684791
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for a Reasonabls Bail filed on

0%/27/10 1452-1461
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice - The

State’s Failure to File and Serve the Response in Oppeosition filed on

03/10/14 4834-4839
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21/12 3407-3411
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the Stare from

Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion 1o Seal Records filed on

04/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress his Statements to

Police, or, Alternatively, 1o Preclude the State from Introducing Portions

of his Interrogation filed on 08/17/10 1306-1319

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motien to Withdraw Counsel for
Conflici and Failure 1o Present Claims When LA.C. Claims Must be

-9.
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Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/15

3442-5446

State's Oppuosition to Defendant™s Pro Per Motion for Leave of Court to
File Motien. . .Rule 2.4 filed on 09/12/14

4935-4939

State’s Opposition to Defendant's Pro Per Motion to Chief Judge to
Reassign Case to Jurist of Reasen Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear “Want of Jurisdiction™ Thereby
Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 09/12/14

4930-4934

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or
Correct lllegal Sentence filed on 02/24/14

4811-4817

State’s Opposition to Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respeet 10
the Recording of a Jail Visit Between 0"Keefe and State Witness Cheryl
Mormis filed on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State’s Opposition 1a Motion to Admit Evidence Pertaining to the Alleged
Vietim’s Mental Health Condition and History, Including Prior Suicide
Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

State’s Opposition to Motion ta Admit Evidence Showing LYMPD
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohol Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/10/10

1248-1252

State’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, to Preclude
Expert and Argument Regarding Domestic Violence filed on 01/18/11

2908-2965

State’s Opposition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
D8/18/10

1520-1325

State’s Response and Motien to Dismiss Defendani's Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not Issued any Remand, Mandare or Remittatture of fited on 08/07/14

43914962

State's Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based on
Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA" Granted on a Double jEopardy Violatio
with No Remand Issued Since {Post Conviction), Amended Peition and
Accompany Exhibits, Oppesition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing, and
Oppasition to Pro Per Motion (o Appoint Counsel filed on 10/10/14

3041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducint at Trial Other Bad Acts or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his Contitutionsal
Rights filed on 08/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant’s Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in
the Ahernative Writ of Coram and Responss to Motion to Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31/13

4708-4713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pra Per Post-Conviction Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus filed on 46/02/15

5145-5147

State's Response 10 Defendant’s Pro Per Supplemental Petition for Writ

-10-
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary Hearing Request, “*Motion for Leave to
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First [nstance
Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit,” “Reply to
State's Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus.™ and “Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150(2):
NRS 47.140(1), that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#]4-
10093} the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 [ISC 2241 (c)(3)
from the Mooting of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending™ filed

on 07/09/15 5455-5458
State’s Respense to Defendant’s Reply in Support of Supplemental Post-

Conviction Penticn for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/03/13 5511-5516
State’s Response to Defendant™s Supplement to Supplemental Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) filed on 07/31/15 5473-5475
State’s Supplemental Opposition to Motion to Seal Records filed on

04/17/12 3436-3437
Stipulation and Order filed on 02/10/09 0173-0174
Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/29/19) 1034-1035
Supplement to Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-

Conviction} filed on 07/13/15 5459-5460
Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47,150 (2); NRS 47.140 {1), Thai

the United State’s Supreme Court has Dockered (#14-10093) The Pretrial

Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 U.8.C.§ 2241 €(3) From the Mooting

of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in

Want of jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 5433-5437
Supplemental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus Exhibits Cne {1) Through Twenty Five (25) filed on 06/12/15 5161-5363
Supplemental Notice of Defendant’s Expert Wimnesses filed on 07/29/1¢ | 1117-1151
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witness filed on 05/17/12 3443-3447
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 01/03/11 2756-2760
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/16 1266-1267
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1297-1305
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875
Supplementat Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/10/09 (1228-0229
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/11/09 (237-0238
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) filed

on 04/08/15 5094-5144
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/15/15 5364-5419
Verdict filed on 03/20/09 (289
Verdict filed on 06/15/12 3457
Verdict Submitted to the Jury but Retumned Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-1398
Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/30/09 0147-0148

-11-
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TRANSCRIPTS

Document Page No.
Transcript — All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2956-3038
Transcript — All Pending Motions fijed on 07/10/09 0351-0355
Transeript — All Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript — All Pending Motions on 07/10/9 0348-0350
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2068-2973
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 08/30/12 3520-3535
Transcript — Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine te Present Evidence of

Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transcript — Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post

Conviction) filed on 10/29/15 5560-5564
Transcript - Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Upon

Viglation{s) filed on 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript — Detendnat’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 07/10/09 0342-0345
Transcript — Entry of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/10/09 0356-0358
Transctipt — Jury Trail — Day 1 filed on 10/14/09 0724-1022
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 1582-0651
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 09/04/12 4278-4622
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 11/23/10 1578-1602
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 0515-0581
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 11/23/10 1603-1615
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transeript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 07/10/09 0462-0514
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738
Transcript — Jury Trial ~- Day 3 on 09/04/12 37794000
Transcript = Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on (7/10/09 D408-0461
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 1739-2032
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 4 on (19/04/12 3600-3778
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 5 filed on 07/10/09 0359-0407
Transcript = Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 09/04/12 3538-3599
Transcript - jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transcript — jury Trial — Day 6 filed on | 1/23/10 2282-2307
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 1469-1470
Transcript -~ Jury Trial — Day ¢ filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transcript — Maithew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attotney of

Record for Defendant filed on 10/29/15 5557-555%
Transcript — Motions Heating — August 17, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1479-1499
Transcript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1500-1536
Transeript — Motions Hearing — August 20, 2010 filed on 11/23/16 1537-1578

-12 -
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Transcript — Notice of Motion and Motien by Defendant O'Keefe to
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/1] 2574-2989
Transcript — Partial Transcript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 fliled on 03/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript — Petrocelli Hearing filed an 05/19/11 3049-3162
Transcript — Proceedings filed on 01/02/09 0028-0124
Transcript — Sentencing Aupusit 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Transcript — Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transcript — Sentencing filed on 07/10/:09 (337-0341
Transcript — Status Check: Availability of Dr. Benjamin for Trial filed on

02/04/11 2990-2995
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Prior to the first trial, the State indicated that it would not introduce
evidence of domestic violence, except for the prior conviction for felany battery,
even that evidence waa to be limited. 3/16/09 TT 2:3, 12. Despite the prior ml:::j
of this Court, and the understandinge of the parties, during the 2010 retrial, th
State repeatedly imtroduced the issue of domestic violence ss a peychologi

syndrome, a community problem and cause. For example, during voir dire, th
State inquired of jurcrs whether they felt domestic violence was a “eominunit;
problem.” The defense objected, and the Court ruled that the State could not talkd
about domestic violence syndromes or define thst term. 823710 TT (partial
tranacript), p. 16.

In closing argument, the prosecutor stated, “An anonymous domestic violenc
surtivor once made this obgservation, If you can’t be thankful for what you have,
thankful for what you have escoped.” 8/31/10 TT 32. In rebuttal closing argument,
the prosecutor argued, ‘Tt was Raiph Waldo Emerson who said oli violence, all Lhcul
is dreary, all that repels is not power. It is the absence of power. In baiteri
Victoria in the hours leading up or the minutes leading up to ker ultimate death,
defendant didn't show us what kind of pouser ke has, He showed us how weak he is)
Men who begt women.” 8/31/10 TT 132. The prosecutor further argued, “M,
Gignoeos who iz the director of Voices againat violence once said. euerythinga:.j
know. , . " A defense objection to this srgument was sustained. The progecuton
continued, "Everything we know about domestic violence is that it is aboul power]
and conirolling people.” 8/31/10 TT 161, The defense made a motion for mistrial
based on this improper argument, id. at TT 165, but that motion was denicd. Id. at
169.

Counsel ehould not intentionally refer to or argue on the basis of facts outsi
the record, as doing eo can involve the risk of serious prejudice, with a mistrial aa
possible remedy, Glover, 125 Nev. at ___, 220 P.3d at 694. Here, it wae miscondu
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for the State to rely on psychological syndromes, effects or dynamics of abuse or
domestic violence because there is no evidence which was admissible for the
purpose of showing that O'Keefe had the character traits of an abuser or that
Whitmarsh had the character traits of a victim. Also, NRS 48.061(2) specifically
prohibits the use of such evidence against an accused, “Expert testimony concerning
the effect of domestic violence may not be offered against a defendant . . . to Prove
the occurrence of an act which forms the basis of a criminal charpe against the
defendant.” Reliance on the dynsmics of abusive relationships to prove this case is
improper. Additionally, it is misconduct for a prosecutor to appesl to the conecious

of the community or sosietal concerns because the jurors' only proper focus should
be on whether the State has proved ita charge. See Atking v. State, 112 Nev, 1122
1138-39, 923 P.2d 1119 (1996} (Rose, J., CONCUITHIE), Ove
Beriano v, State, 122 Nev. 1066, 1076, 145 P.3d 265 (20086),

The prosecutor's conduct, whether misconduct or inexcusable negligence
preceding a mistrial must be subjected to the strictest scrutiny because "the Double
Jeopardy Clause . . . protect]s] a defendant against governmental actions intendes
to provoke mistrial requests . . . [or] bad faith conduct . . . [that] threatens
fhjarassment of an accused.™ Glover, 125 Nev. at __, 220 P.3d at 684 {(gquoting
Washington, 434 U.S. at 508). [t iz apparent in this case that the prosecution
introduced the above challenged evidence and argument with the purpose of
goading the defense into seeking a mistrial or tainting the jurors’ consideration of
the legal evidence. Such misconduct tends to frustrate the public interest in having
a just judgment reached by an impartial tribunal and creates the risk that the
panel will be tainted. Washington, 434 US. at 512-13, 9§ S. Cr. at 824 Tha
prosecution’s bad motive is demonstrated in part by the fact that it now seaks ta
remedy one of ite problems in the prior trisl, i.e, that it had not noticed an expert iq
domestic violence though it wished to present evidence pertaining io dowmestic
violence, generally, in order toc bolater its attempt to introduce this impropey
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character evidence.  However, “[tlhe prohibition agzinst double jeopardy
unguestionably “forbids the prosecutor to use the first proceeding aa a trial run
his ease." Washington, 434 U.8. at 508, 98 5. Ct. at 831.32 (citing Note, Twice in

Jeopardy, 75 Yale L.J. 262, 287-288 (1565)).
2. wwww
EVIDENCE AND EXPERT WITNESS TESTIMONY WHICH WAS NOT

LY M D 0

INADMISSIBLE,

Where the State wishes to introduce expert testimony, notice is required
pursuant to NRS 1742342, which states:

If the defendant will be tried for one or maore offenses that are
punishable as a gross misdemeanse or felony and s witness that a
party inteudstuca]lduringthecaaeinchiefuftheﬂtatenrduringthe
case in chief of the defendant is expected to offer testimony as an
expert witness, the party who intends to call that witness shall fite and
serve upon the opposing party, not leas than 21 days before trial or
at such other time ae the court directs, & written notice containing:

(a) A brief statement regarding the subject matter on which the
expert witnese is expected to testify and the substance of the
testitnony;

(b) A copy of the cxrriculum vitae of the expert witness; and

(¢ A copy of all reports made by or at the direction of the expert
witness,

(Emphasis added.) With thia statutory provision, the Nevada Legislature chvio
intended to protect defendants’ constituticnal due process rights and ens
adequate opportunity to prepare to meet the expert'a testimony, Notwithstandin
the State's failure to properly notice an expert relating to domeetic wvialen
dynamics and effects for the origingl tris!, at the very latest, the State ahould hav
filed thia notice no later than 21 days pricr to the first retrial of the case. Even i
this Court rules that Double Jeopardy does not prevent the retrial, the very basi
for such 2 ruling lies in the fact that the retrial from a hung jury may be deemed

1

npRera




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

16

i3

28

21

22

23

24

25

28

27

28

continuation of the initial jeopardy that attached when the last jury was empaneleci
on August 23, 2010, Yeager, 129 8, Ct. at 2365-66 (“the inability to reach a decision
“is the kind of ‘manifest necessity’ that permita the deslaration of a mistria] and
continuaiion of the initial jeopardy that commenced when the Jjury was firs
impaneled”), Thus, if O'Keefe is not entitled to bar the entire prosecution based o
double jecpardy, he must be entitled to preciude the State from starting anew with
its witnesa and evidence notice periods. The retrial is merely g continuation of the
former trial, and the ability of the State to notice new expert witnessea ended at the
lateats 21 days before the empaneling of the last jury.

It would be unfair and inconsistent with the Due Process Clauses of the
United States and Nevada Constitutions to allow the State the opportunity tg

correct prior strategies and bolster its case with additional evidence or witneasses
when no good cause is shown for their failuze io timely notice this evidence prior tg
the aborted trial. The due process interest at issue here is analogous to the
situation presented in Bennett v, District Court, 121 Nev. — 121 P.3d 605 (2005),
There, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that lower court erred in allowing the
State to allege new aggravators in support of 2 death sentence following a change in
law which invalidated aggravators found by the jury, where the State had chosen td
forego the proposed pew apgravators during the notice period proscribed by SCH

250. The Court explained that the required notice-period was designed to protect
capital defendant's due process rights to fair and adequate notice of aggravatin
circumstances, safeguard sgainst any abuse of the syatem, and ineert som
predictability and timeliness into the procesa. Id at — 131 P.3d at 610. See alad
Browning v, State, 124 Nev, __, 188 P.34 60, 74 (2008) (assuming without deciding
that the State might be prevented from presenting new penalty hearing evidence af
a second penaity trial, but concluding that minimal additional evidence wad
actually introduced); of State v. Hennessy, 29 Nev. 320, 341, 90 P. 221 {1907)
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(recognizing that where a judgment of conviction is reversed on appeal, without]
addressing all assignments of error, it is proper to give the defense an opportunity|
to address them and the court an opportunity to correct them prior to a retrial).
The same due process type of considerations apply here. A retrial after 4
mistrial for a hung jury, to be consistent with due process and not barred by doubls
jeopardy, musat be eonsidersd a continuation of the previous trigl. What it cannot be
is a chance for the State to start over with new witnesses and evidence not noticed
or tested during prior trials. This would encourage prosecutors, who had not met
witness deadlines for whatever reason, to engage in misconduct to attempt to ca
a mistrigl. Here, the prosecutor certainly did attempt to introduce madmm::-j
evidence at the last trisl. Because that conduct Lkely tainted the jury's
coneideration of the evidence and caused the jury to hang versus acquit, the
prosecutors cannot be permitted to take advantage of the result to correct the
perceived weaknesses in their case. See gleo McMillian v. Weeks Marine. Ine., 2008
1.8, Dist. LEXIS 76973, pp. 5-6 (D.C. Del,, Sept. 30, 2008) (granting sward of a nev
civil trial on damages, but recognizing that an exception to the general rule

prohibiting new evidence upon retrial is where a court perceives a manifest
mjuetice in limiting evidence at retrial); Yong
Foundation, 482 F. Supp. 2d 439, 441 (D. Del. 2006} ("[Als a general rule, a
should not involve the addition of new issues, evidence, or witnesses,”). As the
State has failed to comply with the statutery notice reguirement, it skould be
precluded from presenting this new “expert” testimonty. See NRS 174.29
{providing that court may impose sanctions, including prohibiting a party
mtroducing in evidence material not disclosed in compliance with NRS 174.234).

In additicn, the State has failed tu attach any expert’'s report to its
supplemental notice. As such, the foundation for the expert’s knowledge regarding
thia case ie not known to the defense. To the extent that this expert intends to el

20




forth in QLHHM_L_WMM 041 U.S. 36, 124 8. Ct. 1354 (2004), Melendez-
Diaz v. Massachusetts 557 11.8. — 129 8. Ct. 2527 (2009): Polk v, State 126 Nev.

— 233 P.3d 367 (2010). It does not matter whether any other state statute allow
for an expert to rely on heareay, 2 defendant's Sixth Amendment rights trump su
statutes. See Polk v, State 126 Nev. ___ 233 P.3¢ 357 (2010) (rejecting argumen
that because NRS 50.285 aliowed an expert to offer opinion based on inadmissi
evidence, an analyst could testify to the results of a test performed by a non-
testifying analyst).

The introduction of any expert testimony on the subject of the dynamics on

effects of domestic violence, such as battered women's syndrome, domestic violence

power and control dynamics or the cycle of abuse can only be based on improper u
of character acts evidence. The use of such an expert to prave the basis of a et
againgt a criminal defendant is prohibited hy NRS 48.061. That statute provides, 1
full:

(1) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, evidence of domestic
violence and expert testimony concerning the effect of domestic
violence, including, without limitation, the effect of physical, emotional
or mental abuse, on the beliefs, behavior and perception of the alleged
victim of the domeetic violence that is offered by the prosecution or
defense is admisgible in a criminal proceeding for any relevant
purpose, including, without limitation, when determining;

(a) Whether a defondant ia excepted from criminal liability pursuant
to subsection 7 of NRS 194,010, to shaw the state of mind of the
defendant.

(b) Whether s defendant in accordancs with NRS 200.200 has killed
another in self-defenss, toward the establishment of the legal defense.

(2) Expert testimony concerning the effect of domestic violence may not
be offered against a defendant pursuant o subsection I to prove the
occurrence of an act which forms the basis of a criminad charge against
the daefendans.
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(3} As used in this section, "domestic violence" means the commisgion
of any act deecribed in NRS 33.018,

{Emphasis added.) Subeection 2 above makes it clear that the State’s reliance on
the dynamics of abusive relationshipa to prove its case is improper.

In addition, introduction of such evidence at trial would cause unfaid
prejudice and confuse the issuep and mislead the jury, NRS 48.035(1) {(Althoug

outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues or o
migleading the jury.) Victoria Whitmarsh's medical records are attached as a seale
Exhibit to this motion, They demonstrate all of the following:

_ liagnosed with A
)¢ disorders: For example, in 2001, before she met (’Keefe, she
wag admitted to Monte Vista Hospital following a suicide attempt, and she was

diagnosed with major depressive episode, panic disorder with agoraphobia. Exh. at
233, 248, 251. In 2006, while at Monte Vista for another suicide attempt, which
oceurred while (PKeefe was incarcerated, she was disgnosed with bipolar disorder
LI, depressed versus recurrent major depreesive discrder, and borderkne personality
traits. Exh at 6, 13, 17, 136. Ia 2007, while at Southern Nevada Adult Mema.l1
Health, she admitted to past auditory hallucinations. Exh. at 361, 364.

1 ] i lema, including peptic

ulcer disease, hepatitis C, arthritis, underweight and liver cirrhosis, Exh, at 13.

argument with her hushand and overdosed on pills and cut her wrist." Exh at 11,
27-28, 65. She also reported anxety attacks and panic-like symptoms, and sha
expressed her anger by throwing things, Exh. at 250, 275.

22
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In 2006, doctors noted that she had poor anger management, “high moodg
and problema of anger,” “substantial mood ewings,” “poor impuise control,” “anger|
outburats,” “racing thoughts’ and "significant anxiety” Exh. at 5, 10, 11, 28, 64,
134. The substantial mood swings began around 2000 but she had some rmood
episodes prior to that. Exh. at 134, In 2006, her treatment plan included cognitive
behavioral therapy to help her explore her self-destructive behaviors and anger
management. Exh. at 14, She reported that she destrovs praperty, and that her
triggers to escalating behaviors are “if I don't get what I want & have to repeat
myeelf.” Exh. at 64, 134,

gexual and phygical abuse. Dunng her 2001 admisaion to Monte Vista, Whitmarsh
made reports thai: she was the victim of spousal abuse by her husband,
“(aleoholiciviclent) (phya./sexually & mentally) x 18 years,” Exh, at 321 hen
hushand was abusive mentally and physically and he was an alecholic who would
not work, id, at 239; she had a “long history of enabling her hushand who i
physically abusive,” id. at 242; she was apgravated with her husband who w
using her, drinks quits heavily and abuses her, and her major atress in her life w
her husband, id. at 246-48, 250, 253, 260: she was in & very abusive relationshij
and did not want to go home after her hospitalization, id. at 285; she had bee
married for 18 years to an aleohelic/abusive/nonworking husband, jd. st 286:
husband had hit her, id, at 291; her husband was verbally ahusive, id. at 291; an
she wanted to die due to marital discord and financial stress, id. at 376. At the time
of her 2002 admission to Monte Vista for drug treatment, she again reported that
her husband was an alcoholic, who abused her when drunk; she also reported stresq
at work and problems in relationship with her estranged hushand who is an
alcobolic, ]d, at 197, 201. In 2006, during her admission to Monte Vista for
suicide attempt while O'Keefe was incarcerated, she reported ongoing conflicts wi

her estranged husband, her sister and her 21 year oid daughter, as well as chronio
marital problems with her hushand. Exh. at 26, 57. She also reported that she had
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been staying with her husband and daughter but her daughter wanted her to leave
after her suicide attempt. [d at 134,

£ 15 1

LA Ll ! =LA
include: two suicide attempts in the 19808 both since she married her husband: one
wap an overdose on pain medications after a fight with her hushand. Exh, at 10
134; the 2001 attempt, which resulted in her hospitalization at Monte Vista where
she met O'Keefe, was her fourth suicide attempt: id. at 250; with respect to the 2001
attempt, she overdosed on pills and lacerated her wrists with a knife; she wad
frustrated depressed, suicidal and aggravated with her husband who had been
using her and drinks quite heavily, id, at 11, 246-48; she “was angry, BCre@InINg an
‘went berserk’ after an argument with her estranged husband.” id at 11, 68, 186
199, 233-39, 251, 260, 326, 335. In 2006, she overdosed on Xanax and Morphin
and cut her wrist, id. at 5, 8:11. In 2007, ehe was admitted to Southern Neva
Adult Mental Health Services on a Legal 2000 after she felt depressed and took
handful of Tramadol. At the time, she was residing with her husband. Exh. at 361
65.

ring she had no da

She har & history of self-mutilation with knjves angd gcigsors. Records fro

her 2001 Monte Vista admission show that she had poor impulse control as con
as evidenced by the fact that she cuts herself when angry, Exh. at 271. Sh
reported stabbing herself on her hands in 2006 “because I am not happy wi
myself” She stated that when she is angry, ehe will self-mutilate. Id. at 273, 1
2006, she reported that she *has been self-mutilating for the past 15 ¥ears an
stated that she cuts herself when ehe ia angry” and “she cut her left wrist [] with 4
pair of ecissors on September 22, 2006”7 Exh, at 10, 38, 39

ad o : ; d : Records show
that she abused Lortab, Percocst and Oxyeotin and she had been to detox twice;
once in 2002, and once in 2006. Exh, at 11, 185-87, The 2002 treatment was for
Opiate and Kanax dependence. Exh. at 185.87. In 2006, she was diagnosed with|
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benzodiazepine dependence, opiate dependence, and alcohol dependence sustained
in full remission, Exh. at 6, 13, 17, 138,
The defense has never been rotefied of any evidence, and is aware of none,
showing the Whitmarsh has ever been dingnosed with suffering from battered
women® syndrome. Allowing such evidence to be presented now, although the
defense has been denied the opportunity to present expert testimony pertaining to
Whitmarsh's actual diagnoses, and aspecially in light of the numerous instances
mizsconduct by the State and the failure to timely notice auch an expert or the basi
for any opinions relevant to this case, would viclats O'Keefe's due process rights

confuse the issues and mislead the jury, given the documented psychiatric history

Whitmarsh during periods when she was not in a domestic relationship with
O'Keefe,
3.

E 1 TITLED A MI ON

NS TI AT Y

SPEEDY TRIAL RIGHTS.

Q'Keefe's has been prejudiced by the multiple trials in this case, having tg
undergo the stress and anxiety attendant to muttiple trials and a lengthy pretrial
detention since his arrest on November 6. 2008, His constitutional and statutory
rights to a speedy trial have been violated, and he is entitled to dismissal with
prejudice. U.S. Conat. amend, VI: NRS 178.556(1).
NRS 178.5686(1) provides in relevant part, “If a defendant whose trial has nof
been postponed upon the defendant's application ia not brought to trial within 60
days after the arraignment on the indictment or information, the district court may
digmies the indictment gr information® This statutory speedy trial right applies to
the resetting of a trial following a mistrial, Rodrignes v, Stata 91 Nev. 782, 549
P.2d 1065 (1975). Dismissal if the defendant is not braught to trial within 60 dayj
is mandatory if there is not good cause shown for the delay. Anderson v. State, B8R
Nev. 829, 477 P.2d 595 (1970); Hugbner v, State, 103 Nev. 29, 731 P.2d 1330 (1987}
The state has the burden of showing good eause for delay of the trial. Huebner, jd]
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An acrused ia not required to show that he waa prejudiced by the failure to bring
him to trial within 60 days sfter the finding of an indictment. State v, Craig. 87
Nev, 199, 484 P.2d 719 {1971),

O'Heefs has at all times asserted his right to a speedy trial and ever
aspuming the Court's calendar constitutes good cause for the Janusary 24, 2011 triall
setting, a delay of 146 days from the date the mistrial waa declared on September 1,
2010, by its conduct affecting the last trial (and possibly now O'Keefe's ability to go
forward with the current setting), the State has caused unexcused delay and furthen
prejudice to O'Keefe,

When the State last presented this case, it was not prepared to present the
testimony of a battered women's eyndrome expert. It had failed to give any proper
notice for such expert. The fact that it aseks to improve ite strategies (although
upon an illegitimate basis), by taking advantsge of the mistrial to notice a new
witness, indicates that ite prior misconduct was done in bad faith or zt least with
reckless disregard to O'Keefe's procedural rights. A "trial judge must rec;ug:uize that]
lack of preparedness by the Government to continue the trial directly implicated
policies underpinning both the double jeni:ard:r provision and the speedy trial
guaraniee.” dorn, 400 U.8, at 485, 91 S, Ct. at 557-58. The Stete’s misconduct and
bad intent vitiate any good cause to continue the trial beyond the last trial setting,

Allowing this late-noticed expert would cause even further delay, ('Keefd
would need to request approval from the County to retain his own battered women's
syndrome expert to counter the State's new evidence, Thus, there is likewise ng
good cause to allow the State to cause such further delay by allowing its newly
noticed expert to present evidence which he could not have presented at the lasi
trial and which is inadmiasible as irrelevant and overly prejudicial.
i
i
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CONCLUSION
Far all of the foregoing reasons, Defendant Brian O'Keefe reep
requests that this Court grant his Motion to Dismiss with Prejudice, or in the
alternative, prechude the State from introducing new evidence, expert testimony or
argument relating to the dynamics or effects of domestic violence or abuse,

including hattered women's syndrome, power and control dynamies, the cycle oﬁl

abuse, or domestic violence generally,

DATED this 7th day of January, 2011.
PALM LAW FIRM, LTD.

Patricia Palm, Bar No. 6609
1212 Casino Center Bivd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104
Phone; (702) 386-9113

Fax: (702) 386-9114
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA. CASE NO: C250620
Plaintiff DEPT. NO; XVII
Vs “'ﬁ?!im B
DATE: :
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, "m“ﬂhn
TIME:
Defendant. m mﬂﬂ
RECEIPT QOF COPY

|, the undersigned, acknowledge that on the __L day cf_‘%mku._‘id 9—\
2011, | received a file stamped copy of the NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION
BY DEFENDANT O'HEEFE TO DISMISS ON GROUNDS OF DOUBLE
JEOPARDY BAR AND SPEEDY TRIAL VIOLATION  AND|
ALTEENATIVELY, TO PRECLUDE STATE'S NEW EXPERT WITNESS,
EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT RELATING TO THE DYNAMICS OR
EFFECTS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND ABUSE.

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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DISTRICT COURY

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO: C250630
Plaintif, DEPT. NO; XVIi
VS, T W e
- DATE: oo
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE, wutm
TIME:
== e
RECEIPT OF COPY

|, the undersigned, acknowledge that on the l’? day uf@l yé *’5_*; !
2011, | recaived a fiasstemped copy of the EXHIBIT TO THE NOTICE OF MOT

AND MOTION BY DEFENDANT O'KEEFE TO DISMISS ON GROUNDS ﬂj
DOUBLE JEOPARDY BAR AND SPEEDY TRIAL VIOLATION AND,
ALTERNATIVELY, TO PRECLUDE STATE'S NEW EXPERT WITNESS,
EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT RELATING TO THE DYNAMICS D'Rl
EFFECTS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AND ABUSE (FILED UNDER SEAL),

CLARIK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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OPPS Q%_ A
DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005398

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

chrstopher. lallicdcedany.com
Attorney for Plamuft

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )

Plaintiff, (Case No: 08-C-250630

Dept. No:
i ) ept. No XVII

Date:
BRIAN K. O'KEEFE Tﬁlfe: -éatllggwmﬁ 2011

Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO
PRECLUDE THE STATE FROM INTRODUCING AT
TRIAL IMPROPER EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
CHRISTOPHER J. LALLI, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby opposes the
Defendant’s Motion to Preclude Evidence and Argument. This Opposition is made and
based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the attached points and authorities in
support hereef, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if deemed necessary by this
Honorabie Court.

DATED this 12th day of January, 2011,

DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attomey
Nevada Bar #002781

BY s/ Christopoher J. Lalii

CHRISTOPHER J . TLALL]
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada ‘g,ar iﬂ()Oi 308
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
On November 5, 2008, Brian K, O'Keefe (hereinafter “the Defendant™ murdered

Victoria Whitmarsh by stabbing the right side of her chest. The knife he used to kill Victoria

sliced through various vital organs. It was also apparent that the much-larger Defendant had
badly beaten Victoria. Weighing seventy pounds less than him, her body was badly bruised
at autopsy. On January 3, 2011, the Defendant filed the instant Motion to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument. This Opposition follows.
ARGUMENT
L Defendant’s Third Attempt to Deny the State from Presenting Evidence of
His Motive and Intent Shouid be Denied

Prior to the commencement of the first tral. on February 2. 2009, the State filed a
Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes. {A copy of that Motion is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.) In that Motion, the State sought judicial authorization to call Cheryl Morris as a
witness in its case-in-chief. Morris had given a statement to the police and had testified at a
preliminary hearing with respect te certain information about the Defendant. Also in its bad
acts motion, the State sought to introduce evidence from a case in which the Defendant had
been convicted pursuant to a jury verdict, The Staie argued, “The case [C207835] was tried
before a jury before the Honorable Valorie Vega on September 19, 2005, with Mrs.
Whitmarsh testifying against the Defendans” Exhibit 1 at 8 (emphasis added). The Mation
continued:  “The State now respectfully requests that evidence with regards to the
Defendant’s conviction in C207835 be admitted in its case-in-chief,” /4,

That Motion was argued before His Honor ont March 16, 2009, (A transcript of those
proceedings is attached to the Defendant’s instant Motion as Exhibit A) After hearing
argument by the State and the Defendant, the Court ruled:

[ think the prior acts here and the statements are relevant to the
charge. With the testimony under oath they've been proven by
clear and convincing evidence. And Mr. Pike, I do find that the

probative value is not substantially outweighed by the prejudicial
effect of this, so I'm going to allow that testimony 1o come in.

‘ 002815
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Defense Exhibit A at 8. After the ruling, the State further informed the parties of its intent
with respect to referencing Victoria in the bad-acts case. “The only detail I'm going to go
into with regards to the prior DV obviously is who the witness was that testified against him
... dd. at 11 (emphasis added). Moreover, the Defendant has now made it perfectly clear
that Victoria did, in fact, testify against the Defendant in that case by attaching her testimony
to his instant Motion as Exhibit D.

Counsel for the Defendant wants to engage in a game of semantics about whether
Victoria actually testified “against” the Defendant. However, it is pretty clear the Defendant
percetved that Victoria was testifying against him based upon his statements 1o Cheryl
Morris. He understood the impact of Victoria's testimony and the need for it to obtain a
conviction against him, [f the Defendant is inclined to elicit the substance of Victoria's
testimony, the State would welcome that opportunity and ask the Court to grant its bad acts
motion filed on January 6, 2011.

The Defendant also wants to litigate — for a third time — the admissibility of Cheryl
Morris's testimony. The Defendant casts her testimony as “much expanded” and “greatly
expended” so as to include bad acts. Def.’s Mot. at 9. This is simply not the case. The
record of these proceedings clearly shows that Morris has previously testified that the
Defendant killed other individuals, not in the sense of murder, but as a member of the
military. See Transcript of Preliminary Hearing, December 17, 2008, at 68 (attached hereto
as Exhibit 2). The manner in which the Defendant could kill someone was elicited in the
first trial. See Transeript of Jury Trial of March 17, 2009, at 17-18 (attached hereto as
Exhibit 3). Morris also previously testified that the Defendant was attracted to Victoria
because she was submissive. See Exhibit 3 at 15-17,  Mortis has previously testified that a
leck had been placed on her bedroom door, something that in no way can be construed as
“character evidence.” See Exhibit 3 at 18,

The Defendant wants to attack any minor inconsistency in Morris’s testimony and
claim that it is “expanded” or a bad act. The simple truth of the matter is that the more often

a witness testifies, the more incomsistencies can be found from one transcript to the next.

(02816
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These matters are for cross-examination, net exclusion.

2 The Defendant also wrongly criticizes the State for making fair argument based upon
3 | the bruising found on Victoria’s body after her death. During the course of the trial, Doctor
4 | Felicia Benjamin testified that the bruises on Victoria's body were in various stages of
5 | healing, Moreover. some of the bruising on Victoria's body was found in areas indicating
6 | that it was purposefully caused as opposed 1o accidently suffered. Based upon these facts,
7 | the State properly argued that Victoria “had been roughly handled in an ongoing [fashion].”
& | See Transcripl of Trial of August 31, 2010, at 155,
9 The State is certainly entitled to explain the ipjuries Victoria suffered througlh the
10 | testimony of & medical examiner and through the use of photographic evidence. It is
11 | impossible to do this without also referencing older non-accidental bruising on Victoria's
12 | body. The res gestze doctrine allows the State to present the “complete story” when
13 | presenting such evidence,
14 NRS 43.035(3) states the following:
15 Evidence of another act or crime which is so closely related to an
act in controversy or a crime charged that an ordinary witness
16 cannot describe the act in controversy or the crimé charged
without referring to the other act or crime shall not be excluded,
17 but at the request of an interested party, a cautionary instruction
(g shall be given explaining the reason for its admission,
19 § The Nevada Supreme Court dealt with this issue in Belfon v, State. 121 Nev. 436 (2005). Tn
20 § Bellon, the court explained:
21 The State may present a full and accurate account of the crime,
and such evidence is admissible evem if it implicates the
22 defendant in the commission of other uncharped acts. However,
the “complete story of the crime” dectrine must be construed
23 narrowly. Accordingly, we have stated that “the crime must be
50 nterconnected to the act in question that a wimess cannot
24 describe the act in controversy without referring to the other
crime.” We mow reiterate that admission of evidence under NRS
25 48.035(3) is limited to the statute’s express provisions. Under
the statute. a wimess may only testify to another uncharged act or
26 crime if it is so closely related to the act in controversy that the
witness cannct describe the act without referring to the other
27 uncharged act or crime.
28 || fd at44i.
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The situation described in Befion is precisely present in the instant case. The Statw is
entitled to “present a full and accurate account” of the acute injuries Victoria suffered at the
time of her death, In utilizing photographs of her body, a jury will necessarily see other,
older bruising. [t is impossible to present the acute injury without the jury seeing the older
injury. Therefore, all of the bruising is admissible under the res gestae doctrine codified in
NRS 48.035(3).

Moreover, the Defendant has already once tried o exclude evidence of injuries not
necessarily “tied into this [murder] event.” See Transcript of Proceedings of March 16,
2008, at 293. After brief argument on the issue during the first trial, the Court decided to
hear from the medical examiner before deciding whether to exclude photos of bruising. 4.
at 286. When the medical examiner did eventually testify. the Court allowed the photos into
evidence and permitted the medical examiner to testify regarding all of the injuries. See
Transcript of Proceedings of March 18, 2008, at 87-106.

2. The State is Permitted to Impeach and Comment upen the Credibility of

Defense Witnesses

During the cross-examination of defense expert George Schiro, the State inquired as
to the amount of money he had been paid for his testimony. He testified that the amount was
in excess of $11.000. This fact was then used in closing argument to challenge the
credibility of the witness. It is wholly proper to cross-examine an expert witness on the
amount of his compensation to establish bias. See Collins v. Wayne Corp., 621 F.2d 777,
783 (5th Cir. 1980), superseded by rule on other grounds as stated in Mathis v. Exxon C orp.,
302 F.3d 448 (5th Cir. 2002); Cary Oil Co., Inc. v. MG Refining & Murketing, Inc., 157
F.Supp.2d 751, 756 -757 (S.D.N.Y, 2003).

When the Defendam claims that the State violated Butfer v, State, 120 Nev. 879
(2004), and Sipsas v. State, 102 Nev. 119 (1986), he fails to appreciate the difference
between disparaging a witness and merely arguing credibility, Indeed, it is permissible for a
prosecutor 0 argue the credibility of a witness, Rowlund v. Staze, 118 Nev. 31, 39 (2002).

A prosecutor may argue the evidence and inferences before a jury so long as he does not

NG2818
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heap verbal abuse on the witness or characterize the witness as a perjurer or fraud. Yares w.
State, 103 Nev. 200, 204-05 (1987). A prosecutor may demonstrate to the Jury through
inferences from the record that testimony of a witmess is untrue or biased. See Ross v, State,
106 Nev. 524, 927 (1990). The arguments made by the State regarding Schiro were intended
to attack his credibility and certainly did not characterize him as a “perjurer or fraud,”

With respect to Doctor Todd Grey, a medical examiner from the State of Utah, the
State argued that his testimony was of limited value because it did not conclusively advance
any particular theory but simply “rule[d] out suicide” It is difficult to fathom how ANYONE
could construe such an argument as disparaging.

3. References to Domestic Violence in 2 Future Trial is Proper and Relevant

The Defendant argues that the issue of demestic violence is not relevant in this
domestic violence homicide. See Def.’s Mot. At 12-15. He argues that the State somehow
engaged in misconduct by making references to domestic violence in its epening statement
and closing argument, Try as he might. it is impossible to ignore the domestic violence
elephant in the room,

NRS 48.061 provides that “evidence of domestic violence and expert testimony
concerning the effect of domestic violence, including, without limitation, the effect of
physical, emotional or mental abuse, on the beliefs, behavior and perception of the alleged
victim of the domestic violence that is offered by the prosecution or defense is admissible in
a criminal preceeding for any relevant purpose ...."" Pursuant to NRS 48.061, references to
domestic violence are entirely proper and appropriate.

It is also permissible for the State to develop and rely upon domestic violence themes
in its opening statement and closing argument.  Experts in trial advocacy recognize the

importance and propriety of developing themes when addressing the jury;

' The Defendant woefully misconstrues the meaning of NRS 48.061. A more claborate discussion of this
statutory provision, including its legisiative history, is discussed in the State's Motion in Limine to Admil Evidence af
Gther Bad Acts Pursuant 0 NRS 48 045 and Fvidence of Domestic Violence Pursuant to NBRS 48,061 filed oo Jarmary
6, 201}, This discussion can be lound on pages 14-22.
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Just as your thr:mz must ap‘ﬁeal to logic, your theme must
appeal to moral force. A logical theory tells the trier of fact the
reason that your verdict must be entered. A morzal theme shows
why it should be entered.

A theme is a rheworical or forensic device. Tt has no

independent legal weight, but rather it gives persuasive force to
your legal arguments.

Steven Lubet, Modern Trial Advocacy: Analysis and Practice 9 (National Institute for Trial
Advocacy 2d ed. 1997) (1993). Another author explained the importance of introducing
your case to the jury in opening statement this way: “A good beginning is just a sentence or
two long and does three things: -Focuses on people. —Gets jurors listening. —Arouses a
sense of justice and fair play.” David Ball, Theater Tips and Strategies for Jury Trials 103-
04 (National Institute for Trial Advocacy 2d ed. 1997) (1994).

Moreover, courts have recognized that developing themes by use of quotations and
thetorical devices is altogether preperty. For example, in State v. Thompson, §32 A.2d 626,
644-45 (Conn. 2003}, the prosecutor characterized evidence adduced by the defendant
during the trial as a fantasy weorld akin to that encountered by Alice, both 1 Wonderland and
through the looking glass. The prosecutor argued that in order to believe the defendant’s
theory of the case, the jury would have to “step through the looking glass and follow the
white rabbit down into the rabbit hole. It's only in this fantasy world that truth is stranger
than fiction.” Jd at 644. The Cennecticut Supreme Court explained that the advocacy used

by the prosecutor was proper:

_The mere fact that the prosecutor emilﬂyed the rhetorical
device of incorporating a literary theme into his closing argument
did net render his remarks improper. Accord State v. Cotton, 774,
825 A2d 189 (Conn. Ct. App. 2003) {reference to Lewis
Carroll’s Through the Lnokiug Eﬁass was not improper), As we
staied earlier in this opinion, [t}he occasional use of rhetorical
devices is simply fair argument.” State v. Reynolds, 824 A.2d
611 {Conn. 2003), reprinted at 836 A.2d 224. Through his
literary allusions to Lewis Carroll's “topsy-turvy” imaginary
worids, in which the irational prevailed over the logical, the
prosecutor argued i effect that i order for the jury to believe
the defense witnesses, it would have to suspend logic and ignore
the weight of the evidence. This was mere rhetorical flourish and
not improper argument.
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Id. at 644-45 {internal citations refined).

Of course, there is nothing magical about the foregoing. It is what every first year
law student is taught about giving opening statements and closing arguments. It is a
rudimentary lesson of being an effective advocate and presenting a compelling opening
statement or closing argument, The dark days of beginning an opening statement with “An
opening statement is a roadmap ,..” are long gone. The State’s use of quotations regarding
domestic violence in ils opening statement and closing argument were altogether proper.

4. Defendant’s Convictions for Criminal Non-Support of Dependents

After reviewing the Defendant’s Entry of Sentence and related documents as well as
relevant Ohio law, the State agrees with the Defendant that these convictions to not meet the
criteria of NRS 20.095(1),

CONCLUSION

Based upon ail of the foregoing, the State respecifully prays that the Defendant’s
Motion to Preclude the State from I[ntroducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument,
except with respect te his convictions for Criminal Non-Support of Dependents, be deniad.

DATED this 12 day of January, 2011,

DAVID ROGER
Clark Countio[}isu‘ict Attamey
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/ Christopher J. Lalli

Chief Deputy District Attorne
MNevada artji;{}OSSElS }r
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I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing, was made this 12th day of
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PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.
FAX: 386-9114

fs/Dxzana Daniels
secretary for the District Atiomey’s
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DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

PHILLIP N. SMITH, JR.
Deputy District Attorney

MNevada Bar #010233

200 South Third Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211
{7023 671-2500

Aftorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintift, ;

Case No.

=Y

! Dept No.
BRIAN O'KEEFE, ;
#1447732 ;
Defendant. %

Electronically Fied
02/02/2008 01:24:41 PM

Eed 4=/

CLERK OF THE COAIRT

250630
XVII

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO ADMIT

EVIDENCE OF OTHER CRIMES

DATE OF HEARING: 02/10:2009

TIME OF HEARING: 8:00 AM

COMES NOW, the Btate of Nevada, by DAVID ROGER, District Attorney, through
PHILLI? N. SMITH, JR., Deputy District Anorney, and files this Notice of Motion and

Maotion t0 Admit Evidence of Other Crimes,

This Moticn is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

attached points and guthorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

desmed necessary by this Honorable Court.
i
#
#
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NOTICE OF HEARING
YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned

will bring the foregoing motian on for setting before the above entitled Court, in Department
XVII thereof, on the 10th day of February, 2009, at the hour of 8:00 o'clock a.m., or as soon
thereafter as counsel may be heard.

DATED this day of Febrary, 2009.

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/PHILLIPN. SMITH, IR,

E}HLLI]E; N. jSMEH, IR
eputy Listnct Attorney
Nevad}zl\ Bar #010233

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF FACTS

Victoria Whitmarsh, a fashion model in New York City, met and married David
Whitmarsh, a fashion photographer, in 1985, They had a child, Alexandria. They were
planning on having another child, but Mrs. Whitmarsh was diagnosed with Hepatitis C in
1996. Physicians injtially gave her five (3) vears to live. The Whitmarshs subsequently
moved to Florida, hoping to spend Mrs, Whitmarsh’s final years in a warmer climate. The
terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001 had an adverse effect on Mr. Whitmarsh's business
(which was based out of New York City); consequently, they moved to Las Vegas. Mrs.
Whitmarsh began working at Merck-MEDCO, a local pharmaceutical company. Not long
after, she met Brian O'Keefe (the Defendant), Mrs. Whitmarsh ultimately decided she no
longer wanted to be with her husband and began to pursue a dating relationship with
O’Keefe. Mrs. Whitmarsh and O'Keefe had what could best be termed as an “on-again, off-
again” relationship.

I
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Perhaps most importantly. it was a relationship thar was rife with domestic violence
upon Mrs. Whitmarsh at the hands of O'Keefe. This all culminated on November 5, 2008 at
approximately 11:00 p.m., when LYMPD dispatch received a 911 call from Robin Kolacz.
the manager of the “Casa Salvatore” apartments located at 5001 E! Parque Avenue. Robin
stated that the temale in apartment C-35 was lving inside the apartment and there was blood
everywhere.  Police officers and medical personnel responded to the apartment complex.
Patrol ofticers arrived at the apartment and found the front door open. Officers challenged
the apariment and a male, later identified as O'Keefe, yelled at them to come in. The
officers cleared the front room and could hear O'Kesefe talking from the master bedroom.
Officers continued to talk to O'Keefe. attempting to get him to come out of the bedroom:
however, he refused. (O"Keefe's actions made officers believe O'Keefe was atempting to
“bait” them into the room for a confrontation. Officers from the Crisis Intervention Team
approached the bedroom and observed (’Keefe holding the victim, identified as Victoria
Whitmarsh.

Officers could see that there was blood on the bed. O’Keefe first told officers Mrs.
Whitmarsh was dead, then stated she was alive and demanded officers enter to help her.
O'Keefe still refused to move away from the victim. Not knowing if Mrs. Whitmarsh was
still alive, officers entered the bedroom to expedite the removal of O'Keefe, so medical
could render aid. O'Keefe refused to comply with officer’s orders to mave away from Mrs,
Whitmarsh; he therefore received one cycle from an electronic comtrol device (ECD).
O’Keefe still refused to comply and received an additional ¢cyele from the ECD.
Subsequently, O'Keefe complied with the officers’ commands and was taken into custody
and removed from the bedroom, enabling medical personnel to enter and attend 1o Mrs.
Whitmarsh. Medical personnel determined Mrs. Whitmarsh was deceased. Medical
personne| and officers exited the apartment. The area was cordoned off with crime scene
tape, and homicide detectives and criminalistics personnel were requested to the scerne,
Homicide detectives arrived and a telephonic warrant was requested,

i
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Mrs, Whitmarsh appeared to have a stab wound on her right side under the arm pit
area, an injury to the middle knuckle of her left hand, and an injury to her right index finger.
Mrs, Whitmarsh was lying on her back on the floor and was tude from the waist down. The
bed linens were saturated with blood and there was a bloody black-handled kitchen knife
{approximately & inches long) lying on the bed. (F'Keefe was taken to the homicide office
and advised of his rights per the Miranda decision, which he stated he understood. Homicide
detectives spoke with O’Keefe who stated he did not know what happened to Mrs,
Whitmarsh. O'Keefe stated only he and Mrs. Whitmarsh were in the apartment but he did
not know where all the blood came from., O'Keefe also stated he had been drinking
throughout the day of November 5, 2008. Detectives spoke to Charles and Joyce Toliver,
who live directly below O’Keefe. Joyce stated she heard loud thumping noises in the
apartment above that began around 10:00 p.m. The noises continued and eventually woke
up Joyce’s husband, Charles. Charles used a broom to strike the ceiling in an attempt to
have the upstairs neighbors, ("'Keefe and Mrs. Whitmarsh, quiet down.

When the thumping noise continued, Charles went up 1o apartment C-35. Charles
found the front door of the apartment open and yelled in to O'Keefe. O’Keefe called for
Charles to “come in and get her, she’s dead.” Charles entered the apartment and walked to
the master bedroom. Charles only saw Mrs. Whitmarsh and O'Keefe in the apartment,
Charles looked inte the bedroem and saw (F'Keefe standing over the body of Mrs.
Whitmarsh. (FKeefe was attempting to lift Mrs. Whitmarsh at the waist. Mrs. Whitmarsh
was naked from the waist down and did not appear to be moving. Charles could see blood
all over the bed and there was a black-handled knife lying on the bed. Charles ran from the
room to the apartment manager’s apartment, spoke to Todd Armbruster (Robin’s boyfriend)
and told him 10 call the police. Jimmy Hatheox. who lives in apartment 36, next to O'Keefe
and Mrs, Whitmarsh, alse heard loud thumping from apartment 33 at approximately 10:00
p.m. Hathcox stated he went outside of his apartment and saw O'Keefe standing outside of

his apartment. O’Keefe looked at Hathcox strangely and walked back into his apartment.
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Hathcox stated the next thing he heard was people yelling and he opened the door and
saw Charles Toliver and Todd Armbruster standing in front of O'Keefe's door. The men
told Hathcox, “he killed her and there’s blood all over the place.” Todd Armbruster stated
that Charles Toliver came to his door and teld him to call the police. Toliver told Todd that
he thought the girl in apartment 33 was dead. Todd went up to apartment 35, entered the
apartment, and saw O’Keefe bent over Mrs. Whitmarsh and blood on the bed. ('Keefe
looked up. saw Todd and took a swing at him and told him to “get the fuck out of kere” (or
words to that effect). Todd left the apartment, went to apartment C-37, and phoned the
police. Detectives noted a large amount of blood on O'Keefe’s clothing and hands, an
incised wound on his right index finger and two abrasions on his forehead. O°Keefe also had
several long scratch marks on his back at the belt line. O'Keefe was photographed and his
clothing was impounded. O’'Keefe was arrested and transported to the Clark County
Detention Center, where he was booked for Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon.

On November 6, 2008, at approximately 9:00 a.m,, an autopsy was performed on the
body of Mrs. Whitmarsh at the Clark County Coroner’s Office by Dr. Jacqueline Benjamin,
Mrs, Whitmarsh had several bruises on her body including three on her left upper arm. Dr.
Benjamin noted a single stab wound just under the victim’s right arm pit. The wound looked
to have been made by a single edged knife with the sharp edge of the knife pomted towards
the victim’s back. Dir. Benjamin concluded that the wound was approximately 4.25 inches
long and traveled downward and forward. Upen completion of the autopsy, Dr. Benjamin
found that Mrs. Whitmarsh died from a single stab wound and the manner of death was a
homicide. During the interview of ('Keefe, O'Keefe was insistent he had called 911.
Detectives checked all the phones at the scene and none of them had a call to 911 or to the
non-emergency police number.

On November 20, 2008, Cheryl Morris gave a statement 1o the detectives assigned to
the case. Cheryl Morris stated she had a dating relationship with O'Keefe prior to Mrs.
Whitnarsh moving in with him at the 5001 E! Parque address. Ms. Morris stated she and
O'Keefe dated for several mouths (starting in early 2008) and in June or July of 2008 she

LB
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and O’Keefe moved into the El Parque address. At this point, the relationship was going to
be platenic. Ms. Morris said she slept in the master bedroom and O'Keefe slept on (he
couch, Ms. Morris said she and O'Keefe had an agreement that they would share the
apartment 3s roommates, and after four (4) days O’'Keefe called her and said he was bringing
Mrs. Whitmarsh home to live with them, Ms. Morris, not amenable to such a living
situation, left the house and only returned to recover her property. Ms. Mormis said that
during the course of their relationship, O'Keete would always talk about his prior
relationship with Mrs, Whitmarsh and how he loved her and couldn’t live without her,

Ms. Morris stated when O'Keefe would drink he would becorne angry and abusive,
and he would also talk about how Mrs. Whitmarsh had ruined his life and would state that he
wanted to kiil her (specifically because she had testified against him and “semt [him] to
prison” in case C207835) and that she (Mrs, Whitmarsh) was “poison.” She stated that he
said this several times over several different occasions. O'Keefe also told Ms. Morris that he
liked Mrs. Whitmarsh because she was “submissive.” Ms. Morris related how O'Keefe
would tell her about his training in the military and how he weuld demonstrate on her how
he could kill someone easily using a knife, Ms. Morris also indicated that in a conversation
with O’Keefe subsequent to the murder, he stated to her that “all he remembered” was him
being asleep on the couch and being woken up by something sttarp poking him in the side
and Mrs. Whitmarsh standing over him, “and the next thing he knew, she was blesding” {or
something o that effect).

The Defendant has an extensive history of violence against this victim. On January 7.
2003, the Defendant was arrested for slapping the victim, causing her to have a bloody nose.
This injury was observed by police officers. The Defendant ultimately pled guilty to
Resisting a Pohee Officer in the Las Vegas Justice Court in case 03MO0410X. On
November 14, 2603, the Defendant got into an argument with Mrs. Whitmarsh which
became physical when he grabbed her by the arm, pushed her down, struck her in the head
with his fist, and then strangled her with one hand. He then got a pillow and attempted to

smother her with it, but was interrupted by the next-door neighbor responding to Mrs,
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Whitmarsh's screams and knocking on the door. The neighbor came in and took Mrs,
Whitmarsh to her apartment, whereupon the Defendant broke into and entered the neighbor’s
apartment through her front window. Police officers in the vicinity heard the commotion
and took the Defendant into custody. The Defendant ultimately pled guilty to Batery
Constituting Domestic Vielence in the Las Vegas Justice Court in case 03M25901X,

On November 26, 2003, police responded te Mrs. Whitmarsh’s home in order to do a
"welfare check”™ whereupon they came in contact with both her and the Defendant. The
police observed that Mrs. Whitmarsh “had been severely beaten.” Although initialiy
uncooperative, Mrs, Whitmarsh uitimately stated to police that the Defendant had beaten her.
The Defendant was charged with Battery Constituting Domestic Violence in the Las Vegas
Justice Court in case 053M26791X, but the charges were ultimately dismissed as part of a
package negotiation. On April 2, 2004, Mrs. Whitmarsh called the police because the
Defendant had accused her of being unfaithful and slapped her repeatedly, breaking her
glasses. On Apsil 3, 2004, the Defendant again accused Mrs, Whitmarsh of being unfaithful
and slapped her. She ran to the apartmem manager’s office and the Defendant chased her
there. The manager called the police, and the Defendant was taken into custody. The
Defendant ultimately pied guilty to Battery Constituting Domestic Viclence in the Las Vegas
Mumicipal Court in case C581783A.

On May 29, 2004, the Defendant again accused Mrs. Whitmarsh of being unfaithful
to him. He then battered Mrs. Whitmarsh and apparently forced her to have sex with him.
After the Defendant “passed out,” Mrs. Whitmarsh contacted 2 security guard at their
residence, and he in turn contacted the police. This incident ultimately led to charges of
Battery with Intent to Commit Sexual Assault, Sexual Assault, Attemnpt Sexual Assault, and
Burglary being filed against the Defendant in case (202793, The case was tried before a
Jury before the Honorable Sally [oehrer on October 25, 2004, with Mrs. Whitmarsh
testifying against the Defendant, The Defendant was convicted of Battery (a misdemeanor)
and Burglary and sentenced to credit for time served for Battery and 24 to 120 months for

Burglary—suspended for an indeterminate term of probation not to exceed five (5) years.
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The April 2, 2004 incident ultimately led to a charge of felony battery domestic violence
{based on two prior convictions) being filed against the Defendant in case C207835. The
case was tried before a jury before the Honorable Valorie Vega on September 19, 2005, with
Mrs. Whitmarsh testifying against the Defendant. The Defendant was convicted and
sentenced to 24 to 60 months in prison. He was released in April 2008.

The State now respectfully requests that evidence with regards 1o the Defendant’s
conviction in C207833 be admitted in its case-in-chief,

STATEMENT OF THE LAW
NRS 48.04X2) provides:

Evidence of other ¢rimes, wrongs or acts is not admissible to
prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in
conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other
purposes, such as proof of motive, opportunity, intent,
prepc?ratmn, plan, knowledge, identity, or absence of mistake or
accident,

See NRS 48.045(2): see also Tinch v. State, 113 Nev. 1170, 1176 (1997). The State will
seek to introduce, in its case-in-chief, evidence that the Defendant was arrested and
ultimately convicted (due to Mrs. Whitmarsh’s testimony) of felony Battery Constituting
Domestic Violence in case C207835. The State will also introduce evidence indicating that
the Defendant served close to three (3) years in prison as s result of said conviction. The
State seeks this evidence to show the Defendant’s motive and intent. In the instant case, the
Defendant is charged with Open Murder. This charge leaves to the jury the task of
determining if the Defendant is guilty of First Degree Murder, Second Degree Murder,
Voluntary Manslaughter, or [nvoluntary Manslaughter, Consequently, the Defendant’s intent
and motive is highly relevant, The State submits that evidence regarding case C207835 is
admissible pursuant to NRS 48.045 for the limited purpose of establishing a motive with
regards to first degree murder and/or establishing the Defendant’s intent with regards to any
lesser degree of homicide, It is anticipated that these will be the key issues in the trial on this
matter.

i
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In erder to admit “prior bad act™ evidence, the State must establish that (1) the prior
act is relevant to the crime charged; (2} the act is proven by clear and convincing evidence;
snd (3) the probative value of the evidence 1s not substantially outweighed by the danger of
unfair prejudice. Tinch, 113 Nev, at 1176. The admissibility of prior bad acts is within the
sound discretion of the trial court and will not be overtumed on appeal unless found to be
manifestly wrong. Id. The Nevada Supreme Court has held that the State may offer
evidence o its case-in-chief in anticipation of an expected aspect of the defense. See, e.p.,
Qverton v. State, 78 Nev. 198, 205-6, 370 P.2d 677, 681 (1962). In the instant case, due to
the underlying facts as well as pleadings already filed by the Defendant, it is anticipated that
the defense will assert that the Defendant lacked the requisite intent and/or malice for murder
due to his voluntary intoxication. Consequently, for the crime that the Defendant is charged
with here—Open Murder—an essential element will be the subjective intent of the
Defendant.

A, Motive.

At the preliminary hearing, Cheryl Morris (hercinafter “Morris™) testified that the
Defendant told her that he “hated” Mrs. Whitmarsh because she previously testified against
him, *put him in jail,” and *took three years of his life.” (December 17, 2008 Preliminary
Hearing Transcript, at 69-70 [hercinafter *PHT™]). Morris went on to say that because of
this, the Defendant stated that he “wanted to kill the bitch.” Id. at 70. Mormis testified that
the Defendant said this on more than one occasien. [d. The fact that the Defendant was in
fact convicted of felony Battery Constituting Domestic Violence in case C207835, and
ultimately sent to prison for almost three (3) years due to Mrs. Whitmarsh’s testimony. is
corroborative evidence with regards to Morris® testimony at the preliminary hearing (as well
as the statement she gave to the police during the imitial investigation). Specifically, it is
evidence that clearly establishes a motive (pursuant 1o the Defendant’s own statements), and
15 therefore germane to the State’s efforts in securing a first-degree murder conviction. The
Nevada Supreme Court has repeatedly upheld the provision of NRS 48.045 that allows the

State to introduce evidence of other bad acts in order to establish a motive. See. e.g., Wesley
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v, State, 112 Nev. 503, 916 P.2d 793 (1996); Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189, 886 P.2d 448
(1994); Felder v. State, 107 Nev, 237, 810 P.2d 755 (1991); Cavanapgh v, State, 102 Nev,
478,729 P.2d 481 (198a).

B. Intent,

Long ago, the Nevada Supreme Court held that in the trial of an accused, evidence of
ather crimes is competent when it tends to establish intent. See, e.g., Wyatt v. State, 367
P.2d 104, 77 Nev, 490 (1961). Sister states have reached a similar conclusion. For examnple,
in State v. Brewer, 507 P.2d 1009 (Ariz. App. 1973), the defendant was tried and convicted

of feleny theft of a motor vehicle. At the trial in the matter, the prosecutor introduced
evidence that the defendant had possessed a different stolen vehicle the same day he was
arrested for the theft of the vehicle he had been charged with. The Arizona Court of Appeals
found ne error. The court held that the evidence of possession was relevant to the
“defendant’s criminal intest or knowledge of his wrongdoing and [was] competent [because
it tended] to establish an absence of mistake or accident.” Id. at 1010. Similarly, in Dutton
¥. State, 94 Nev. 461 (1978), disapproved on other grounds by Gray v. State, 100 Nev. 556,
688 P.2d 313 (1984), police conducted an undercover fencing operation called “Operation

Switch.” On the day of the incident, the defendant watked into a store with a co-conspirator.
Both the defendant and the co-conspirator negotiated the sale to an undercover police officer
of a stolen camera and stolen bronzeware. The defendant, however, was charged only with
the possession of the stolen camera.

At trial, the State introduced evidence that the bronzeware the defendam possessed
was stolen the same day as the camera. The district court allowed the evidence, and the
Nevada Supreme Court upheld this ruling, reasoning that the evidence was admissible under
the complete story of the crime docwine as well as to counter the defendant’s claim that he
did not have knowledge that the camera was stolen. Dutton, 94 Nev. at 464. In Findley v,
State, 94 Nev. 212, 577 P.2d 867 (1978), overruled on other grounds by Braunstgin v, State,
118 Nev. 68, 40 P.3d 413 (2002), the defendant was charged with lewdness with a rminor. At
trial, the State presented two witnesses (other than the charged victim) who testified that the
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! defendant molested them similarly some nine years earlier. (Implicit in the Court’s ruling to
| allow admission of such evidence was the finding that nine years was not overly remote in

| time.) The Court affirmed the admission of the evidence t¢ prove intent and absence of

mistake or accident. Perhaps most importantly, the Court noted that intent is piaced in issue
when the defendant pleads not guilty, holding in Overton, supra; “[a] plea of not guilty puts
in issue every material allegation of the information.” Overton, 78 Nev. at 205, 370 P.2d at
680. [n the instant case, the Defendant has necessarily put every material allegation of the
Information in issue,

Federal courts, applying the Federal Rule of Evidence 404(3)(b>—which iz identical
to NRS 48.045—also allew such evidence when it is used to establish intent, In United
States v, Thomas, 835 F.2d 218 (9" Cir. 1987), cert. denied, 108 8.Ct. 1741, 486 U.S. 1010

(1988}, the Court held that evidence that the defendant had previously written bad checks

was admissible to show intent in the prosecution for transporting a security known to have

been taken by fraud. In the charged offense, the defendant had written a check on an

| account that had been closed for six months and subsequently obtained a cashier’s check on
| the strength of that deposit. The prior bad checks were written approximately one year
| before transaction for which the defendant was on trisl. The court concluded that

| defendant’s intent in depesiting the bad check was very much in issue, and consequently the

admission of the evidence was appropriate.

I United States v. Kirk, 528 F.2d 1057 {5th Cir. 1976), the defendant was charged

i with threatening the life of the President of the United States of America. At trial, the
| prosecution presented evidence showing that three years earlier the defendant had committed

the same offense. The court ruled this evidence 10 be properly admissible to show the

defendant’s intent, holding;

Whether the prior conviction tended to show that defendant made this threat
intentionally or as the result of “alcohol taking,” was a matter for the jury’s
determination. The fact that the former offense occurred three years prior to the
offense charged does not make it so remote as 1o be excluded.
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Id. at 1061,
In Lpited States v. Beechum, 582 F.2d 898 {5th Cir. 1978), a jury convicted the defendant. a

substitute letier carrier for the United States Postal Service, of unlawfully possessing a 1890
silver deliar that he knew to be stolen from the mails, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1708
{1976). To establish that the defendant intentionally and unlawfully possessed the silver
dollar, the Government introduced into evidence of two Sears, Roebuck & Co. credit cards
found in the defendant’s wallet when he was arrested. Neither card was issued to the
defendant, and neither was signed. The Government also introduced evidence indicating that
the cards had been mailed some ten months prior to the defendant’s arrest to two different

addresses on routes he had serviced. The Court ultimately held:

Where the issue addressed is defendant’s intent to commit the offense charged,
the relevancy of the extrinsic offense derives from the defendant's mdu}ginﬁ
himself in the same state of mind in the perpetration of both the extrinsic an
charged offenses. The reasoning is that because the defendant had unlawful
intent in the extrinsic offense, it is less likely that he had lawful intent in the
present offense,

Id. at 911.

in United States v. Deloach, 654 F.2d 763 (D.C. Cir. 1980), the defendant was
convicted for submitting false applications for labor certification of an undocumented
immigrant. The Court allowed admission of testimony of three government witnesses, all
undocumented immigrants, that the defendant was a “swindler” who took their money for a
false promise to find them jobs and labor certifications and that the conduct eccurred over a
period encompassing a year and a half prior to the offense charged. The Court held that the
testimony was properly admissible, The prosecution argued that the evidence of the other
“swindles” related to the ultimate issue of intent and the intermediate issues of knowledge,
motive, common plan and absence of mistake and accident, The defendant argued that the
prior bad acts were so disstmilar that the only logical inference to be drawn from the
admission of them was that he was a bad person who swindles undocumented immigrants,

and therefore, he was likely to try to deceive the government. The Court held:

C:PROGRAM FILES NEERZA COMDOCT MENT t:ummﬁn-mmmsnﬁm 5
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These prior acts were instead introduced to show intent. In this case, where
intent was the only real issue, and where appellant predictably raised the
defense of mistake, the admissible bad acts evidence need not show incidents
identical to the events charged, so long as they are closely related to the
offense and tend to rebut the defense of mistake.

Id. at 769,

The Court cited three additional factors, which reinforced the admissibility of the extrinsic
evidence. The prior acts were introduced to show intent, which was the only real issue. The
government had great need for evidence on the issue of intent: and the trial court gave a
limiting instruction which properly restricted the jury’s use of the evidence.

The admission of the other acts in this case is entirely appropriate since the necessary
element of the instant crime sought to be proved (the intent and motive to commit a violent
act against Mrs. Whitmarsh notwithstanding the Defendant’s anticipated claim of voluntary
intoxication and the inability to form the requisite intent) cannot be stbstantially established
by other evidence. See. e.g,, Jones v. State, 85 Nev. 4. 448 P.2d 702 (1969, Tucker v, Siate,
82 Nev, 127, 412 P.2d 970 (1966). The intent to commit a violent act upon Mrs. Whitmarsh
will be a crucial element that the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt. As such, the
evidence here 1s probative in helping the State meet that substantial burden of proot.

D. Balancing Test,

After a court finds that evidence of other crimes fits within NRS 48.045(2), it must
then review the evidence in regard to NRS 48.035.' This statute requires a weighing of
probative value against prejudicial effect. As stated above, it is antic ipated that the defense
will argue that the proffered evidence is more prejudicial than probative. In Lnited States v,
Parker, 549 F.2d 1217 (8" Cir. 1977), gert. denied, 430 U.S, 971, 97 §.Ct. 1659 (1977), the

' NRS 48.035 provides in pertinent part:

1. Although relevant, evidence is not admissible ifits probative value is substantially
outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of
misleading the jury,

Although relevant, evidence may be excluded if its probative value is substantially
outweighed by considerations of undue delay, waste of time or ncedless presentation
of curnulative evidence.

Fad
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defendants were convicted of armed bank robbery and one defendant was also convicted of
bank larceny, During the course of the trial, evidence was brought in that the defendant had
been addicted to heroin for approximately ten years and had been involved in drug
counseling during most of that period. The court held that the evidence of defendant’s
narcotics dealing was admissible to show his motive to commit a robbery. The defendant
argued that the prejudicial effect of the extrinsic offense substantially outweighed its
probative value. The court stated that “evidence relevant to defendant’s motive js not
rendered inadmissible because of its highly prejudicial nature . . . . The best evidence often
is!™ Parker, 549 F.2d at 1222.

In Tucker v, State, 82 Nev. 127, 412 P.2d 970. (1966), the Nevada Supreme Court
clucidated the standard for balancing the probative vaiue versus the prejudicial effect of bad

act evidence:

The reception of such evidence is justified b necessity and, if other evidence
has substantially established the element of the crime involved (motive, intent,
identity, absence of mistake, ¢tc.), the probative value of showing another
offense is diminished, and the trial court skould rule it inadmissible even
though relevant and within an exception to the rule of exclusion.

Id. at 130, 412 P.2d at 971-972.

In the instant case, the only way to show the motive is to actuaily admit evidence of it. The
probative value of admitting evidence with regards to the Defendant’s conviction in
C207835 is therefore by no means substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair
prejudice. The State prays that this Court will recognize the necessity and the admissibility
of the evidence it now secks 1o admit to prove the Defendant’s motive and intent in the
instant case. The State intends to illustrate by clear and convincing evidence that the
Defendant indeed committed the acts which are sought to be admitted, pursaant to Petrocellj
y. State, 101 Nev. 46, 692 P.2d 503 (1985). The State intends to do so in an evidentiary
hearing prior to trial.
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CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, the State requests the Court grant the State’s Motion to
Admut Evidence of Other Crimes.

DATED this

day of February. 2009.

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/PHILLIP N, SMITH, IR,

PHILLIP N, SMITH, JR.
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010233

0Re8.8
CPROGRAM FLLES NFRREA COMDOU L MENT CONVERTER TEMP3SIS h




{E¥]

L - S G = (R O < S

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CERTIFICATE QF FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION

[ hereby certify that service of the State’s Notice and Motion 1o Admit Other Bad Acts, was

made this day of February, 2009, by facsimile transmission to:

PATRICIA PALM, ESQ).
FAX # 455-6265

/8 Terrv Schessler
Secretary for the District Atomey's Ollice

ts/dvu
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}
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}
}

laintiff,

Deparktment IX
BRYAN CHEEFE,

Defendant.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
OF
PROCEEDINGS

BEFORE THE HONQRABLE JOE BONAVENTURE
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

Taken on December 17, 2008
At 9:00 a.m.

APPEARANCES ;

For the State: PHILIP =EMITH, ESQ.
Deputy District Attorney

For the Defendant: RANDALL PIKE, ESQ.

PATRICIA PALM, ESQ.
Special Public Defender

Repoerted by: TOM MERCER, CCR No. 33

MERCZR & ASSOCIATES

(702) 388-2973 nN2841




10
11
12
12
14
15
le
17

18

20

21

22

23

24

&5

. . 63

MR. PIKE: Thank you very much.
MR. SMITH: Nothing further.
THE COQURT: Thank you for vour time.

You're excused.

MR. SMITH: State next calls Cheryl

Morris.

{Whereupon, the witness was duly sworn,)

THE CLERK: State your name; for the
record, and spell it.
THE WITNESS: Cheryl Morris, C-h-e-r-v-1,

last name M-ao-r-r-i-s.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

MR. SMITH:
. Miss Morris, do you know a person by the namel
of Bryan Okeefe?
A. Yes, I do.
MR, PIKE: 3Stipulate to the identity of
Bryan QOkeefs,

MR. EMITH: Thark you.

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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Q. Were you ever in a dating relationship with
Mr. Qkeefa?
A. Yes, I was.
Q. When did that begin?
A. January 7.
Q2. Of this year?
Q0f this year, yes.
When did it end?
Septembar 6.

Of this year?

>0 ¥ p o

Yes.
Q. While you were in a relaticnship with ™Mr.
Okeefe, did you ever come or become aware of a perscn

named Victoria Whitmarsh?

A. Yeas.,

Q. How did that occur?

A. He used to talk about her all the time.

Q. He being Bryan Ckeefe?

A, Bryan used to talk about her all the time,
Q. When the relaticnship started in January of

2008, where ware you lLiving?
A. I was living a2t a friend's house just off of

Sara Jane Lane.

Q. Where was Mr. QOkeefe living?
A Mr. Okeefe was living in a trailer Just off
MERCER & ASSCCIATES w
(702) 388-2973 NH2843
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of Hinson Street.

Q.

share a residence together?

A.

Q.

gﬁys reside together?

A,

because 1 never kept anything there, I just pretty
much stayed the night and I'd go off and do my OWn

thing during the day.

Q.

into your own place?

A.

c.

28 F e B R

Q.

apartment., was there anyone else living there at the

time?

A.

At some point subsequent to that &id vou Juys

0ff and on I would stay the night, ves.

How soon after the relationship began did ycﬂ

Probably, I wasn't really residing there

At any point did vou and him kind of move

Weae did, That was, I believe, in August.
August of 20087

I believe so. BRugust 2008, ¥yes,

And what was the location of this place?
3001 El Pargue Avenue.

3001 E1l Pargue?

Yes.

Apartment 357

Apartment 35, yes.

When you and Mr. Okeefe moved into that

o .

MERCER & BSSOCIATES
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Q. At some point subsegquent t{o you moving in
there, did Mr. Ckeefe express a interest in having
someone else move in with you guys?

A, No, actually I got a phone call.

Q. Frem who?

A, From Mr. Okeefe.

. And what was the substarce of that phone
call? Specifically in regards to yaour living
grrangements?

2, He just called, said he wanted to come home
and he was going to bring Victoria.

2. Victoria Whitmarsh?

A. Yes.

2. Were you amenable to that relatignship?

A. No.

Q. Because 4f that, what did you do?

A. I moved out that night.

Q. And approximately when was this?

A. I think it was a Saturday or Sunday of that
weekend, the weekend of the 6th of September,

Q. Now, after September &, 2008, did MOu ever
reside with Mr. Okeefe again?

A, No.

Q. Do you know whether or not Miss Whitmarsh
moved in ts the 5001 El Pargue, Number 357

[FRCER & ASSOCIATES .
m{?ﬂ?]i ;}FBS-DEQ'?B * n02845
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A. Yes.
2. How did you become aware of that?
A. I still had the key to the apartment and I

had kept contact with the owner and told him I was not
going te return the key until a brand new lease was

made up and my name taken off of the lease.

Q. Do you know how long Mr. Okeefe knew Mrs.
Whitmarsh?

A. Since 2001,

Q. How did you become aware of that?

A, Mr. Ckeefe told ms.

Q. Do you recall at any point coming into
contact with police detectives doing an investigeatbtion
in teo the death of Miss Whitmarsh?

A. Cnly contact I actually had is when I was
called in to make a statement.

2. And did you give a statement to a Detective
Bunn and/or Detective Wildermann?

A. Yes.

Q. That statement take place at the homicide

section of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police

Department?
4 Yes, on JOakey.
0. Would that have been November 20, 2008 2
a. Yes.

MERCER & BRSSOCIATES NO2846
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Q. Now, do you recall the police officers asking
You guestions about statements the defendant made in
regards to how he could kill somebody?

A, Tes,

Q. Did the defendant ever make any statements
like that to you?

F. Yos,

ME. PIEKE: Objecticn, Your Honor, hearsay.

MR. SMITH: I would submit it's not
hearsay if it's the defendant's own statement. I'm
proffering it to establish motive.

THE CQURT: Overruled.
MR. SMITH:

2. What did Mx. Okeefe say about his ability to
kill somebody?

A, He actually said that he could do that
because that was part of what he had to do in Grenada
in special opns.

Q. Let me ask you specifically, did he ever makel
any statements about his ability to kill somebody withy
a knifea?

A, Just the fact that that's how he would have
tc survive.

Q. Did he ever demonstrate to you how he could

kill somebody with a knife?

s
ao

MERCER & ASSOCIATES
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A YTes.
25 Explain that, please?
A. He would stand in front of me and he would

show me, he would hold mes ontc one shoulder and say hj
could take the knife and shove it right into my mid
section and just seort of pull up. And that's how you

wodld kill somesne.

Q. Into your rib cage area?
A. Yes.
Q. Did Mr. Okeefe ever make any statements to

you regarding what he would do to vou if he found out
that you were cheating on him?

A, On occasions he would say he would kill me if
ne found out I was Cheating.

Q. Finally, do you ever recall having a
conversation with Mr. Okeefe where he expressed
displeasure with Victoria Whirmarsh because of
something she may have done te him®

A. Yas,

G. Can you explain that?

MR. PIKE: Reguest ongocing abjection.

THE CQURT: 0Objection noted and cverruled.
You can answer that,

THE WITNESS: He would stay up nights and

we would talk, reminisce. When it got to the point he

MERCER © ASSCCTATES TUZ &
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couldn't take too much he would actually just say he

would -- he would actually -- he hated Victoria.
Q. Did he say why he hated Victoria?
A, In his own words he said because Victoria put

him in jail, took three years of his life, that ha
wanted to kill the bLitch,

Q. Just so the record's clear -- incidently, can
you give me a time frame of when these conversations
would have taken place?

A, They took place throvghout the time I was
with him,

Lo Did he make thessa statements ob more than e
occasion?

A, Yes,

Q. And for the record, it was he wWas upset with

her for sending him to Prison?

A. Tes,
Q. And he wanted to kill her because of that?
A. Yes.

M&. 3MITH: ©Pass the witness.

CROSE EXAMINATION

ME. PIKE:

Q. Miss Morris, goad morning.

1702} 388-2973
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